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Financial and operational highlights B4 7 & & & &
Financial performance f1#5# 18 Global distribution network 2 ¥k 9> $8 4848

HK$mn HK$mn 31 December 31 December
BEEET EREET 2023 2022
Year ended Year ended —Eo=F —m— Change
31 December 2023 31 December 2022 +-B=+-AH +—-A=+—8 =0
BE—T-=%F BE_T__fF Change
+ZHA=+—HLtEE +ZBA=+—HLFE (-]
K ’ Hong Kong SAR and Macau SAR
Revenue W@ 604 585 3% ] .
Gross profit EF) 305 273 2% REEERPERM
Loss from operating activities &8 %75 k518 (213) (122) $75% Directly managed stores 30 26 4
Loss for the year attributable to owners & AFEIEE RSB (223) (132) $69% BHiEEEES
Basic loss per share (HK cents) & REAE1E (B) (7.31) (5.32) ¥37%
Gross margin (%) EFI= (%) 50% 47% 3% pts EHD Mainland China FE A ith
Operating margin (%) &%= (%) -35% 21% V14% pts B H DL Directly managed stores 122 171 449
in (%) FaFE (9 -37% -23% V14% pt ax: .
Net margin (%) F&mFE (%) A b b pts BB DB HiEE
Adjusted EBITDA A& SBEE KR 5+ F) B R IE N T EE R EH AT R A (68) (122) 144%
Adjusted EBITDA margin (%) 4SR5 FI 8 118 & R AT &R ZE (%) 1% 21% 110% pts B E singapore #7103
Capital expenditure BRIz 33 49 433% Directly managed stores 16 15 ™M
EEEEES
: D =
Key financial indicators = Z i 751512 Other countries EfiER
31 December 2023 31 December 2022 Export franchised stores 351 347 14
B B _F Change [ R
4828
+=A=+-8 +=A=+-8 B HOREHEEE S
Inventory turnover* (days) 77 & A &EH#i* (X) 177 201 424 days X Total &4
Inventory level (HK$mn) F &K F GBS ®H ) 145 172 V16% )
¥
Return on equity (%) B8R AEEEEI46 3 (%) 137% 70%  $67% pts HEHE Directly managed stores 168 21 e
Current ratio (times) & tL = (13) 1.67 1.44 116% HEREEESH
Net cash® (HK$mn) IRE288 " CBRBEE T 185 93 199% Export franchised stores 351 347 4
Total liabilities to equity ratio (%) 42 & E¥RE SR EEZE (%) 161% 327% VY 166% pts B EH DB 4 e 2

" Restated & &7
# Adjusted EBITDA (non-HKFRS measure) is calculated as loss before tax plus finance costs, depreciation of property, plant and equipment and investment 519 559 440
properties and right-of-use assets and minus interest income, with adjustments to exclude results from impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and one-off gain on disposal of the assets held for sale
CRBERAE ME - NERBHART GEEBMBREENE) BRHBRAGEMERERE ME BERSBEUARBEMEURERAEEES
e RER B WETRELNMBGYE - BERRF - EAREEZREUARHERFHEZEEZ —RERENERFE
Inventory held at year end divided by cost of sales times 365 days f4% H 2 17 & IR L4 & AL A ’365K
* Time deposits, cash and balances less bank borrowings RN IR & R 4L R BIRITE R

Revenue by geographical market 3% #1113} /535 3 48 ~ W &
For the year ended 31 December 2023 IZE — L _=F+_F=+—HLLFE

Mainland China Fr [ Ay ih

. .
Hong Kong SAR* and Macau SAR 25% (28%)

R B B R R P
65% (60%)

Singapore F AN
10% (12%)

() Figures for the year ended 31 December 2022 are shown in brackets EE -2 -~ F+ "B =+—HILEFEZHFLUEHEERT
#The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, China ("Hong Kong SAR”) B & B4FRIITHE (THHEEH))
"“The Macau Special Administrative Region, China (“Macau SAR") FBIBEPIHF R {TE & (THHED®PT )




FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hEMBRE

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the years ended 30 June 2019, 30 June 2020, period ended 31 December 2021, years ended 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2023, as extracted from the published audited consolidated financial statements and restated as appropriate, is set out below.

UTAArERSE _Z—NFRA=THE - ZZ _ZF B =+HIEFE - BE_Z _—F+_A=+—HLEBEB - BE_ZE__F+_A=+—HEZZ-_=F+"-B=+—HILHF
EZ¥B - EEREERE NORBEEHELERGRSUBRRELBEMET -

Results %45
Period ended

Year ended 31 December 31 December Year ended 30 June
BZE+-B=+—8
BE+-B=+—HLEE 1EHARS BEAB=t+ALEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E= =S B —ETE2F —ZE—hE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T T BT T BT T BT T
CONTINUING OPERATIONS @& & 75
REVENUE U5 604,223 585,155 1,164,075 1,091,631 1,488,072
LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES &8 ¥ 75k518 (213,225) (122,051) (322,399) (319,131) (103,351)
Finance costs B Ak 7 (9,650) (9,832) (14,768) (16,182) (212)
LOSS BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
FREBREER ZRRAIEE (222,875) (131,883) (337,167) (335,313) (103,563)
Income tax expense Fri3iR B % (493) (371) (2,892) (12,183) (4,371)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
BEREERERN BARNEE (223,368) (132,254) (340,059) (347,496) (107,934)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD FROM A DISCONTINUED OPERATION
BRIEERZER HAEE - - (378) (20,239) (31,171)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE COMPANY
ERATEEANEEER MRS (223,368) (132,254) (340,437) (367,735) (139,105)
Assets and Liabilities EE R &&
At 31 December At 30 June
®+=B=+—A8a RAB=+8
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—EC=HF =B BT TECEE —E—hE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T T T T BT T BT T
TOTAL ASSETS EE4(E 540,153 513,791 743,863 774,077 938,139
TOTAL LIABILITIES &{&4{E (333,511) (393,488) (484,843) (492,617) (238,164)
206,642 120,303 259,020 281,460 699,975
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Global distribution network
Ikt AEE

L s = -
ol 5
P>

1 6 8 3 5 1 5 1 9 * The Middle East includes Armenia, Jordan, Peﬂestine and UA
(212) (347) (559) FREESERS K8 BB R AN EE

() Figures at 31 December 2022 are shown in brackets

directly managed stores in Hong Kong SAR and export franchised stores stores in about 16 countries and regions A—mm— — — =0 = HEgEE
Macau SAR, mainland China and Singapore WO S ESES EHEURNIEARREE RS- —Ht RS+ BZBFMERER
HREEE KR P EDRPT  fE R R

MMEH EREIEES

Regional retail performance indicators & Z & $§ & R IFIE1E

Same-store sales growth (%)* Sales per sq. ft. (HK$) Net retail floor area (sq. ft.)
FIE BRI R(%)* FTHRHERCEE) FEZEREERRAFAR)
Year ended Year ended

31 December 2023 31 December 2023 31 December 2023

BE_ZT-=#F BE_T_=& —EC-=f

+ZBA=+—HLEE +ZHA=+—HLEE +ZB=+—H
Hong Kong SAR and Macau SAR FREI & % & P EIEFT 5% -2% 5,300 4,700 ™M3% 68,900 65,400 5%
Mainland China A1 [El At 46% -29% 600 600 0% 173,400 233,000 V26%
Singapore A3 -12% -2% 3,200 3,500 V9% 20,200 19,500 M%
Total &3t 5% -7% 1,800 1,800 0% 262,500 317,900 V17%

* Same-store sales growth is the comparison of sales of the same stores having operations in comparable periods
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Our vision is to be the most influential Chinese

APPAREL BRAND IN CYCLING

HPNER-NARERXE T
B 17 58 Al & am b

Bossini International Holdings Limited (the “Company”; stock
code on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("stock
code”): 592) and its subsidiaries (the “Group” or “Bossini”)
is a renowned apparel brand owner, retailer and franchiser in
the region.

Headquartered in Hong Kong SAR, Bossini launched its first
retail store in 1987. Over the past three decades, it rapidly
established an extensive international operating platform and
distribution network that extended to a total of 519 stores
worldwide. Among these, the Group operated 168 directly
managed stores in Hong Kong SAR and Macau SAR, mainland
China and Singapore. As for other overseas markets, the
Group cooperated with its business partners to establish
a total of 351 export franchised stores in 13 countries,
spanning from Southeast Asia, South Asia, the Middle East
and East Africa.

Internationally renowned for its strong ability to mix-and-
match and to satisfy the pursuit of individuality and comfort,
Bossini offers apparel products including men’s, ladies’
and kids" wear, which are designed to fit a wide range of
customer needs.
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CHAIRMAN'S LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
FREBRERA

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to present the results of Bossini International Holdings Limited
and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Reflecting on 2023, it was a challenging year for our Group. The market has gradually returned to normal
and our customer traffic of stores has continued to improve after the Covid-19 pandemic. The retail market in
mainland China, Hong Kong SAR and Macau SAR showed positive signs. However, the global economy continues
to face challenges such as inflation and high interest rates, leading to an increase in the cost of living and
shifts in consumption patterns, thereby dampening consumer spending. These challenges are impacting both
consumption and the business landscape of retail sectors.

Despite the challenges ahead, we remained committed to the rebranding process, focusing on the development
of the “bossini.X"” brand as our core initiative. We also undertook significant restructuring of our products and
sales channels. In order to fully optimise and upgrade our offerings and focus our resources on attracting more
energetic young consumers, we have integrated sports outerwear and light outdoor design with professional
sports technology materials, while also incorporating fashionable cycling culture into the design. Additionally,
we have strengthened internal training, improved sales skills, and aimed to increase both conversion rates
and spending per customer. These efforts are intended to minimise the impact of the external factors on our
operations and business performance.

With various initiatives being implemented to stimulate economic growth in mainland China and Hong Kong
SAR, we remain cautiously optimistic about the year ahead. We will closely monitor market trends and remain
flexible in adjusting our strategies accordingly. Our focus will remain on enhancing operational efficiency,
rebranding efforts, and optimising our product portfolio to strengthen Bossini's competitiveness and drive
sustainable long-term value creation. With the support of our shareholders, we are confident that we can achieve
better performance and results.
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AAEZERREFEERENEHFRERERLDRENBARNEE
TET_HF+ A=t HIEFEZEE-

D=6 WEMEEAMS B wlEN —F-EMERE®R T
HIRRWIEEE > FIFIBYE FIZ R B E LS o PRI 7Yt LU BB & Y
SEMISET LR R A 2 H N A EERBR S KF
B EMAENA LT APIRVHBER M EL T —E81(E SHBMEH
HBEsS S ERB AT EE BN T ETENEERE

EEEEIEC RAMART BT RIEL M Mbossini. X aah# (A%
RELHERMBERBET T RBFAR LR ESINFHER IR
TR BEBHRMEBE S BARE TR 2EEEFR
WEEPRME IR ARSI B 2 78 mik IR FEOH B R RE [R5 > F
BT RBEI IR HERID IRESEHREXNSEHEST RER
DONBRIRIBR R FIEEMER RIRHT Eo

FEE TP EI A R RIS B — R 5 RS B REVIEIE FAIR & U
BEMABRNEEEHRE BURETIHEC BEAHBRE HESR
ARRAEENER mEEMEUREMBRL LUEREMENRFE I
WS P AN RIBERGE - HEERRNZE T RIPEHIRISELF
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On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to thank our shareholders, business partners
and customers for their support, trust and encouragement. My appreciation also goes to all our staff for their
continued dedication and contribution to Bossini, especially during the challenging time we experienced over the
past financial year.

ZHAO lJianguo
Chairman

Hong Kong SAR
20 March 2024

CHAIRMAN'S LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
FREHRERA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEm R

OVERVIEW BrEE
= The Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “year under review”) was HK$604 million BEZ=F4+"A=1+—HBULtFE (LEFR])  mEERG R
e é' (2022: HK$585 million) at a gross margin of 50% (2022: 47%). Table 1 below provides an overview of the 60480 (CE - —F BIE5.85F7T) » EFIEXAS0% (CE - _£F:
g% Group’s results in its core markets. During the year under review, loss attributable to owners of the Company 47%) - R—BAEENZOTH 2 EBEEB - R OIBERN AAF]
m g. was HK$223 million (2022: HK$132 million). The Group's same-store sales and same-store gross profit rose by WA AEEEIEABIE2 23@ T (T2 24 8K .32(87T) o AEH
g 5% (2022: 7% decline) and 12% (2022: 10% decline) respectively. Net cash balance was HK$185 million (2022: HNEIEHEREMBEEN DN EFAT5% (CEZ"F 7% %R &12%
HK$93 million) as at 31 December 2023. (ZEZZF 0% %R - R_BE_=F+_F=+—H8 REFLHEH
#1185 (CEZZF I BIB3TE )
RESULTS FEBEE
Table 1: Group’s results R AEBECEBER
For the year ended 31 December
BEE+-A=1+—HLEFE
J 2023 2022
— —E-=5F =
HK$mn % to sales HK$mn % to sales Change
HAEBET LEHERET L BB LEIHETRE AL 2]
Hong Kong SAR and Macau SAR A Bl & 78 Kz H [ 4 P9 392 65% 350 60% 12%
Mainland China F[E 9 ih 154 25% 166 28% (7%)
Singapore F N3 58 10% 69 12% (16%)
I
A Group revenue 75 @ I & 604 100% 585 100% 3%
Gross profit £ 305 50% 273 47% 12%
Total operating expenses #8= B3z (545) (90%) (608) (104%) 10%
Loss from operating activities & %& 2 #5518 (213) (35%) (122) (21%) (75%)
Finance costs fR 2 A% 2 (10) (2%) (10) (2%) 2%
Adjusted EBITDA* &AEEREH ERIE N ITE R THAI B A (68) (11%) (122) (21%) 44%
— Loss attributable to owners #E%5 A FE{E 518 (223) (37%) (132) (23%) (69%)

4 ANNUAL REPORT 2023 R



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEm R

Group same-store sales growth A~ E|[F 5 EZEIZ R
Group same-store gross profit growth Z< E 65 EFIE &

Net cash at 31 December R+ _B=+—H2ZIR&/FE

Inventory level at 31 December A+ B =+—HZF&KF
Inventory turnover (days) at 31 December R+ _—A=+—H2EFEAEH (X)

For the year ended 31 December

BE+"_A=+—HLEE

§
>
[
S
v
w
[}

=
v
=}

o

2023 2022
—E-= TET &
HK$mn % to sales HK$mn % to sales Change
HEBET LEHERET L HEBEETT LHERRR DL HE
5% (7%)
12% (10%)
185 93
145 172
177 201

#  Adjusted EBITDA (non-HKFRS measure) is calculated as loss before tax plus finance costs, depreciation of * o R EFE FRIE TE R BT GFE B EREGER G E)

property, plant and equipment and investment properties and right-of-use assets and minus interest income, with
adjustments to exclude results from impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and one-off

gain on disposal of the assets held for sale.

Revenue and gross profit

Since 2023, the post-epidemic market has gradually recovered and the foot traffic of stores has continued to
improve. The overall performance of the retail market in mainland China, Hong Kong SAR and Macau SAR

showed positive signs of recovery in varying degrees.

During the year under review, the Group recorded revenue of HK$604 million (2022: HK$585 million). Gross
profit was HK$305 million (2022: HK$273 million), with gross margin increased by 3% points to 50% (2022:

47%).

ERGRAEENLBERE W REREHENREEYELUR
CAREEZ ITE  HEFEWNA > TG B B
B EAREES A EN R E N E 2 BEZ — R0
e

Wz B EF

BEEA—Z_=—F ZFERINHSBEHMELES SEHTREREN
SoRENM MU RFEEBNFERFIMENSEHBEERRIRE LY
BTN TREENERERTR-

[CIEE4E P AN EE E 3B U B 6. 04B T (T2 = — 4 85 858 7T) ©

EN BB 05ET (CE - FE 1 8182.73(Em)  EFXEAEM3ET
PDEES0% (CE_HF147%) °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEm R

Total operating expenses and loss from operating activities

Total operating expenses to sales ratio decreased to 90% (2022: 104%). The slower industry recovery than
market expectations had a negative impact on the Group, and had therefore affected the results for the year
under review. Consequently, the Group recognised non-cash impairment on assets of HK$55 million (2022:
HK$78 million) during the year under review.

Finance costs

Finance costs amounted to HK$10 million (2022: HK$10 million), mainly comprised of interest on lease liabilities
of HK$9 million (2022: HK$10 million) representing the imputed interest expense accrued on the outstanding
balance of the lease liabilities.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company

As shown in Table 1, loss attributable to owners of the Company was HK$223 million (2022: HK$132 million).
Net margin was negative 37% (2022 negative 23%). The preceding commentaries cite the reasons.

6 ANNUAL REPORT 2023 R
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DISTRIBUTION NETWORK

As at 31 December 2023, the Group was present in 16 countries and regions around the world and had 519
(2022: 559) stores comprised of 168 (2022: 212) directly managed stores and 351 (2022: 347) franchised stores.

Table 2: Store composition by type and geographical location

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SPEIERE Sy
R =E+ B S+— B AREEHEGR R ERRNNE

SHHEAS19 (CTE - - & 5590 ' 8168/ (ZE - & :1212/)
EEEEEFHRISIE (T F 1347/ 158 Bl

R BERBMRMBB D ZIERHD

§
>
[
S
v
w
[}

=
v
=}

o

Hong Kong SAR and Macau SAR A7 & 7 K A [ 38 P9
Mainland China H1EQ P #f]

Singapore #N3

Other countries E{thE %

Total 485t

As at 31 December 2023
RZE-_=F+"H=+—H

As at 31 December 2022
RIZEZF+ZA=+—H

Directly Directly

managed Franchised managed Franchised
stores stores Total stores stores Total
HEEEEH RBEREEH it EREEEE RBEKEEHE “ast
30 - 30 26 - 26
122 - 122 171 - 171
16 - 16 15 - 15
- 351 351 - 347 347
168 351 519 212 347 559
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEm R

ANALYSIS BY MARKET
Hong Kong SAR and Macau SAR

In 2023, as the retail market in Hong Kong SAR gradually recovered from the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic,
the public’s overall willingness to consume increased, and the number of tourists to Hong Kong SAR also
rebounded to 60% of the level in 2019, reaching approximately 34 million. The wave of recovery has breathed
new life into the retail market and had positive impact on the customer traffic of the Group's stores. Driven by an
overall positive economic climate, the Group’s same-store sales in Hong Kong SAR increased by 5% year-on-year.

While the overall consumption sentiment has improved, there have been subtle changes in the consumption
habits of local customers. Hong Kong SAR residents are increasingly opting for revenge travel and shopping
across the border, leading to a decrease in local customer traffic, especially on weekends. At the same time, the
consumption preferences of mainland Chinese tourists have also evolved from simply shopping to focusing on
immersive cultural experiences. These changes have created challenges for local retail businesses.

However, the Group has taken a series of countermeasures in response to fluctuations in tourist numbers and
overall consumption sentiment. We offered exclusive discounts to tourists at stores located in tourist areas, while
we strengthened our promotion efforts on social media platforms. By sharing product promotions and relevant
information on such platforms, we aimed to attract tourists to follow our accounts and thereby expand the sales
from tourists in a targeted manner.

As for Macau SAR, its opening of the border ahead of Hong Kong SAR has been positive for the Group’s overall
business, with visitor arrivals have rebounded to 70% of that in 2019, reaching approximately 28 million. Sales
from tourists increased by 24%. According to the market conditions in Macau SAR, the preferences of mainland
Chinese tourists and the consumption power of customers, we offered exclusive discounts to boost sales for its
business. Benefiting from the positive overall economic sentiment, the Group’s same-store sales in Macau SAR
increased by 27% year-on-year.

8 ANNUAL REPORT 2023 R
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During the year under review, revenue in Hong Kong SAR and Macau SAR, including the retail and export
franchising business, was HK$392 million (2022: HK$350 million). Same-store sales for directly managed
stores rose 5% (2022: 2% decline) while same-store gross profit rose 22% (2022: 2% decline). Total
net retail floor area increased to 68,900 sqg. ft. (2022: 65,400 sqg. ft.). The number of directly managed
stores was 30 (2022: 26). Segment result was HK$7 million profit (2022: HK$141 million profit which
included an one-off gain on disposal of the assets held for sale of HK$174 million).

Mainland China

In 2023, with most of the epidemic prevention and border quarantine measures in mainland China lifted, citizens’
life gradually returned to normal and reconnected with the international market.

However, the unstable economic growth, slowdown in GDP growth and a deflation trend in the national
consumer price index in mainland China represented the overall uninspiring economic activities. People
became more prudent in their spending and gradually changed their consumption patterns. Thus, the overall
consumption in mainland China remained weak and the rebound of the retail market was slower than expected.
As a way out, the Group actively optimised or adjusted its brand positioning, product development, pricing
system, sales channels, etc., and reshaping its brand with cycling as the core. Meanwhile, the Group managed
the stock level by increasing discounts. From the perspective of cost control, the Group adjusted its sales network
as appropriate to reduce all unnecessary expenses, thus to improve operational efficiency.

Revenue in mainland China was HK$154 million (2022: HK$166 million). Same-store sales rose 46% (2022:
29% decline) and same-store gross profit recorded a 13% decline (2022: 45% decline). Total net retail floor
area decreased by 26% to 173,400 sq. ft. (2022: 233,000 sq. ft.). There was a total of 122 (2022: 171) directly
managed stores in mainland China. Segment result was HK$199 million loss (2022: HK$267 million loss).

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEm R

REBER FEEBRTPEIRFCESERY O EE ERBHNIRE
A3 92MET (B ZF B3 508 (B IEESMNEIENE
BEEFS% (T2 2F 2% BE)  BEEME EFA22% (2222
2% HKIE) o F D EREAREEIE NZEE6S,900F HR (ZZ — —F:65,400
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEm R

Singapore

Despite an increase in the number of travellers in 2023, the average days of staying decreased as compared
to 2021 and 2022, coupled with growing concerns about global economic deterioration and recession, local
residents became more prudent leading to corresponding decrease in spending. These had a negative impact on
the Group's sales in Singapore.

The revenue of Singapore operation was HK$58 million (2022: HK$69 million) during the year under review.
Same-store sales registered a 12% decrease (2022: 2% decline). Same-store gross profit recorded a 14% decline
(2022: 2% increase). Total net retail floor area increased by 4% to 20,200 sqg. ft. (2022: 19,500 sq. ft.). The
number of directly managed stores was 16 (2022: 15). The segment result was HK$35 million loss (2022: HK$8
million loss).

FINANCIAL POSITION

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had net cash balance of HK$185 million (2022: HK$93 million). The current
ratio was at 1.67 times (2022: 1.44 times) with a total liabilities to equity ratio at 161% (2022: 327%). As at 31
December 2023, the Group did not have any bank borrowings (2022: Nil) and the gearing ratio determined by
bank borrowings divided by total equity was 0% (2022: 0%). As at 31 December 2023, the Group had total loan
facility of HK$200 million (2022: HK$200 million) granted by an intermediate holding company. No facility was
utilised as at 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

The Group had certain investments and operations in countries that use currencies other than United States dollar
and Hong Kong dollar. The Group has not used any derivative contracts to hedge against its exposure to currency
risk. The Group will continue to monitor foreign currency risk exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency risk should the need arise.
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As at 31 December 2023, the Group's inventory turnover days* was 177 days, compared to 201 days in 2022.
The return on equity ratio for the year under review was negative 137% (2022: negative 70%).

*Inventory held at year end divided by cost of sales times 365 days

Contingent Liabilities

At as 31 December 2023, the Group had no material contingent liabilities.

Human Capital

As at 31 December 2023, the Group employed 900 (2022: 1,000) full-time equivalent employees in Hong Kong
SAR and Macau SAR, mainland China and Singapore. The total staff cost recorded during the year under review
was HK$209 million (2022: HK$221 million).

The Group adheres to a policy of acquiring, nurturing and retaining talented employees. We treasure and
proactively promote the teamwork spirit, and strive to cultivate a proactive and ever-improving culture.
Workshops in effective management and certified programmes were offered for office and shop staff at all levels.

We firmly believe that a vibrant and outstanding workforce is indispensable in driving business growth.
Knowledge sharing and continuous learning are highly valued. We encourage employees to progress and excel
every day through different types of trainings. We provide an e-platform to our employees, which is devised to
offer practical and experience-based knowledge and skills in customer service, selling, products, and other latest
marketing information, etc.

Meanwhile, we continue to adopt a performance-based remuneration system, including discretionary bonuses,
share options and wide-ranging employee benefits such as insurance and retirement schemes. The purposes
of these measures are to motivate employees to perform at their best in work and to provide them with stable
future development and benefits.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEm R

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM RIGHTS ISSUE

As disclosed in the prospectus dated 3 April 2023 and announcement dated 27 April 2023, the Company issued
852,362,086 ordinary shares with an aggregate nominal value of approximately HK$85,236,000 by way of rights
issue at a price of HK$0.370 per rights share on the basis of one (1) rights share for every two (2) then existing
shares to the qualifying shareholders (the “Rights Issue”). The Rights Issue would enable the Company to raise
funds for the proposed use as set out below, while at the same time, allowing the qualifying shareholders of the
Company to maintain their proportional shareholdings in the Company. The market price on 24 February 2023
on which the terms of the subscription were fixed was HK$0.470 per share. Upon completion of the Rights Issue,
the Company received net cash proceeds of approximately HK$313 million (the “Net Proceeds”) and the net price
(after deducting the cost and expenses of the Rights Issue) was approximately HK$0.367 per rights share. The
Company intended to apply the Net Proceeds as to: (i) approximately HK$31 million for its capital expenditure
for the Group’s expansion in mainland China; (i) approximately HK$63 million for marketing activities to reinvent
and promote the “bossini.X" brand; and (iii) approximately HK$219 million for other expenses for supporting the
expansion plan and the rebranding of the Group.

The following table sets forth the information in relation to the use of the Net Proceeds raised from the Rights
Issue:

Actual use of Net Proceeds
up to 31 December 2023
as originally intended

Intended use of Net Proceeds as disclosed
in the prospectus dated 3 April 2023
and announcement dated 27 April 2023
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Unutilised Net Proceeds
as at 31 December 2023

Intended use and expected timeline
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HK$31 million for the Group’s capital expenditure for its expansion ~ HK$16 million HK$15 million From May 2023 to April 2025
in mainland China
AEINTETRFAERRFEAMETRRNE AR A1 .6 TEIT A1 5T 8T M- _=FHRRAE_Z_HFMNA
HK$63 million for marketing activities to reinvent and promote HK$19 million HK$44 million From May 2023 to April 2025
the “bossini.X" brand
BHEe 3TEITAFEERMEE bossini. X1 iRV ETH ES) HE19TET BlE4ATET H_E_=FRRAE_ZT_HFNA
HK$219 million for other expenses for supporting HK$127 million HK$92 million From May 2023 to April 2025
the expansion plan and the rebranding of the Group
A2 1 9RETAFAERERA D KRR EENEMBAR AN 27187 BE9.2F 8T M- _=FHRRAE_Z_HFMNA
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The Group will continue to develop its business by rebranding of “bossini.X", conducting optimisation in brand
positioning, product development, pricing system and sales channels. Therefore, the utilisation of the Net
Proceeds are still on track and the unutilised Net Proceeds are expected to be utilised by April 2025.

OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, market condition will gradually recover as situations in mainland China, Hong Kong SAR and
Macau SAR completely return to normal. This will accelerate the development of retail industry and bring more
opportunities and growth potentials to relevant enterprises. Meanwhile, consumption demand will also show
stable growth momentum. Such positive trend will provide boarder development space as well as a series of
opportunities and challenges to the retail industry. We have noticed that consumer preferences of citizens and
tourists among mainland China, Hong Kong SAR and Macau SAR have somewhat changed. In order to capture
such opportunities, we will focus on the change of market trend and consumer behaviours more closely, and
flexibly adjust our strategies and business model.

In mainland China, market consensus expects that the government will launch a series of measures to stimulate
economy development, further promote domestic demand, and facilitate the increase of domestic consumption.
Mainland China still enjoys huge market potential. In order to cope with the change of consumer preferences,
the Group has modified the “bossini.X” brand. By making professional cycling the core of the product design
and using professional sports technology materials, the development of sports outerwear and light outdoor
apparel and footwear products that are easy to wear, clean up and be paired with, will attract a wider audience
of energetic young consumers and serve people’s lifestyle to pursue health and recreation. We will strategically
implement marketing campaigns and continue to sponsor the Chinese Cycling Team. In the future, the brand
will also cooperate with, among others, cycling clubs and sports talents to enhance our connection with target
consumers and diversify user experiences. In addition, the Group will continue to optimise sales channels
and streamline inefficient stores while identifying appropriate locations for new stores, in a view to improve
operational efficiency.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEm R

In Hong Kong SAR, we believe the business will remain challenging in the coming year. The Group will continue
to optimise the sales network in Hong Kong SAR and Macau SAR to maintain reasonable operating expenses,
and increase the sales points of the “bossini.X” brand through appropriate channels to increase its exposure
and achieve gradual brand integration between “bossini” and “bossini.X", transitioning from a brand of cost-
effective everyday clothing to functional light sports clothing. In addition to strengthening employee training,
improving sales skills, striving for higher conversion rate and increasing each single spending amount, we also
reinforce our social media to disseminate product promotions and information on social media platforms to
connect with existing and potential customers. These efforts are geared towards increasing sales and reducing the
discount rate of promotions, thereby improving the operating margin.

Furthermore, the Group will continue to identify suitable partners for its future development in overseas markets
to expand its footprint in emerging economic regions.

We are focusing our resources on rebranding of “bossini.X”, conducting optimisation and adjustment in brand
positioning, product development, pricing system and sales channels. The newly positioned products are expected
to be fully launched on the market in the second half of 2024, with the goal of making “bossini.X” the most
influential Chinese apparel brand in cycling.
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The Board is committed to maintain a solid and transparent framework of corporate governance for the
Company and its subsidiaries and will continue to review its effectiveness.

The Company has adopted the Code Provisions (“Code Provisions”) as stated in the Corporate Governance Code
("CG Code") contained in Appendix C1 to the Rules governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) as the corporate governance code of the Company. The Board is committed
to complying with the Code Provisions as stated in the CG Code to the extent that the directors of the Company
("Directors”) consider it is applicable and practical to the Company.

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the Code Provisions in the CG Code.

Board of Directors
Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the Board, which assumes the responsibility for
the leadership and control of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the business of the Group
by directing and supervising the Group’s affairs. All the Directors should make decisions objectively in the best
interests of the Company.

The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or through the Board committees. To ensure the Board
is in a position to exercise its powers in an informed and effective manner, the management is responsible for
routine operations of the Group and provides updates to the Board.

The authorities reserved to the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee are more
particularly discussed below.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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™\ Board composition EETHEMN

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills and experience desirable for effective EEENENBRARBANEEREIAKIIEEE 2RI R &
leadership of the Company and independence in decision making.

The Board during the year under review and up to the date of this report were: REBENTHEARRSHRIL ESFNARNT:
Executive Directors WITES
Mr. ZHAO Jianguo (took the additional role as Chairman with effect from 4 April 2023) HERSCE (B2 - = FOA M BRI EE gD
Mr. CHEUNG Chi (Chief Executive Officer) RE A ((TBHEE)

N Ms. YU Xin (appointed with effect from 4 April 2023) RFZL (B2 _=FNANHEESE)

5% 2.3 Non-executive Directors EHITES

g

)imﬂi gé Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco BIEARSLE

Hag Mr. Victor HERRERO (resigned as Chairman and Non-executive Director with effect from 4 April 2023) Victor HERREROSA (HE -2 - = FHBMWAREHIFE RIFNTESE)
Independent Non-executive Directors BiERITES
Mr. LEE Kwok Ming ZEREE
Prof. SIN Yat Ming 7t B BREER
Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong BiEamit

The biographical details of directors, senior management and chief executive officer are set out on pages 37 to EE - EREEBRTBRH 2 EEF EHNAREEITE4 B
41 of this report.
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The Company has the following 3 Board committees and the current members of the committees are listed
below:

Audit Committee

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
BERELARS

ARBRE MI—EEFEZER ZSEEZENREREHRIIUT:

Remuneration Committee Nomination Committee

Name of Directors EE 4 BEREEE FNEET REZEg
Mr. ZHAO Jianguo BB 44 - - c
Mr. CHEUNG Chi 5R & 4 = M M
Mr. LEE Kwok Ming ZEEBF 4 C M M
Prof. SIN Yat Ming %t B BR#¢#% M C M
Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong BB 238544 M M M

Notes:
C  Chairman of the relevant Board committees
M Member of the relevant Board committees

Save as disclosed in the "Biographical Details of Directors, Senior Management and Chief Executive Officer”
section, the Directors had no financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationship with each other
as at 31 December 2023.

Non-executive Directors

All Non-executive Directors (“NEDs”) and Independent Non-executive Directors (“INEDs") of the Company are
appointed for specific terms, their length of service with the Company is either (i) 1 year from the dates of
their appointments which will be automatically renewed or (i) for a period of 3 years from the dates of their
appointments, unless early termination by either party serving not less than 3 months prior written notice or
upon mutual consent on short notice. They are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meetings of the Company ("AGM") in accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year under review, the Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least 3 INEDs with at least 1 INED possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise.
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The Company has received written annual confirmation from each INED of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. All INEDs are also members of the Company's Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. These INEDs are high calibre executives who bring a diversified range
of expertise and serve the crucial function of providing checks and balances for safeguarding the interests of
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) and the Group as a whole.

Board Independence

The Company recognises that Board independence is essential for a good corporate governance and has in place
effective mechanisms as below that underpin a strong independent Board and that independent views and input
from Directors are conveyed to the Board:

1) The Board must have at least 3 INEDs and the majority of the members of each of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee are INEDs.

2) Al INEDs are required to provide annual confirmations of independence and the Nomination Committee
assess their independence annually.

3) The Directors can have full and timely access to any related information so as to ensure the Directors are in
the position to exercise their powers in an informed manner.

4) The Directors may take independent professional advice if necessary.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Mr. LEE Kwok Ming, Prof. SIN Yat Ming and Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong and the Nomination Committee
reviewed and considered them to be independent. All INEDs are members of the Company's Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee with at least majority of the members of each committees
are INEDs. The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or through the Board committees. The
monthly management accounts and updates have been regularly provided to the Directors in a timely manner.
The Board considered that the mechanism was effective for the year under review.

The governance framework and mechanisms are kept under regular review to align with international best
practice and to ensure their effectiveness.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separated. Mr. ZHAO Jianguo is the Chairman and Mr.
CHEUNG Chi is the Chief Executive Officer. The positions of Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are held by
separate individuals in order to preserve independence and a balance of views and judgement.

The responsibilities of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are clearly defined and set out in writing. The
Chairman is responsible for the overall direction of the Group. Supported by other Executive Directors and the
senior management, the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the overall management and strategic planning
of the Group.

Training for Directors

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on his/her appointment,
so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Group
and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements. There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing and professional
development to Directors at the Company's expense whenever necessary.

The Company provides regular updates and presentations on changes and developments relating to the Group's
business and the legislative and regulatory environments to the Directors.

The Directors are committed to complying with Code Provision C.1.4 of the CG Code on Directors’ training. All
Directors have participated in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills and provided a record of training they received for the year ended 31 December 2023 to the Company.
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Directors’ Continuous Professional Development EEVREBEXERE

The Directors are encouraged to enroll in relevant professional development programme to ensure that they are RABEEEE2HMMHEEZESE LURFRRENTZERNREARE
aware of their responsibilities under the legal and regulatory requirements applicable to the Company. During Z2EBREREERE FT2EE-REN ARANESREEMESHE
the year, the Company has provided the materials and training on directors’ duties, corporate governance and CEERMRNFRER ZMERIBN SERERERBITHAE 2 X#H
updates on regulatory development for continuous professional development of their knowledge and skills in IS REMRHE R E LR

performance of their functions.

M
S
[0
B

MBIABI ssaulsng

The Company has maintained records of training received by the Directors. To summarise, the Directors received RABIGEREERZEII Iz REMe  EENFRNEETUTAA
trainings on the following areas to update and develop their skills and knowledge during the year: BIEE I A B i o3 B A e B A4 -

=0
R 39
#TD
A2
iz g ®
58
mes
Mr. ZHAO Jianguo #4872 [ 5t 4 v
Mr. CHEUNG Chi 5R%5 564 v
P Ms. YU Xin SRBT &+
-§ (appointed with effect from 4 April 2023) (EZZ Z=FN B M HEEEZ(T)" v
o Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco Z&IE N4 4E v
% Mr. Victor HERRERO Victor HERRERO4C 4
% (resigned with effect from 4 April 2023) (B Z= = = 4098 0 B L 4T) N/A B
8 Mr. LEE Kwok Ming Z=EBR 44 v
@ Prof. SIN Yat Ming %t F1 BE %3 v
Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong %5 3 4t 4& v
The Group's legal adviser has provided explanation to Ms. Yu on all applicable requirements and procedures T RERGEEEMIEEEAENEERERERFUAEREM
for making an undertaking and the possible consequences of making any false declaration or giving false EREANREREERENUEELENERAS L TIEHRE -5
information. Ms. Yu has confirmed that she understood her obligations as a director of the listed issuer. GRS TRRIES T ABBMER -

fok B Sk

uonewWIOLUI [eDURUIY
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Directors’ Attendance and Time Commitments

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board met 5 times including for considering and approving the
financial results for the year ended 31 December 2022, financial results for the 6 months ended 30 June 2023,
rights issue, renewal of Directors’ service agreements and continuing connected transactions. At these board
meetings, the Board also reviewed and discussed the Group's business updates and strategies.

The individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings of the Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and general meetings for the year ended 31 December 2023 is set out below:

Number of meetings attended/held
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B2 HERRFIT HE

BETZT=-F+ A=+ HLFE - EFEEETARE %I;z%
BRHMERE_ T _—F+_A=-+—HLEFENUBER BE_Z
T=FRA=THIENERMM B EE R B %%H&?m’]&h”;
FEXZ NZFEFEER D EFTT R KR EENERER
R B

%E%ﬁ%ﬁz%_%:—ﬁﬂ— A=+—HLEFENEFE BEREZEE"
FMEEE RREETERMRRAG ZHERHINT:

HER EHERE —
Remuneration Nomination Sod
Audit Committee Committee Committee  Annual General Special General QE i
Board Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetlng Meeting Meetings g2 @
BEEEE; BEZZEEEE HFNZEE8E RLZETER RRBERE BRRRAE 55 ﬁ
Q_% I\
Se S|
Total Number of Meetings Held 217 & 242 8¢ 5 2 2 1 1 2
Name of Directors EE %
Executive Directors HI{TE S
Mr. ZHAO Jianguo i EE BT o 4 5/5 N/A 3E A N/A RE N/A B 11 2/2
Mr. CHEUNG Chi 5R%8 o4 5/5 N/A 58 B 2/2 11 11 2/2
Ms. YU Xin SBfZ =+
(appointed with effect from 4 April 2023)
(BEZZE_=FMBMNHEEZT) 3/3 N/A R 5E N/A 38 A N/A 38 A 1/1 1/1
Non-executive Directors JEHITEE
Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco ZZBIER 4 5/5 N/A 35 A N/A R iE N/A R iE A 1/1 2/2
Mr. Victor HERRERO Victor HERRERO%t 4
(resigned with effect from 4 April 2023)
(BEZZE_=FMBMHET) 2/2 N/A R 3E N/A 38 A 1/1 N/A R 5E B 11
Independent Non-executive Directors BILIEHITESE
Mr. LEE Kwok Ming Z=EIR3 5t 4 5/5 2/2 2/2 171 11 2/2
Prof. SIN Yat Ming /4t B BR##% 4/5 2/2 2/2 11 1/1 2/2
Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong BB & 38 5 4 5/5 2/2 212 17 171 212
Note: The attendance figure represents actual attendance/the number of meetings a Director is entitled to attend. Mgk . HERBIEESERHE IR ERHEZGZZ R

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED E i EEEE AR AR 2 1



i3
ME
Pr
g
it
=]

sanqisuodsai
|eros ajeiodio)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ﬂé% E./éﬁﬁ [

The Chairman of the Board, Chairman of the Audit Committee, Chairman of the Remuneration Committee,
Chairman of the Nomination Committee and the Company’s external auditor attended the annual general
meeting held in 2023 and were available to answer questions.

Practices and conduct of meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors in accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company.
For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable information are generally sent to all Directors
at least 3 days before each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors apprised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company and to enable them to make informed decisions.

The Board meets regularly at least 4 times every year. The Directors participated in person or through electronic
means of communication. Regular Board meetings are scheduled in the prior year to provide sufficient notice
to the Directors and facilitate the maximum attendance of the Directors. The Board members are given an
opportunity to include additional matters for discussion and are supplied with relevant information by the senior
management and reports relating to the Group’s operational and financial performance before the scheduled
Board meetings in a timely manner.

Draft and final versions of minutes of Board and Committee meetings will be sent to all Directors or Committee
members for their comments and records respectively. The Board members can seek independent professional
advice in performing their duties at the Group’s expense, if necessary.

If a Director has a conflict of interest in a transaction to be considered by the Board and the Board has
determined this interest to be material, the individual is required to declare his/her interest and to abstain
from voting. INEDs who have no material interest in the transaction shall be present at the full Board meeting
approving such transaction.
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Board Committees

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company had 3 committees, namely, the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
Terms of reference of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee are available
on the Stock Exchange's website and the Company’s website at www.bossini.com. The Board committees are
provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense. The attendance of
individual committee members is set out hereinabove.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee plays a vital role in corporate governance of the Group. It currently comprises 3 INEDs,
namely Mr. LEE Kwok Ming, Prof. SIN Yat Ming and Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong. Mr. Lee, who has professional
qualifications in accounting and financial management expertise, is the Chairman of the Audit Committee. No
member of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors. The Audit
Committee is provided with sufficient resources, including the advice of external auditors and internal audit
advisor to discharge its duties. The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are set out clearly in
the terms of reference which are available on the Company’s website. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
consolidated financial results for the year ended 31 December 2023.

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the accounting policies and practices adopted by the Group
with an Executive Director, the Company’s external auditors and risk management and internal control review
advisor. It also discussed matters related to financial reporting, internal controls, risk management, appointment
of external auditors and corporate governance. The Audit Committee is also responsible for reviewing the interim
and annual results of the Group. The attendance of individual committee members is set out hereinabove.

The major works of the Audit Committee during the year were as follows:

(@) reviewed the financial results for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the interim financial results for the
6 months ended 30 June 2023;

(b) approved and confirmed the annual audit plan of risk management and internal control review advisor; and
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(c) reviewed the report on internal audit results and internal controls prepared by risk management and internal
control review advisor.

The Audit Committee received written confirmation from the external auditor on its independence and
objectivity.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with specific written terms of reference. The
Remuneration Committee consists of 1 Executive Director and 3 INEDs, namely Mr. CHEUNG Chi, Mr. LEE
Kwok Ming, Prof. SIN Yat Ming and Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong. Prof. Sin is the Chairman for the Remuneration
Committee. The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties. The major
roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are set out clearly in the terms of reference which included
the duties specified in the CG Code and are available on the Company’s website. The attendance of individual
committee members is set out hereinabove.

No Director is involved in any decisions as to his/her own remuneration. The Group's remuneration policy seeks
to provide a fair market remuneration so as to attract, retain and motivate high quality staff. The Company
adopted Code Provision E.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code with the model of the Remuneration Committee to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration package of individual executive Directors and senior
management.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the remuneration packages and
performances of Directors and reviewed the adjustment of the exercise prices and the number of shares of the
Company to be issued upon exercise of the granted and outstanding share options due to rights issue of the
Company in April 2023.

The Remuneration Committee reviewed, approved and recommended to the board the grant of share options
on 20 June 2023 to two Directors, the then co-chief executive officer namely, Mr. CHANG Min Huei and an
employee of the Company (collectively, the “Grantees”) to subscribe for an aggregate of 43,031,011 Shares
under the 2013 Share Option Scheme.
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The Remuneration Committee considered the grant of share options as a reward to the Grantees who have
contributed or will contribute to the Group and an incentive to the Grantees to work towards enhancing the
value of the Company and its Shares. With respect to each Grantee’s experiences and value in the Group, the
Grantees have demonstrated their contribution and dedication to the Group in their respective positions, and in
view of the reasons set out above, the Remuneration Committee is of view that the grant of Share Options with
no performance target aligned with the purpose of the 2013 Share Option Scheme to motivate the Grantees and
reinforce their commitment to long term services of the Group.

Having considered the cancellation of the previous granted share options to Mr. Chang on 16 November 2021
(the "Previous Grant”), the contribution of Mr. Chang since his appointment as Co-Chief Executive Officer in
May 2021 and the exercisable period of the Previous Grant, the Remuneration Committee believed that the
new grant of share options to Mr. Chang with the first vesting period shorter than 12 months would be able
to provide incentive to him to devote to the business performance, the continuous competitiveness and future
growth of the Group, to reinforce his commitment to long term service of the Group and to compensate him
for the cancellation of the Previous Grant with some of the share options have already vested and exercisable by
him, which was in line with the purpose of the 2013 Share Option Scheme. All share options granted on 20 June
2023 to Mr. Chang have lapsed in 2023 following his resignation effective on 22 August 2023.

If the Grantee ceases to be an eligible employee of the Group (including executive directors of the Company) by
reason of termination of employment that he or she has been guilty of misconduct, or has committed any act of
bankruptcy or has become insolvent or has made arrangement or composition with his or her creditors generally,
or has been convicted of any criminal offence involving his or her integrity or honesty, the share options granted
will be lapsed and shall be no effect. For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 20 June
2023.
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Since the 2013 Share Option Scheme was expired on 12 November 2023, the Remuneration Committee
considered to adopt the 2023 Share Option Scheme in order to continue and maintain the incentive
arrangements for the eligible participants. The Remuneration Committee reviewed the scheme rules of the
2023 Share Option Scheme and considered it was in the best interest and for the benefit of the Company and
Shareholders as a whole to adopt the 2023 Share Option Scheme and the scheme rules were in compliance with
the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the Company’s circular dated 22
November 2023. The Remuneration Committee approved and proposed for approval by the shareholders of the
Company the scheme rules of the 2023 Share Option Scheme.

Details of remuneration payable to the Directors and senior management and the five highest paid employees
as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix D2 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises 5 members, the majority of which were INEDs, namely Mr.
ZHAO lJianguo (Chairman of the committee), Mr. CHEUNG Chi, Mr. LEE Kwok Ming, Prof. SIN Yat Ming and Mr.
CHEONG Shin Keong. The attendance of individual committee members is set out hereinabove.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee include the following:

(@) review the structure, size and diversity (including without limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational
background or professional experience) of the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(b) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships. In identifying suitable candidates, the
Committee shall consider candidates on merit and against the objective criteria, with due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board;

(c) review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate; and review the objectives that the Board has set for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and the progress on achieving the objectives; and make disclosure
of its review results in the Corporate Governance Report annually;
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(d) assess the independence of INEDs; and

(e) make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer, taking into account the
Company’s corporate strategy and the mix of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity needed in the
future, together with the Board, as appropriate.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee (i) reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board, (ii) assessed the independence of the INEDs, (iii) reviewed the re-appointment of Directors and (iv) assessed
the qualification and experience of the new Executive Director with reference to a range of diversity perspectives
and the experience and qualities of the new directors. In April 2023, the Company was pleased to welcome
Ms. YU Xin to Board. The Nomination Committee considered that following the appointment of Ms. Yu as an
executive Director, the Board had achieved gender diversity and possessed skill and expertise and a diverse mix
appropriate for the business of the Company.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of
its performance. Its measurable objectives on selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the diversity of the Board from perspectives the FRIRLEEGNESEANS S tAERNEERRE BHNE
composition of the Board from diversified angles up to date of this report: FEEZbER:
No. of Directors
BEEAH
Gender: Male 6
el St
Female 1
gk
-n Age Group: 31-40 1
=89 FHAER 31-40%%
ﬁgg 41-50 1
D 41-508%
T 51-60 2
Mo 51-605%
>60 3
605U =
Length of Service (year): <1 1
ARFEEHR () DR1E
1-5 4
1-56
6-10 1
6-104F
>10 1
10X £
The Nomination Committee considered the current Board composition had achieved necessary diversity B EEeR AR EEeNARDERMNEY LTt (BEMRZ T
appropriate including gender diversity for the business development of the Group. The Company has appointed 1) IEEAREBR 2R B A AT N ERNE T R L EEE IR
a female director during the year. Maintaining the current composition on the basis of the abovementioned ot S ERIAER N T E N EENEE e L b EE R
perspectives would be the objectives to achieve board diversity in 2024. The Nomination Committee will review 2EEeBe TN EEe AR RS T UBGEISEAND I HE

the composition and diversity of the Board on a regular basis to ensure its continued effectiveness and ensure (REETA BB IEEE MM REEeBEMNER 2Tt
that there is a pipeline of potential successors to the Board to ensure gender diversity could be maintained at
Board level.
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The Company has also taken and will continue to take steps to promote gender diversity at all levels of the
Company, including but not limited to the Board and senior management levels and improve the composition of
the Board in order to develop a pipeline of potential successors. As at 31 December 2023, approximately 83% of
our total workforce (including senior management) were female. We will continue with our endeavor to maintain
reasonable female representation in our workforce.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities Insurance

Appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against the Directors
and officers of the Company and its subsidiaries arising out of corporate activities of the Group has been
arranged by the Company.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance duties including:
(a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the corporate governance code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

During the year under review, the Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance practices and the
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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Company Secretary

During the year, Ms. CHEUNG Wai Ling has duly complied with the relevant professional training requirement
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

On 1 March 2024, Mr. WONG Siu Pan was appointed as the company secretary of the Company in replacement
of Ms. Cheung, who has resigned on the same day.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The management has the responsibility to maintain appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems, and the Board has the responsibility to review and monitor the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control systems at least annually covering financial, operational and compliance
controls, to ensure that the systems in place are adequate and effective.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are, however, designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board considers it would be more cost effective to engage external consultant to carry out the internal audit
function and the external consultant will review the the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
annually which is adequate for ensuring that the systems in place are adequate and effective. As a result, the
Group does not have an internal audit department. During the year, the Group has engaged Acclime Consulting
(Hong Kong) Limited (“Acclime”), as its risk management and internal control review advisor for the year ended
31 December 2023, to review the Group’s risk management system and internal control systems.

The procedures used to identify, evaluate and manage major risks by the Group are summarised as follows:
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Risk Identification

e |dentifies risks that may potentially affect the Group’s business and operations.

Risk Assessment

e Assesses the risks identified by using the assessment criteria developed by the management; and
e Considers the impact on the business and the likelihood of their occurrence.

Risk Response

e Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of the risk assessment; and
e Determines the risk management strategies and internal control procedures to prevent, avoid or mitigate the
risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

e Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risks and ensures that appropriate internal control
procedures are in place;

e Revises the risk management strategies and internal control procedures in case of any significant change of
situation; and

e Reports the results of risk monitoring to the management and the Board regularly.

The Board considered that major risks of the Group were managed within the acceptable level and the
management will continue to monitor the residual risks and report to the Board on an ongoing basis.

The management and various departments conduct periodic self-assessment of the effectiveness of the internal
control policies and procedures. Acclime assisted the Group to perform a review of the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control systems that covers financial, operational and compliance controls.

The Board, supported by the Audit Committee, is directly responsible for risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. Based on the reviews performed by the management,
comments from the Audit Committee and recommendations for areas of improvement from external auditor and
risk management and internal control review advisor, the Board is of the view that the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems are effective and adequate for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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The Company maintains a framework for the handling and dissemination of inside information and the disclosure
policy of the framework sets out the procedures and internal controls to ensure inside information remains
confidential until such information is appropriately disclosed and the announcement of such information is made
in a timely manner in compliance with the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") and the Listing Rules.

Whistle-blowing Policy and Anti-corruption Policy

Whistle-blowing and anti-corruption policies are established. More details and the mechanism of the policies
could be found in the 2023 Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a policy with regard to the declaration of dividends. Such policy aims to allow
shareholders to participate in the Company’s profits and for the Company to retain adequate reserves for future
growth.

The dividend policy also allows the Company to declare and pay special dividends and/or other distribution in
addition to the interim and final dividends. The declaration and payment of dividends are determined at the sole
discretion of the Board, subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company, where appropriate. The
payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the Bermuda law and Bye-Laws. The Board shall
review from time to time the dividend policy and shall amend as necessary.

Dividends paid to shareholders may be in cash, or scrip dividend, or distribution in specie, or a combination of the
aforesaid. In proposing any dividend payout and/or determining the form, frequency and/or the amount of such
dividend payout, the Board shall take into account, inter alia: the operating fund required to provide sufficient
cash to meet the Group’s day-to-day financial obligations in a timely manner; the expected capital expenditure,
future expansion, other investment plan and other funding requirements; actual and expected financial
performance, financial conditions and cash flow; retained profits and distributable reserves, and other factors that
the Directors deem appropriate etc.
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Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Bossini Group Policy laid down a code of conduct regarding the director’s securities transactions in terms as
stringent as those set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") contained in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules. Based on the specific enquiry made, all Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code and the Bossini Group
Policy throughout the year. Employees are not encouraged to deal in the securities of the Company within 30
days and 60 days before the interim and the annual results announcements respectively and prohibited to make
use of inside information to deal in the securities of the Company.

Financial Reporting and External Auditors’ Remuneration

The Directors acknowledge the responsibility for preparing the financial statements which give a true and fair
view of the financial position and of the financial performance and cash flows of the Group on a going concern
basis with the support from the Finance Department. The responsibilities of the Group's external auditor with
respect to the financial statements are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 74 to 82.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the auditors’ remuneration in relation to statutory audit work of the
Group amounted to HK$2.36 million, of which a sum of HK$2.06 million was paid to the Group’s principal
external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC"”). The remuneration for PwC in respect of audit services and
non-audit services amounted to approximately HK$2.06 million and HK$0.56 million respectively. The sum for
non-audit services included HK$0.25 million for the review performed on the Group’s interim results, HK$0.1
million for other assurance service and HK$0.21 million for tax services.
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Responsibilities in respect of the Financial Statements

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable assessment in annual and interim
reports and other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. The
Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2023. The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” contained in this
annual report.

Shareholders’ Rights

The Company has only one class of shares. All shares have the same voting rights and are entitled to the dividend
declared. The rights of the Shareholders are set out in, among other things, the Bye-Laws and the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (“Companies Act”).

Convening special general meeting on requisition

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company or at the registered office of the Company, to require a
special general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition
pursuant to the Bye-Law 62 and Section 74 of the Companies Act. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the
provision of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act.

The written requisition requiring a special general meeting to be called can be sent to the principal office of
the Company as set out in the “Company Information” section of this annual report for the attention of the
Company Secretary.

Proposing resolution at general meeting

Shareholders may by written requisition request for including a resolution relating to matters in a general meeting
by following the requirements and procedures as set out in Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act.
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Subject to the provisions of the above-mentioned sections of the Companies Act, on the written requisition of
members representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights or 100 members, at the expense of
the requisitionists unless the Company otherwise resolves, the Company shall give Shareholders notice of any
resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting and a relevant statement.

Procedures for nomination of Directors for election

Under Bye-Law 102(A) of the Bye-Laws, Shareholders are entitled to elect any person to be a Director at the
annual general meeting or at any special general meeting by following the requirement set out in Bye-Law 103 of
the Bye-Laws. Details of the procedures for nomination of Directors for election are available on the Company’s
website at www.bossini.com.

Voting by poll

The rights of Shareholders and the procedures for demanding a poll on resolutions at general meetings are
contained in the Bye-Laws. In accordance with Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, all resolutions put to vote at
general meetings of the Company are taken by way of poll except where the chairman of the meeting, in good
faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by
a show of hands. Details of the poll voting procedures will be set out in the circular sent to Shareholders prior to
each meeting. The chairman of a meeting shall ensure that an explanation is provided of the detailed procedures
for conducting a poll and answer any questions from Shareholders on voting by poll. After each general meeting,
the poll results will be published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company in the manner
prescribed under Rule 13.39(5) of the Listing Rules.

Shareholders” Communication Policy

Following the shareholders communication policy of the Company, the Board is committed to providing
clear and full information on the Group to Shareholders through the publication of notices, announcements,
circulars, interim and annual reports. Moreover, additional information is also available to Shareholders through
the Investor Relations section on the Company's website. The Board also welcomes the views of Shareholders
on matters affecting the Group and encourages them to attend Shareholder's meetings to communicate any
concerns they might have with the Board or management directly. Shareholders could also send email directly at
IR@bossini.com for any enquiries.
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There are various channels of communication available for the Shareholders. The Company has reviewed the
implementation and effectiveness of the shareholder communication policy during the year by benchmarking
the policies and measures adopted by other listed companies in Hong Kong. The measures in the policy were
comparable to the standard generally adopted by listed companies in Hong Kong and were able to facilitate
timely and ongoing communication with Shareholders and thus be considered to be effective.

Corporate Transparency and Investor Relations

The Group disseminates information on business development on a timely basis through various channels to
maintain transparency of its operation. The Company meets individually with analysts and institutional investors
from time to time to facilitate their analysis on the Group. The Company also holds group meetings with them in
which the Company’s management directly distributes relevant information and addresses to their queries.

At the special general meeting of the Company held on 21 March 2023, special resolution has been passed
by Shareholders for approving the amendments to the Bye-laws in order to conform to the core shareholders
protection standards set out in the Listing Rules. Details of the amendments are set out in the circular of the

Company dated 3 March 2023.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

ZHAO lJianguo
Chairman

Hong Kong SAR
20 March 2024
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR I\/IANAGEI\/IENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Executive Directors

Mr. ZHAO Jianguo, aged 59, was appointed in July 2020. He is also the chairman of the Company and the
chairman of the Nomination Committee. He has extensive experience in business operation and marketing and
distribution of consumer products in mainland China and is the head of the consumables business of Viva Goods
Company Limited (“Viva Goods”) (stock code: 933) (formerly known as Viva China Holdings Limited (stock
code : 8032)). He served in different positions in the group of Li Ning Company Limited (stock code: 2331) in
its early stages. He is the founder and a director of It RIEEIREEIEFRAE (Beijing Henggu Investment
Management Co., Ltd.) which is principally engaged in investment and asset management since May 2008. Mr.
Zhao was also a director of IEREEKREEEEIEHBRAE (Beijing Eagles Fund Management Co., Ltd) from
November 2015 to January 2019. This fund management company focuses on diversified technology investment,
including mobile internet and technology, media, and telecom sectors. Mr. Zhao is the brother-in-law of Mr. LI
Chun and Mr. LI Ning, both being substantial shareholders of the Company (within the meaning of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance).

Mr. Zhao graduated from Tianjin University of Sport in 1987 with professional physical qualification. In 1985, he
won the National Gymnastics Championship in mainland China.

$ I_.ln }E& E&nvud&:ZﬁﬁFﬂi |

HITES

MEESE RFSI N TF L AESR-RTAERREFR
REEEEZIF-BNPEANMAVHE REBZERTHEH KD
FHEEAEEER RIREIFNBHAERAT (TFEREE)) RO AE:
933) (FIMBIFNFEERBRAT (RIDRHE:8032)) Z HEREFRE
B RFHNFEARAT (RMASK:2331) EEEESERE- 5_7
TNFLAE RAILRERREEEARABDZAIMAKRES uZ
TERFERENEEEE-BAETEN _S—0F+—AEZ 71
F-AEILEREERERETEERRADZES, Eﬁ%%éﬁ@ﬂ%
ARSTEZRXKRE GEBHEMERRE EERRIBEEE L

ERERBEERR RESKPERIIFRT 2 HE) FELERTE
FeEZ IRkKe
BMAER - NANECEEERRERES 2 NSEPHREMNER R

—NNEF KRPEAMEIGEEEBREEELERE.

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED E i EEEE AR AR 3 7

p==
=

EEER

wv
s
[e]
o
o
()
=
©
()
I=
=
Y—
o
4+
-
o
[oX
()
o




£2

=)
=

X
[¢]
e}
o]
3
3
(@]
o,
5
o
o
8.
@
n
q
(@]
=
1%

=]
=+

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

B BAREEEBRITHERZEESB

Mr. CHEUNG Chi, aged 57, was appointed in July 2020 and is also the Chief Executive Officer and a member
of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. He is currently the chief financial
officer of Viva Goods (stock code: 933). He is a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Cheung is
also a director of Viva China Consumables Holdings Limited and Dragon Leap Consumables Limited, being the
substantial shareholders of the Company (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance). He has
over 30 years’ experience in financial management, corporate finance, acquisition and merger, post investment
management and administrative management. Mr. Cheung also possesses extensive experience in apparel
business. He was an executive director and the chief financial officer of Win Hanverky Holdings Limited (stock
code: 3322), an integrated sportswear manufacturer, distributor and retailer for international sports and fashion
brands, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”). He was the executive vice president and chief financial officer of Aspire Holdings Limited,
which is a member of China Mobile Limited. Mr. Cheung was also the chief financial officer of eBIS Company Ltd.
and NIT Education Group, the financial controller of Liuzhou ZF Machinery Co. Ltd. and a senior consultant of
Arthur Andersen (Shanghai) Business Consulting Co. Ltd.

Mr. Cheung holds a Degree of Bachelor of Arts (Hons) in Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong
and a Degree of Executive Master of Business Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.

Ms. YU Xin, aged 34, was appointed in April 2023. She is a director of various subsidiaries of the Company.
Prior to her appointment as an executive Director, Ms. Yu was a project manager of the Group, responsible for
brand and product planning. She has extensive experience in the fashion design and the research and analysis on
the mainland China investment market. Ms. Yu was an investment manager of Beijing Eagles Investment Fund
Management Co., Ltd (ItREERXREESEEARRAT) from November 2015 to June 2018. From March
2015 to November 2015, she worked as an assistant to the manager of running sports marketing department of
Li-Ning (China) Sports Goods Co., Ltd. (% (FE) $85 B RABRAF) . From July 2011 to July 2014, she was
an assistant to the president of Beijing Yixin Yi Yi Culture Communication Co., Ltd Gt RI8FHFECEHEAR
FEAR]). Ms. Yu is a niece of Mr. LI Ning, being substantial shareholder of the Company (within the meaning
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance).

Ms. Yu graduated from the Art and Design School in fashion design of Beijing University of Technology and was
awarded a Degree of Bachelor of Arts in July 2011.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR I\/IANAGEI\/IENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Non-Executive Director

Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco, age 45, was appointed in July 2020. He is currently the deputy chairman and
chief executive officer of Laws Fashion Group Limited (the “"LAWSGROUP"), one of the global industry leader
in garment manufacturing and fashion retailers. LAWSGROUP is also engaged in property development and
investment in Hong Kong. Mr. Law is responsible for overseeing the LAWSGROUP's manufacturing operations,
fashion retailing, property development and series of industrial building revitalization projects.

Mr. Law graduated from University of Toronto, Canada with major in Architecture and minor in Fine Art History
and obtained Honours Bachelor of Arts in 2002. He is also the member of University of Toronto (Hong Kong)
Foundation Board, member of The Advisory Committee of School of Fashion and Textiles, The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University (2022 to 2024) and the Council member, Hong Kong Metropolitan University (2022-2025).

Mr. Law is a member of Textiles and Garment Subsector of the Election Committee of The Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (2021 to 2026). He was appointed the Honorary Chairman of Hong
Kong Woollen & Synthetic Knitting Manufacturers' Association Limited effective from 1 January 2023 and has
been the chairman of Textile Council of Hong Kong Limited since 2024.

Mr. Law is a director and sole shareholder of Keystar Limited, being the substantial shareholder of the Company
(within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

B BAREEEBRITHERZEESB

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LEE Kwok Ming, aged 66, was appointed in July 2020 and is also the chairman of the Audit Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. He holds a
Higher Diploma in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic and a Master of Science degree in Business
Administration from the University of Bath, United Kingdom. Mr. Lee is currently an independent non-executive
director of Want Want China Holdings Limited (stock code: 151), Lianhua Supermarket Holdings Co., Ltd.
(stock code: 980) and Tam Jai International Co. Limited (stock code: 2217), the shares of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. From June 2007 to March 2020, he was the chief financial officer of
Stella International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1836), the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Lee has more than 30 years' financial management experience and extensive experience
in corporate finance such as mergers and acquisitions. He assumed the position of chief financial officer in a
number of listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Lee is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and an associate member of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants.

Prof. SIN Yat Ming, aged 68, was appointed in October 2005 and is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Prof.
Sin holds a Doctor of Philosophy in Business Administration from the University of British Columbia, Canada,
a Master of Business Administration from the University of Texas at Arlington and a Bachelor of Business
Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong (“CUHK"). Prof. Sin had been a member of the Faculty
of Business Administration of CUHK for over 35 years. He had also been a professor of Department of Marketing
of CUHK and an associate director of CUHK's Center for Hospitality and Real Estate Research until July 2016
on his retirement. He is now the Honorary Institute Fellow of the Asia-Pacific Institute of Business and Adjunct
Professor, CUHK Business School. He is serving as the advisor for the Hong Kong Institute of Marketing. He is an
independent non-executive director of Hung Fook Tong Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1446) listed on the
Stock Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR I\/IANAGEI\/IENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong, aged 67, was appointed in September 2017 and is also a member of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Cheong is
currently the vice chairman of HK Television Entertainment Company Limited (ViuTV) and a director of Hong Kong
Economic Journal Company Limited. He joined Purapharm Corporation Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1498) as a non-executive director from March 2020 to September 2020, was appointed
as an executive director from September 2020 to June 2021 and re-designated as a non-executive director
from June 2021 to March 2022. He was the general manager and an executive director of Television Broadcasts
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 511) from January 2015 to December 2019.
Mr. Cheong has extensive experience in the advertising and marketing industry and contributes actively to the
professional development of marketing in Hong Kong through leading marketing industry bodies. He is a Fellow
and a deputy chairman of the Hong Kong Management Association as well as the former chairman of the Hong
Kong Regional Board of the Chartered Institute of Marketing.

Senior Management
Mr. ZHAO lJianguo, Mr. CHEUNG Chi and Ms. YU Xin being the executive Directors, are also senior management
of the Group.

Disclosure on Changes in Information of Directors

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in details of the Directors’ information subsequent to
the date of the interim report of the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2023 and up to the date of this
report are set out below:

Name Details of Changes

2, BERI

$ I_.ln }E& E&nvuikZﬁﬁ}*_ﬂi |

BMERED RFT N _T—LFNAESZE TRALTABEZEE
B HINEEERIEREEENE - BARLERAEBBRIBREBRAF
ViuTV) BIEE R EHRUEHEERATER REN T -_FTF=A
MASBNHERERAE (RERFT LB 2 AB RBENREHZARAR)
(BRBAIE:1498) RIFNITEFE_SZ"TFNA A -TFNA
ECR T —HERAEEARWTEFRA_E_—FARAETF
ZRPARAERTERZ BN _E—HF—AE_ZT—NEFE+_AE#%
EBRERARAT (R LTZAT) (RHAFE:511) 2 BEE
RPTEF-BAEERBEERTHERRTEER TEBTETHEETE
EREBIRABHGHEETENEXRLR - RIBELAEAEEEXREAE
R EREEFEURREFFTHEERI LR

BREEE

PTEFHERLE RELERSI LT RATERNSREERE-

ERESENEFH o KE
BARATSHE_ZE-_=F,"B=+HILE/X

RiE EHRBIE13.51B(1)E
BREZHHHRE AR EARS A EFEN S BEHIWT:

Mr. CHEUNG Chi
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with effect from 1 March 2024, the emolument package was revised to an annual director’s fee of HK$250,000 and an annual salary of

HK$2,160,000.
BT NE=A— R HNfFass

re-designated as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company with effect from 22 August 2023.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHREE

The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

Business Review

A fair review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023, including the discussion of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group, material events that have occurred and an indication
of likely future developments in the Group’s business is provided in the Chairman’s Letter to Shareholders, the
Management Discussion and Analysis and the Corporate Governance Report of this annual report respectively. An
analysis of the Group's performance for the year ended 31 December 2023 by key financial indicators is set out
under the section headed “Financial and operational highlights” on the inside front cover. These discussions form
part of this Report of the Directors.

In addition, the financial risk management of the Group are shown in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Details of the Group’s environmental protection, compliance with laws and regulations and relationships with key
stakeholders are discussed below:
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Environmental Protection

The Group is committed to long term environmental sustainability. We strive to encourage higher environmental
protection awareness at our headquarters, retail stores and warehouses by saving electricity and encouraging
recycling of materials. Energy saving lighting systems have been installed in our stores and headquarters to
conserve energy. We shall review our environmental practices from time to time and consider implementing
further eco-friendly measures, sustainability targets and practices in the business operation of the Group to
embrace the principle of reduce, recycle and reuse. Relevant details of the Group’s environmental policies and
performance has been reported in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company published
at the same time as the publication of this annual report on the websites of the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group has complied in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the operations of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Relationships with Key Stakeholders
(a) Employees

The Group believes that employees are essential to the success of its business. The Group is passionately
committed to developing and training the staff and provides the employees with rewarding career paths and
people-friendly working environments. The Group has continued to offer regular and substantial training
programmes which exemplify the Group's investment in the talent and also motivate the Group’s employees
as well.

(b) Customers

We strive to achieve corporate sustainability in providing quality products and services to our customers.
To ensure continuous improvement of the quality of products and services, the Group regularly conducts
internal and external market surveys to gain market insights and feedback.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHREE

(c) Suppliers

We understand the importance to work closely with our suppliers to ensure the sustainability of our business.
The Group has established long standing relationships with a number of suppliers and to ensure they share
our commitment to quality and ethics. The Group has established an internal anti-bribery policy of which our
suppliers are also aware.

(d) Shareholders and investors
We believe that effective communication and accurate and timely information disclosure facilitate the flow of
constructive feedback and ideas that are beneficial to investor relations and future corporate development.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2023 and the Group’s financial position as at 31 December
2023 are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 83 to 193.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Summary of Financial Information

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the years ended 30 June
2019 and 30 June 2020, the period ended 31 December 2021, the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2023, as extracted from the published audited consolidated financial statements, is set out in the
"Five Year Financial Summary” contained in this annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.
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Share Capital and Share Options

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 21 March 2023, the authorised share capital of the Company has
increased from HK$300,000,000 divided into 3,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each to HK$1,000,000,000
divided into 10,000,000,000 shares by the creation of an additional 7,000,000,000 shares.

On 24 February 2023, the Company proposed to raise gross proceeds of up to approximately HK$465 million
before expenses by way of a rights issue of up to 1,257,784,545 rights ordinary shares (assuming no change
in the number of shares of the Company in issue on or before the then record date) at a price of HK$0.370
per rights share on the basis of one (1) rights share for every two (2) existing shares held by the then qualifying
shareholders. The market price on the date which the terms of the subscription were fixed was HK$0.470. The
rights issue was completed on 27 April 2023 and a total of 852,362,086 rights shares were issued with net cash
proceeds of approximately HK$313 million raised. Details of the above are set out in Company’s announcements
dated 24 February 2023 and 27 April 2023, circular dated 3 March 2023 and the prospectus dated 3 April 2023.

Details of movements in the Company’s issued share capital and share options during the year are set out in
the section of “Share Option Schemes” in this report and in notes 24 and 25, respectively, to the consolidated
financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHREE

Equity-Linked Agreements

For the year ended 31 December 2023, save as set out in the sections of "“Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debentures” and “Share Option Schemes” in this report, the Company has not entered into any equity-linked
agreement, nor did any equity-linked agreement subsist at the end of the year.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-Laws or the laws of Bermuda which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Distributable Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company during the year under review are set out in note 32(a)
to the consolidated financial statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s largest customer and 5 largest customers accounted for

approximately 3% and approximately 7% of the total sales for the year, respectively.

Purchases from the Group's largest supplier and 5 largest suppliers accounted for approximately 12% and
approximately 43% of the total purchases for the year, respectively.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the

directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s 5
largest suppliers.
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Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. ZHAO lJianguo

Mr. CHEUNG Chi

Ms. YU Xin (appointed with effect from 4 April 2023)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco
Mr. Victor HERRERO (resigned with effect from 4 April 2023)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. LEE Kwok Ming

Prof. SIN Yat Ming

Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws and pursuant to Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules, Mr. CHEUNG Chi,
Prof. SIN Yat Ming and Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong will retire as Directors by rotation and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Directors’ Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 37 to 41 of the annual report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHREE

Directors’ Remuneration

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group has been set up by the Board or executive Directors on
the basis of their merits, qualifications and competences. The Group has a system for measuring employees’
performance against agreed-upon goals with specific performance standards. Performance discussion is carried
out on an ongoing basis and a formal evaluation is conducted at least once a year to review employees’ overall
performance, achievements, and areas in need of improvement. Salary review would be based on individual’s
performance and subject to Group’s discretion.

The emoluments payable to the Directors will be decided by the Board on the recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results
of the Group.

The existing share option scheme enables the Company to grant options as an incentive to Directors and eligible
participants of the share option scheme. Details of the share option scheme are set out in the section headed
“Share Option Schemes” on pages 55 to 64 of this annual report.

Interests and Short Positions of Directors and the Chief Executive in the Shares and
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company and its Associated Corporations

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief executive of the Company
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the "SFO")) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which the Directors and chief executive of the Company were deemed or taken to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be and are recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code"”) are set out below:
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Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares

Long positions in the shares and the underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations

(@) The Company — the ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company (the “Shares”) are listed on the Stock
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Directors Capacity Personal Interests Interests held® Total Interests 31 December 2023
RZEZ=
+=ZHBA=+—H
= g1 B A= REEE FEBREZEY KB FRisRRER AT L
Mr. ZHAO lJianguo Beneficial owner - - 26,067,057 26,067,057 0.78%
[ S A BEmEAA
Mr. CHEUNG Chi Beneficial owner - - 14,174,689 14,174,689 0.43%
RE 4 BmEAA
Ms. YU Xin (appointed with effect
from 4 April 2023) Beneficial owner 1,156,000 - 6,808,942 7,964,942 0.24%
FELZE (B _=F£NFMAkE
EEA) BaEEA
Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco Beneficial owner - - 3,033,529
BIENSE BmEAA
Interest of Controlled
Corporation - 348,395,530? - 351,429,059 10.58%

SiEHE B
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHREE

(@) The Company — the ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company (the “Shares”) are listed on the Stock

Exchange (continued)

£ (@)

Number of Shares/underlying Shares held
ARG AERRHEE

Nature of interests

it E

Number of

Corporate  share options

(@) TR —ARIEREBERBEC 10Tz SR (TG 1) KB AZFT

Approximate
percentage of
shareholdings as at

Directors Capacity Personal Interests Interests held™ Total Interests 31 December 2023

RIZBZ=F

+-HBA=+—H

B 15 (EPN = AR HEBREZA" 4R FRisRG A B 2L

Mr. LEE Kwok Ming Beneficial owner - - 808,941 808,941 0.02%
FEIRRSE BEmEAA

Prof. SIN Yat Ming Beneficial owner - - 404,470 404,470 0.01%
S B BREE BmEAA

Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong Beneficial owner - - 404,470 404,470 0.01%
B EarE BEmERAA
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(b) Associated Corporation — Viva Goods Company Limited (“Viva Goods”, formerly known as Viva China (b) 1EECEER—FEFEHBRAE (MFEFEH)) FIRBIENFEZERE

Holdings Limited), the ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each of Viva Goods (“Viva Goods Shares”) are listed on [RAT)  HEBEEAE0.0570 2 SiEM8 (TIEFLSEHBSD 1) R
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 933) PR BT (B8R 933)
Number of
underlying Viva Approximate
Goods Shares and percentage of Viva
Number of Viva share options of Goods' issued share
Directors Capacity and nature of interest Goods Shares held Viva Goods held Total Interests capital
FEMEMIENEM
FHEIFNER B 13 B JE N B HIERNEHBET
B=E B kiEHENEE 1B IBieEsE RETHAEER BRABEA T L
Mr. ZHAO Jianguo® Beneficial owner 289,666,667 3,333,333
HHEE S A Bm#EBA
Interest of controlled corporation 12,963,200 -
R EEED
Interest of spouse - 700,000,000 1,005,963,200 10.35% g
Bk S
S
Mr. CHEUNG Chi Beneficial owner 52,200,000 30,000,000% 82,200,000 0.85% % :;E
REEE Ei B A o f
gtﬂmﬂ
&

Ms. YU Xin® (appointed with effect from
4 April 2023) Beneficial owner 35,000,000 150,000,000 185,000,000 1.90%
RAZLTO (BT _=FNA M HIEERT EEmEAA

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED E i EEEE AR AR 5 1



£2

=)
=

X
[¢]
e}
o]
3
3
(@]
o,
5
o
o
8.
@
n
q
(@]
=
1%

=]
=+

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHREE

Notes:

(1)

(6)

These represented the share options granted by the Company to the respective Directors, the details of which
are provided in the section headed “Share Option Schemes” in this report. As at 31 December 2023, the total
issued Shares was 3,322,720,177.

As at 31 December 2023, Keystar Limited (“Keystar”) was directly wholly-owned by Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco.
Therefore, Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco was deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares held by
Keystar under Part XV of the SFO. Mr. Law is also a director of Keystar.

Mr. ZHAO lJianguo has personal interest in 289,666,667 Viva Goods Shares and the share options which are
exercisable into 3,333,333 Viva Goods Shares. Such share options are exercisable at HK$0.67 per Viva Goods
Share and comprised following: (i) 1,666,667 share options with exercisable period from 18 January 2023 to
17 January 2028; and (i) 1,666,666 share options with exercisable period from 18 January 2024 to 17 January
2029. Ms. LI Ying, the spouse of Mr. Zhao, has personal interest in the convertible bonds in the principal
amount of HK$227,500,000 which are convertible into 700,000,000 Viva Goods Shares. Double Essence
Limited was interested in 12,963,200 Viva Goods Shares and is owned as to 50% by Mr. Zhao and 50% by
Ms. Li respectively.

The share options are exercisable at HK$0.67 per Viva Goods Share with exercisable period from 18 January
2024 to 17 January 2029.

Ms. YU Xin has personal interest in 35,000,000 Viva Goods Shares and the convertible bonds in the principal
amount of HK$48,750,000 which are convertible into 150,000,000 Viva Goods Shares.

As at 31 December 2023, the total issued Viva Goods Shares was 9,722,276,727.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors and chief executive of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning in Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they were deemed or taken to have under such provisions of SFO), or which were required to be and are
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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() EfFARNEHESEHZBRE EBEHNARSTER
BB —So-R B =F+_BA=+—H > BETRHEHA
3,322,720,1778% °

(2) MZZEZ=F+IH=+—HKeystar Limited (TKeystarJ) FHZEIE
REEBERDERE At RIBF S REAEHRGIEXVER BIER
FSEWBE RN KeystarFF B 2 HEKRMDEE R HAEm - BELETT
AKeystarZ BE o

(3) HHEEESTAEFL289,666,667 0% IE N AEBLAL (5 K Al 1T 1# 733,333,333
BRIENSEHRMEREREEEARS -SREBRETIZER
JERBHRMDAE0.67TT/E BEUTEE ((VTEHAEZE
T=F—ABA+N\HEZZINFE—B+tHZ1,666,6677HEK
B RiVTERA - Z_WE—RB+N\HBE_Z_NF—B++t
H 21,666,666/ B A AN BEMN L TN AL SEELE
#227,500,0007T B BT &4 %4700,000,0004% IE N S8 #4B& 17 AY BT #2
fe (&2 h A 8 A% - Double Essence Limitedf?12,963,2008% 3F
NABMAS D B # % > MDouble Essence Limited i85 4 K2
Z D BFEAES50% KE50%E %

(4) BREURESRIIFNEERMNBE67TITE TEMASZE
—mE—B+N\BEZIZZAFE—B+tHo

(5) RETZ 17$35,000,0008% 3F FLYEBL AR 17 Fe 2 5 §A %3 78 1548,750,000
ToBY R R E ST R A 8 A > 5% 35 (A 55 R #1273 150,000,000
BRIEFLRBLAR AR ©

6) RZEZ=F+"B=+—H BETIHFENELERHEHS
9,722,276,727k& °

bR EXFIRBEEIN N B =F+ A=+ —H EERAATITHA
HMENALBDRNEARER (EERBHFRIERMIEXVED BIRM7
HEARO NEREPHEEREE TR ERPISEXVEET7 K878 AN
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RIMFE SRR R R EFEA 2 B RRR) » WM AR ELRHNAERFR
BRFMIERPIEIS2FAMFEESMANEAERDINE  WiRE
RARETRIRN G A AR RSP 2 E A m as A



Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2023, so far as is known to the Directors, the following persons (other than the Directors or
chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or the underlying Shares which
would have to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which were deemed or taken to have under such
provisions), or which were recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO are as follows:

Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFGHREE

FERRNELQE RN RBRRN 2

A B =F+ZR=+—HB BEEMM TIAL (EFHAERET
BB RN IR SBRRM T HEARBER S R EHRGEXVEE2
R37 BMFE X BA A A B e B S PR B R e m 8k 8 (BRI R BEE 55
BB 2 ZEEIBAR AN E A 2 B m ek a) N BN AR E)I%E
FIRPIE336FRAEF < BMABI BRI B ZRRUT:

R RABRR G 248

Approximate
percentage of the
Number of Company'’s issued

Name Capacity and nature of interest Shares held share capital
AT ET

W, B B kiEHENE BERHEE AL T L

Viva Goods Company Limited Interest of controlled corporation 2,090,373,183 62.91% é

FEFLEHEBRABY REGEEE R %

Mr. LI Ning @ Interest of controlled corporation 2,090,373,183 62.91% o

FELLEO REGEEE T %

Mr. LI Chun @ Interest of controlled corporation 2,090,373,183 62.91% %’

FRGEED SRR B A g

Keystar Limited @ Beneficial owner 348,395,530 10.49%

Keystar Limited @ =27 =P\
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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Notes:

(1) As at 31 December 2023, Dragon Leap Consumables Limited (“Dragon Leap”) is wholly-owned by Viva China
Consumables Holdings Limited which is in turn wholly-owned by Viva Goods. Therefore, Viva Goods was deemed
to be interested in the shares of the Company held by Dragon Leap under Part XV of the SFO. Mr. CHEUNG Chi is
a director of Dragon Leap and Viva China Consumables Holdings Limited.

(2) As at 31 December 2023, Mr. LI Ning and Mr. LI Chun were deemed to be interested in the Viva Goods Shares
through their interests in Lead Ahead Limited, Victory Mind Assets Limited and Dragon City Management (PTC)
Limited, which held approximately 21.93%, 17.28% and 20.57% respectively and in aggregate approximately
59.78% of the total issued share capital of Viva Goods as at 31 December 2023. Mr. LI Ning and Mr. LI Chun have
personal interests of approximately 0.22% and 0.62% respectively in the Viva Goods Shares. Therefore, Mr. LI Ning
and Mr. LI Chun were deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company held by Viva Goods under Part XV of
the SFO.

(3) As at 31 December 2023, Keystar was directly wholly-owned by Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco. Therefore, Mr. LAW
Ching Kit Bosco was deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares held by Keystar under Part XV of the
SFO. Mr. Law is also a director of Keystar.

Save as disclosed above and so far as is known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2023, no person (other than
the Directors or chief executive of the Company) had any interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which would have to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which were deemed or taken
to have under such provisions), or which were recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares” above and in the section
“Share Option Schemes” below, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their respective spouses or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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=+—HZBEBTRAEE4921.93% 17.28%5220.57% > W & 14
#959.78% - FES A RFERE DA ERIENLBEHRHH0.22% K%
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Share Option Schemes

The Company’s share option scheme which was adopted on 12 November 2013 (the”2013 Share Option
Scheme”) has expired on 12 November 2023. Following the expiration of the 2013 Share Option Scheme, no
further share option was allowed to be granted thereunder but the provisions of it shall remain in full force
and effect in all other respects. The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “2023 Share Option
Scheme”, together with the 2013 Share Option Scheme, the “Schemes”) on 15 December 2023, which remains
in force for a period of 10 years commencing for its effective date on 20 December 2023.

The purpose of the Schemes is to recognise and acknowledge the contributions that participants have made or
may make to the Group, to provide incentives and/or reward to participants for their contributions to the Group
and/or to enable the Group to recruit high-calibre employees and/or attract human resources that are valuable to
the Group.

The eligible participants of the Schemes include any Director or any employee of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries from time to time and are determined to be qualified for the share options by the Board.

The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the Schemes within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the total number of Shares in issue at any time. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting with such participant
and his/her associates abstaining from voting in case of 2013 Share Option Scheme and with such eligible
participants and his/her close associates (or associates if such eligible participant is a connected person of the
Company) abstaining from voting in case of 2023 Share Option Scheme.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHREE

Share Option Schemes (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days from the date of offer, upon receipt the
acceptance and payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 from the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the Directors, and commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a
date which is not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the share options. Share options granted during
the term of the Schemes and remain unexercised immediately prior to the end of the 10-year period of the
Schemes shall continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of grant within the exercise period for
which such options are granted, notwithstanding the expiry of the Schemes. The Board was allowed to impose a
vesting period on the share options granted under 2013 Share Option Scheme which shall follow the amended
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules with effect from 1 January 2023. The vesting period of any particular share
option of 2023 Share Option Scheme shall not be less than 12 months except in the following circumstances: (a)
grants of “make-whole” share options to new joiners to replace the share awards or share options they forfeited
when leaving their previous employers; (b) grants that are made in batches during a year for administrative and
compliance reasons; or (c) grants of share options with a mixed or accelerated vesting schedule such as where the
share options may vest evenly over a period of 12 months.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the Directors, but may not be less than the highest of
(i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Shares on the date of grant of the share options; (ii) the average Stock
Exchange closing price of the Shares for the 5 trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii), if
applicable the nominal value of the Shares on the date of grant.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all share options to be granted under the
2013 Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10% of the
total number of Shares in issue on 12 November 2013, the date of adoption of the 2013 Share Option Scheme.
Following the expiration of the 2013 Share Option Scheme, no further share option could be granted thereunder.
The total number of Shares which may be issued in respect of all share options and awards to be granted under
the 2023 Share Options Scheme and any other share option schemes or share award schemes of the Company
shall not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at 15 December 2023. The number of Shares issuable under the
2023 Share Option Scheme was 332,272,017, which represented 10% of the Shares in issue as at 15 December
2023.
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

Detail of movements of the share options under the Schemes for the year ended 31 December 2023 is as follows:

(@) 2013 Share Option Scheme

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

REBetEst 2l (48)

B

() ZE—=FERETE

Number of Share Options
BRERE

BE_E_=F+_A=+—RHLEE %%t

BEEERESE

I B R A B3y

Balance as at

Lapsed during

the year before Adjusted balance

Lapsed during Cancelled during

Granted during the year after the year after Balance as

Date of Grant 01.01.2023 27.04.2023®  on 27.04.2023™ the year® 27.04.2023% 27.04.2023®  at31.12.2023  Exercisable Period
—E=F RIEZ= RIEZ= RIEZ= KZEZ= RZEZ=
—RA—H mAZ+tH mAZ=+tH mB=++tH mA=t+tH +ZR=t—-H
RHAMH 248 ZREERYY  ZERBERO FRRLD  ZBEERYS ZBEEEHC 2EeR 1T
Directors
g3
Mr. ZHAO Jianguo 05.01.2021 2,018,000 - 2,022,172 - - - 2,022,172 01.01.2022 - 31.12.2026
HEELE 2,018,000 - 2,022,172 - - - 2,022,172 01.01.2023 - 31.12.2026
2,018,540 - 2,022,713 - - - 2,022,713 01.01.2024 - 31.12.2026
6,054,540 - 6,067,057 - - - 6,067,057
20.06.2023 - - - 6,666,000 - - 6,666,000  20.06.2024 - 19.06.2029
- - - 6,666,000 - - 6,666,000  20.06.2025 - 19.06.2030
- - - 6,668,000 - - 6,668,000  20.06.2026 - 19.06.2031
- - - 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000
6,054,540 - 6,067,057 20,000,000 - - 26,067,057
Mr. CHEUNG Chi 05.01.2021 3,380,000 - 3,386,989 - - - 3,386,989  01.01.2022 - 31.12.2026
RELE 5,380,000 - 5,391,125 - - - 5,391,125  01.01.2023 - 31.12.2026
5,385,440 - 5,396,575 - - - 5,396,575  01.01.2024 -31.12.2026
14,145,440 - 14,174,689 - - - 14,174,689
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

(@) 2013 Share Option Scheme (continued)

REbetEst Rl (48)

(a)

T FRERESE (8

Number of Share Options
fBREHE

Lapsed during Lapsed during Cancelled during
Balance as at  the year before Adjusted balance  Granted during the year after the year after Balance as
Date of Grant 01.01.2023 27.04.2023®  on 27.04.2023™ the year® 27.04.2023% 27.04.2023®  at31.12.2023  Exercisable Period
AZBZZE RIBZ=f RZB-=F AZECZE= ) N
—B—8 mAZ++H mMAZ++H mMAZ++H mAZ+tH +ZA= + =
e =k AR ZHEERH®  ZEBBERO FRARIL® ZBREERHS ZBEEFHC Z2hEeE 1T
Ms. YU Xin (appointed with effect from 05.01.2021 268,000 - 268,554 - - - 268,554 01.01.2022 - 31.12.2026
4 April 2023) 268,000 - 268,554 - - - 268,554 01.01.2023 -31.12.2026
Kt (B2 =FNAMBRESRT) 271,273 - 271,834 - - - 271,834 01.01.2024 - 31.12.2026
807,273 - 808,942 - - - 808,942
20.06.2023 - - - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000  20.06.2024 - 19.06.2029
- - - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000  20.06.2025 - 19.06.2030
- - - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000  20.06.2026 - 19.06.2031
- - - 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000
807,273 - 808,942 6,000,000 - - 6,808,942
Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco 05.01.2021 1,008,000 - 1,010,084 - - - 1,010,084  01.01.2022 - 31.12.2026
BEASSE 1,008,000 - 1,010,084 - - - 1,010,084  01.01.2023 - 31.12.2026
1,011,270 - 1,013,361 - - - 1,013,361 01.01.2024 - 31.12.2026
3,027,270 - 3,033,529 - - - 3,033,529
Mr. LEE Kwok Ming 05.01.2021 268,000 - 268,554 - - - 268,554 01.01.2022 -31.12.2026
FREBRE 268,000 - 268,554 - - - 268,554 01.01.2023 - 31.12.2026
271,272 - 271,833 - - - 271,833 01.01.2024 -31.12.2026
807,272 - 808,941 - - - 808,941
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-+ H
EXGHRES
Share Option Schemes (continued) fBRe RSt E (48)
(a) 2013 Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) ZE—=FHRETE @)
Number of Share Options
fEREHE
Lapsed during Lapsed during Cancelled during
Balance as at  the year before Adjusted balance  Granted during the year after the year after Balance as
Date of Grant 01.01.2023 27.04.2023®  on 27.04.2023™ the year® 27.04.2023% 27.04.2023®  at31.12.2023  Exercisable Period
RIZZ=% RZBZ= RZBZ= ) %= -
—R—8 mAZ++H mMAZ++H mA=++tH mAZ+tH +ZA= + B
e =k bk ZHFEERRE  ZEHABEHFO FRRIL® ZBREEXHS ZBEEEFHC 2R 1TEE
Prof. SIN Yat Ming 05.01.2021 134,000 - 134,277 - - - 134,277 01.01.2022 - 31.12.2026
iA=L E e 134,000 - 134,277 - - - 134,277  01.01.2023 - 31.12.2026
135,636 - 135,916 - - - 135,916 01.01.2024 - 31.12.2026
403,636 - 404,470 - - - 404,470
Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong 05.01.2021 134,000 - 134,277 - - - 134,277  01.01.2022 - 31.12.2026
BERELE 134,000 - 134,277 - - - 134,277 01.01.2023 - 31.12.2026
135,636 - 135,916 - - - 135,916 01.01.2024 - 31.12.2026
403,636 - 404,470 - - - 404,470 »
o)
Mr. Victor HERRERO (resigned with 05.01.2021 1,680,000 - 1,683,473 - (1,683,473) - - 01.01.2022 - 31.12.2026 ‘8
effect from 4 April 2023) 1,682,000 - 1,685,477 - (1,685,477) - - 01.01.2023 -31.12.2026 %
Victor HERREROZT 4 1,683,450 (1,683,450) - - - - - 01.01.2024 - 31.12.2026 o
(BZZ2Z=FMAMHEHT) &
5,045,450 (1,683,450) 3,368,950 - (3,368,950) - - S
o
Qo
30,694,517 (1,683,450) 29,071,048 26,000,000 (3,368,950) - 51,702,098 =2
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHREE

Share Option Schemes (continued)

(@) 2013 Share Option Scheme (continued)

REbetEst Rl (48)

(a) TZ—=FHiEE @

Number of Share Options
fBREHE

Balance as at

Lapsed during

the year before Adjusted balance  Granted during the year after

Lapsed during Cancelled during
the year after

Balance as

Date of Grant 01.01.2023 27.04.2023®  on 27.04.2023™ the year® 27.04.2023% 27.04.2023®  at31.12.2023  Exercisable Period
AZBZZE RIBZ=f RZB-=F AZECZE= ) N
—B—8 mAZ++H mMAZ++H mMAZ++H mAZ+tH +ZA= + =
e =k pA ZHEERH®  ZEBBERO FREHO  ZBEEXN® ZBREEFEHY Z2hEeE 1T
Co-Chief Executive Officer
BRTHAER
Mr. CHANG Min Huei (resigned with 16.11.2021 5,000,000 - 5,010,337 - - (5,010,337) - 16.11.2022 - 15.11.2027
effect from 22 August 2023) 5,000,000 - 5,010,337 - - (5,010,337) - 16.11.2023 - 15.11.2027
REEEAE (B2 =F/\BZ+HEHD) 5,000,000 - 5,010,337 - - (5,010,337) - 16.11.2024 - 15.11.2027
15,000,000 - 15,031,011 - - (15,031,011) -
20.06.2023 - - - 5,010,337 (5,010,337) - - 20.06.2023 - 19.06.2028
- - - 5,010,337 (5,010,337) - - 20.06.2024 - 19.06.2029
- - - 5,010,337 (5,010,337) - - 20.06.2025 - 19.06.2030
- - - 15,031,011 (15,031,011) - -
15,000,000 - 15,031,011 15,031,011 (15,031,011) (15,031,011) -
Other employees
Efigg
In aggregate 05.01.2021 6,386,000 (336,000) 6,062,507 - (3,705,645) - 2,356,862  01.01.2022 - 31.12.2026
ast 6,050,000 - 6,062,507 - (3,705,645) - 2,356,862  01.01.2023 - 31.12.2026
6,063,620 (2,692,720) 3,377,870 - (2,026,722) - 1,351,148 01.01.2024 - 31.12.2026
18,499,620 (3,028,720) 15,502,884 - (9,438,012) - 6,064,872
In aggregate 16.11.2021 996,000 (332,000) 665,373 - (332,687) - 332,686  16.11.2022 - 15.11.2027
ast 1,002,000 (668,000) 334,691 - - - 334,691 16.11.2023 - 15.11.2027
1,002,000 (668,000) 334,691 - - - 334,691  16.11.2024 - 15.11.2027
3,000,000 (1,668,000) 1,334,755 - (332,687) - 1,002,068
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-+ H
EXGHRES
Share Option Schemes (continued) fBRe RSt E (48)
(a) 2013 Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) ZE—=FHRETE @)
Number of Share Options
fEREHE
Lapsed during Lapsed during Cancelled during
Balance as at  the year before Adjusted balance  Granted during the year after the year after Balance as
Date of Grant 01.01.2023 27.04.2023®  on 27.04.2023™ the year® 27.04.2023% 27.04.2023®  at31.12.2023  Exercisable Period
AZBZZE RZBZ= RZBZ= ) %= -
—R—8 mAZ++H mMAZ++H mA=++tH mAZ+tH +ZA= + B
e =k bk ZHFEERRE  ZEHABEHFO FRRIL® ZBREEXHS ZBEEEFHC 2R 1TEE

In aggregate 23.03.2022 6,997,000 (333,000) 6,677,776 - (5,008,332) - 1,669,444 23.03.2023 - 22.03.2028
a5 6,997,000 (333,000) 6,677,776 - (5,008,332) 1,669,444 23.03.2024 - 22.03.2028
7,006,000 (334,000) 6,685,797 - (5,014,347) 1,671,450  23.03.2025 - 22.03.2028

21,000,000 (1,000,000) 20,041,349 - (15,031,011) 5,010,338
In aggregate 17.11.2022 2,666,000 2,671,512 - (1,669,444) 1,002,068  17.11.2023 - 16.11.2028
a5 2,666,000 2,671,512 - (1,669,444) 1,002,068  17.11.2024 - 16.11.2028
2,668,000 2,673,516 - (1,671,448) 1,002,068  17.11.2025 - 16.11.2028

8,000,000 8,016,540 (5,010,336) 3,006,204
In aggregate 20.06.2023 - - - 666,000 - 666,000  20.06.2024 - 19.06.2029
ast - - - 666,000 - 666,000  20.06.2025 - 19.06.2030
- - - 668,000 - 668,000  20.06.2026 - 19.06.2031

- - - 2,000,000 - 2,000,000

50,499,620 (5,696,720) 44,895,528 2,000,000 (29,812,046) 17,083,482

96,194,137 (7,380,170) 88,997,587 43,031,011® (48,212,007) 68,785,580
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHREE

Share Option Schemes (continued)
(@) 2013 Share Option Scheme (continued)
Notes:
(1) (@ Adjustments have been made on 27 April 2023 to the number and the exercise prices of the

outstanding share options granted, details of which are set out in the Company’s announcement dated
27 April 2023 on the results of the rights issue and adjustments to share options.

(b)  The exercise prices following the adjustment on 27 April 2023 are as follows:

Date of Grant

REetEst Rl (48)

(a)

—E = EEREHE ()
BrsE

(1 (@ RIZZ=ZFMNB-+tH BREEBHKRTEZHERE
ZHEURTEEBEEFRAE AHEFBHNEART RS
TEC-HFNACHERARMERERUKBRERE
NG

() RIZB=FNB_+tHBELAERZITEENT

Exercise Price per Share

Exercise Price per after the adjustment

Share as at 1 January 2023 on 27 April 2023
R-_2_=%—A—H RIB_=FmMA-++tH

BB Z2BRITER FLRBRZERITER
HK$ HK$

BT BT

05.01.2021 0.456 0.455
16.11.2021 1.060 1.058
23.03.2022 0.660 0.659
17.11.2022 0.390 0.389

(2)  On 20 June 2023, the Company granted share options entitling subscription of a total of 43,031,011 Shares
at an exercise price of HK$0.275 per Share pursuant to the 2013 Share Option Scheme and the closing price
of the Shares immediately before the date on which the such share options were granted was HK$0.280.
There is no performance target attached to the share options granted, details of which are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 20 June 2023.
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

(@) 2013 Share Option Scheme (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(€)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, no share options under the 2013 Share Option Scheme were
exercised. The Company cancelled 15,031,011 share options which were granted on 16 November 2021
and the exercise price of the cancelled share options was HK$1.058 per Share. There were 55,592,177 share
options lapsed during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Under the 2013 Share Option Scheme, the number of options available for grant was 58,775,802 as at 1
January 2023 and no options were available for grant since its expiration date on 12 November 2023. As at
the date of this report, the total number of Shares available for issue under the 2013 Share Option Scheme is
66,765,412, representing 2.01% of the existing number of issued Shares.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, share options to subscribe for a total of 43,031,011 Shares were
granted under the 2013 Share Option Scheme, representing approximately 1.54% of the weighted average
number of issued Shares.

2023 Share Option Scheme

No share options under the 2023 Share Option Scheme have been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
since the effective date on 20 December 2023 until 31 December 2023. Under the 2023 Share Option
Scheme, the Company has no outstanding share option and the number of options available for grant
was 332,272,017 as at 20 December 2023 and 31 December 2023 respectively. As at the date of this
report, the total number of Shares available for issue under the 2023 Share Option Scheme is 332,272,017,
representing approximately 10% of the existing number of issued Shares.
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EFGHRSE
AR (40
(a) —E—=FREREFE (@
ez - (&%)
B BEZZT_=—F+"RA=1+—BLEFE _FT-=FEKRE

(b)

BETrERESEETE. $’/}TEDH¢]E\f7f—E+—
A+/RB&EHZ15,031,01170EKRE SHEEBEREZITEES
BREBEIS8T - RBEE_=F+"_A=1+—HLFE">
55,592,177 iR E &K% -

4 BEZS—=-"FBEREI RIZE=F—F—HH#HEEN
ERIESE 458,775,802 MM EZZ - =F+—HB+ZHE
R B EEREERH RARERE Z S = FE R
BIE T A B THR D 428 566,765,4128% (5 IRA B 21T RA

ER2.01%-°

6 BEZE_=ZF+"A=+—HUEFE RE-Z-—=FBERE
STEIE R M AISREE 54543,031,01 IR G 2 BB E  HEETR
B2 IMREFIIIREAI1.54%

T FERIEE

TR =+ A +HEANMZBEREIZ_=F+"/A=+—H
I Z 2 = FRERES R T ERE TR VIR EDE
foé *E?F_v__fﬁﬁﬁﬁx%ﬁriu RABMLEFRITEERE B
CECEE+CACHHERISI=FET A=+ R AR ENE
MR E D F43332,272,01 7R N AREAE — S _=FRER#E
STRIE T AT R H 48873332,272,01 7 (HIRBA B EITRG
HENA10%-°
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHREE

Share Option Schemes (continued)

The value of Share Options

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the year was HK$4,040,000 in aggregate, which was

estimated as at the respective date of grant or adjustment, using a binomial model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted.

The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

FARRfEctEl (4)

FBREEE

BRI EA T A NERR BN REAE LRE R
FPIFTIR 2 M AR AR 2 AT E S R 154,040,00075 THH &
BEHEBE B AN AR R R MR G EE EIRHEREY
R T B

TRITAERERN ZHA R

20 June 2023

Date of grant RHBH ZEZ=FAZ+H
Dividend yield (%) B (%) 3.80
Expected volatility (%) TEHERR EN(%) 61.61
Risk-free interest rate (%) 1 B P A (%) 3.14
Expected life of share options (year) BRETRSTE () 6.6
Share price (HK$ per share) 1B (ERABT) 0.275

The fair values are inherently subjective and uncertain due to the assumptions made and the limitations of the
model used.

The expected life of the share options is based on the historical data over the past 6 years and is not necessarily
indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the

historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the share options granted was incorporated into the measurement of fair value.
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts

Save as disclosed in this report, no Director nor a connected entity of a Director had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company, the holding company of the Company, or any of the Company’s subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Controlling Shareholder’s Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year had the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and the
controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries entered into any contract of significance or any contract of
significance for the provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling shareholder
or any of its subsidiaries.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business
of the Group were entered into or existed during the year.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Bye-laws provide that each Director or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he or she may sustain or incur in or about
the execution of the duties of his or her office or otherwise in relation thereto. In addition, the Company has
maintained appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance in respect of relevant legal actions against the
Directors.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses

During the year, none of the Directors has interests in businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHREE

DRFREZ EHME

7@#1?@7 LB 2 ARER KMESFINZE
TROFAEBETRMBEI25%-

Sufficiency of Public Float
TRARESHE ARA

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at
least 25% of the total number of issued Shares were held by the public as at the date of this report.

FHEMER S

FRAERENTT MEBRERS ETEREE
RA(TEHRA) F14AB 2R EFHIRE-

Continuing Connected Transactions
IRE A FrsE s £

During the year, the Group had the following continuing connected transactions, certain details of which are
disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on

the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

1. On 30 March 2021, Bossini Enterprises Limited (“Bossini Enterprises”) and Viva China Sports Holding Limited 1. RIE—F=Z/A=+H ENMEtERRLE (TEMERE)) &

£2

=)
=

X
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("Viva China Sports” now known as Viva Goods Sports Holding Limited), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Viva
Goods Company Limited (“Viva Goods”, formerly known as Viva China Holdings Limited) entered into a sub-
tenancy agreement (the “Sub-Tenancy Agreement”). Pursuant to the Sub-Tenancy Agreement, the annual
caps receivable by the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022 are
HK$4.2 million and HK$6.0 million respectively. The Company’s principal place of business is at Second floor
of PopOffice, No. 9 Tong Yin Street, Tseung Kwan O, New Territories, Hong Kong (the “Office Premises”).
The Office Premises were rented for use as office premises of the Group and the Company continued to
use portions of the Office Premises as its principal place of business after the commencement of the Sub-
Tenancy Agreement. The reason for granting the sub-tenancy of a portion of the Office Premises (the “Viva
Premises”) to Viva China Sports under the Sub-Tenancy Agreement was to create synergy between the
Group and the Viva Goods group and to facilitate the smooth operation of the business of the Group after
Viva Goods acquired a controlling stake in the Company in July 2020.

On 18 March 2022, Bossini Enterprises and Viva China Sports entered into a supplemental agreement to
Sub-Tenancy Agreement (the “Supplemental Agreement”). Set out below is a summary of the key terms of
the Sub-Tenancy Agreement which were amended or added pursuant to the Supplemental Agreement: (i)
Term: 33 months from 1 April 2021 to 31 December 2023; (i) Rent: HK$269,930 per calendar month; and
(iii) Other Charges: service and management charges, rates, electricity charges, general cleaning charges,
air-conditioning maintenance charges, etc. in the aggregate sum of: HK$86,960 per calendar month from
1 April 2021 to 31 December 2021 and HK$140,956 per calendar month from 1 January 2022 to 31
December 2023. Pursuant to the terms of the Supplemental Agreement, the major changes were that the
expiry date of the Sub-Tenancy Agreement was extended from 31 December 2022 to 31 December 2023
and the rental and other charges payable by Viva China Sports to Bossini Enterprises were reduced.
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On 13 October 2023, Bossini Enterprises and Viva China Sports entered into a second supplemental
agreement to Sub-Tenancy Agreement (the “Second Supplemental Agreement”). Set out below is a
summary of the key terms of the Sub-Tenancy Agreement which were amended or added pursuant to
the Second Supplemental Agreement: (i) Term: 51 months from 1 April 2021 to 30 June 2025; (ii) Rent:
HK$269,930 per calendar month from 1 April 2021 to 31 December 2022 and HK$211,664 per calendar
month from 1 January 2023 to 30 June 2025; and (iii) Other Charges in the aggregate sum of: HK$140,956
per calendar month from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022 and HK$115,324 per calendar month from
1 January 2023 to 30 June 2025. Pursuant to the terms of the Second Supplemental Agreement, the major
changes were that the expiry date of the Sub-Tenancy Agreement was extended from 31 December 2023
to 30 June 2025, the rental and other charges payable by Viva China Sports to Bossini Enterprises were
reduced and the grant to Viva China Sports of the non-exclusive right to use certain common areas of the
Office Premises. The head landlord of the Office Premises agreed to reduce the monthly rent and the service
and management charges payable by Bossini Enterprises under the head tenancy agreements, and to extend
the tenancy of the Office Premises to Bossini Enterprises for an additional 18 months at reduced rent. In
view of the aforesaid, Bossini Enterprises agreed with Viva China Sports to reduce the monthly rent and the
other charges payable under the Supplemental Agreement, as well as to extend the sub-tenancy of the Viva
Premises for an additional 18 months at the reduced rent.

In addition, on 13 October 2023, Bossini Enterprises as landlord and C & J Clark Hong Kong Limited
("Clarks") as tenant entered into a sub-tenancy agreement (the “Clarks Sub-Tenancy Agreement”) in respect
of a sub-tenancy of a portion of the Office Premises (the “Clarks Premises”) for a term commencing from
16 October 2023 to 30 June 2025 at rent charges of HK$49,400 per calendar month and other charges
of HK$40,526 per calendar month with the non-exclusive rights to use certain common areas of the Office
Premises. The granting of the sub-tenancies to Clarks under the Clarks Sub-Tenancy Agreement will enhance
the synergy between the Group and other subsidiaries of Viva Goods and, at the same time reduce the
operating expenses of the Group.

Viva China Sports and Clarks are both subsidiaries of Viva Goods. As Viva Goods is the indirect controlling
shareholder of the Company, each of Viva China Sports and Clarks is a connected person of the Company.
The transactions contemplated under the Sub-Tenancy Agreement, the Supplemental Agreement, the
Second Supplemental Agreement and the Clarks Sub-Tenancy Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company and are required to be aggregated for the purpose of Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, the details of which were disclosed in the announcements dated 30 March 2021, 18 March
2022 and 13 October 2023. The annual cap receivable by the Group for the financial year ended 31
December 2022 (as revised on 18 March 2022) and 31 December 2023 are HK$5.5 million and HK$5 million
respectively and the annual cap for the financial year ending 31 December 2024 and 2025 are HK$5.8
million and HK$3.2 million respectively.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHREE

2. BMNHEMEEZEX£ABMEAT (“Guangzhou Bossini”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and JE
RAEERR(EB)BRAE (“Viva Technology”), the wholly-owned subsidiary of Viva Goods entered into
an e-commerce cooperation agreement (the “E-Commerce Cooperation Agreement 1”) on 28 April 2021
for provision of e-commerce services to Guangzhou Bossini for a term from 1 May 2021 to 31 December
2023 and entered into a new e-commerce cooperation agreement on 14 November 2023 (the “E-commerce
Cooperation Agreement II”, together with the E-commerce Cooperation Agreement |, the “E-commerce
Cooperation Agreements”) for provision of such services for a term from 1 January 2024 to 31 December
2024. Viva Technology shall be entitled to receive a monthly service fee of 8% of the gross merchandise
volume. Guangzhou Bossini, ;RII T EHIBEE 5 B RA 8] (“Shenzhen Bossini Trading”) and BINERFEE
SBRA5 (“Guangzhou Fubaolong”), wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company and Viva Technology
entered into a live streaming cooperation agreement (the “Live Streaming Cooperation Agreement "),
on 18 March 2022 for provision of live streaming services to these subsidiaries of the Group for a term
commencing from 18 March 2022 to 31 December 2023 and entered into a new live streaming cooperation
agreement on 14 November 2023 (the “Live Streaming Cooperation Agreement II”, together with the Live
Streaming Cooperation Agreement |, the “Live Streaming Cooperation Agreements”) for provision of such
services for a term from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024.

A summary of the fees charged by Viva Technology is set out below:

AR —FNA T+ N\B AAREENB AT BN ERMEEEE
BRAB (TEMNEREE)) BIFNEH 2EMBASIFR BRI
(£8) BIRAT (ISERMAERHL ) slm EMN EREEIR M8 F i 75k
BelUBTBHFHE (BT BEBSFHEL) HRE—F " —
FHRA-HEZ_=F+"_A=+—HLb UR_Z2_=F+—48
AR EBERB I I EFEHEFRE (EFEHaFH
FIHEBFEBSERR B EFEHAFERR) BRAZE
“MFE—B—HAEZZMNF+ A=+ —HIE JFRBEEREKE
A NEERAEHE8 % 2 BARBE N S __F= ﬁ+/\E|’
KRBz 2ENBATENEME RTEMEEZBRAR (TR
NHERREES)) MENEREEBSARARE ((ENER EJ)E@?F
AREBRER R AER 2 ZERNB A RRUERRB T L EESE
s ((ERESFEH=L) BER " E - " F=B+/\BEE"Z "=
F+ZA=+—HIb R B =F+— B+ H MR EERRE
ST ERSRRE (FE%AT’EJ@%%IU EAERESERIS TR EE
Aﬁﬁ%nﬁj)’ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ “HFE—BA—BEZZAF+A=+—
Hike

SERMBERIR I ER BRI 2 &I T :

Live
streaming

E#

Renovation and
provision of
equipment for live
streaming booth

EREZEERREHRE

Short video Short video
production promotion
RERIERIE KRR E

Category A e-commerce/social media platforms
MEETEB/HRBETAE

Category B e-commerce/social media platforms

BEETHEE / MIHEETE
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A fixed service fee of RMB40,000 per month
per each live streaming booth (inclusive of
tax)

SEERESABERBEAARE
40,0007T (&7R)

RMB400 per hour (inclusive of tax)
&)\ AR 4007 (B7)

One-off fee of RMB60,000 per each live
streaming booth (inclusive of tax)

SEEERERNEAK560,0007T (217)

For each campaign for initiating customer's
interests in a product/brand: RMB1,000 per
video (inclusive of tax)

SERARRRERHER,/ MBEEBY
EE  BEREARE0007T (B17)

For each product: RMB800 per video
(inclusive of tax)

BEER  SERBARELT (B1)

With a minimum number of 10 videos per
month for each production above.

M EBERESEED0ERE.

RMB2,000 per month (inclusive of tax)

SR AR2,0007 (B7)



The execution of the E-commence Cooperation Agreements and Live Streaming Cooperation Agreements
would enable the Group to save cost in managing its e-commerce business, expand its online distribution
networks in the mainland China and enhance online stores of the Group. As the Live Streaming Cooperation
Agreement | and the E-Commerce Cooperation Agreement | are entered into between the Group and
Viva Technology in respect of services relating to e-commerce, the transactions contemplated under the
Live Streaming Cooperation Agreement | and the E-Commerce Cooperation Agreement | were aggregated
under the Listing Rules, the details of which were disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated
28 April 2021 and 18 March 2022. As the Live Streaming Cooperation Agreement Il and the E-commerce
Cooperation Agreement Il are entered into between the Group and Viva Technology in respect of services
relating to e-commerce, the transactions contemplated under the E-commerce Cooperation Agreement
Il and the Live Streaming Cooperation Agreement Il were aggregated under the Listing Rules, the details
of which were disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 14 November 2023. For the
E-Commerce Cooperation Agreements and the Live Streaming Cooperation Agreements, the annual caps
payable by the Group for the financial years ended 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023 and for the financial
year ending 31 December 2024 are RMB12 million, RMB26 million and RMB29.5 million and RMB6 million
respectively.

FR2EZFRYNERAT (“Shenzhen Bossini”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and JE
NEMEFZEBEAOCR)AERAT (“Viva Sports”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Viva Goods entered into
a sportswear sponsorship cooperation agreement on 7 September 2021, (the “Sportswear Sponsorship
Cooperation Agreement 1”) and a new sportswear sponsorship cooperation agreement on 14 November
2023 (the "“Sportswear Sponsorship Cooperation Agreement II”, together with the Sportswear Sponsorship
Cooperation Agreement |, the “Sportswear Sponsorship Cooperation Agreements”), the details of which
were disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 7 September 2021 and 14 November 2023.
Pursuant to the Sportswear Sponsorship Cooperation Agreements, Shenzhen Bossini shall (i) pay an annual
cooperation fee of RMB4 million; (ii) supply sportswear to a sports team in mainland China (the “Sports
Team”) with an aggregate amount of RMB3.2 million per year; (i) supply sports gear to the Sports Team;
(iv) share 5% of the revenue for sale of franchised products of the Sports Team with a sport association in
the mainland China; and (v) provide rewards of not more than RMB1 million if the Sports Team is awarded
medals in an international sporting event. The execution of the Sportswear Sponsorship Cooperation
Agreements offered the Group with an opportunity to provide sponsorship to the Sports Team which was
beneficial to the Group in promoting its new brand image. For the Sportswear Sponsorship Cooperation
Agreements, the annual caps payable by the Group are RMB20 million for each of the financial years ended
31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023 and RMB10 million for each of the financial year ending 31 December
2024 and 2025.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHREE

On 14 November 2023, Guangzhou Fubaolong and REZE H&EEAFRAT (“Viva Shoes”), a non
wholly-owned subsidiary of Viva Goods entered into a purchase agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”)
for a term from 14 November 2023 to 31 December 2025, pursuant to which Guangzhou Fubaolong
may purchase adult and children shoes (the “Products”) from Viva Shoes. The prices for the Products are
determined by reference to (i) the prevailing market prices of the raw materials and accessories used in the
Products, the labour costs, the order size, the complexity of the design of the Products and prevailing market
demand; and (ii) the prevailing market price of similar products and order size taking into consideration
of the workmanship and quality of such products, and on similar terms of payment and delivery offered
by suppliers, being independent third parties, to the Guangzhou Fubaolong. Viva Shoes, which principally
engaged in manufacturing footwear, would be able to provide secure reliable delivery of quality Products to
the Group at prices and terms, considered as a whole, not less favourable than that offered by independent
third party suppliers. The annual cap for the fees payable by Guangzhou Fubaolong contemplated under
the Purchase Agreement are RMB5 million for each of the financial year ended 31 December 2023 and the
financial year ending 31 December 2024 and 2025, details of which were disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 14 November 2023.

Viva Sports, Viva Shoes and Viva Technology are subsidiaries of Viva Goods, the indirect controlling
shareholder of the Company. Accordingly, each of Viva Sports, Viva Shoes and Viva Technology is a
connected person of the Company and the transactions contemplated under each of the Sportswear
Sponsorship Cooperation Agreements, the E-commerce Cooperation Agreements and the Live Streaming
Cooperation Agreements and the Purchase Agreement, constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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The Company has complied with the relevant disclosure requirements in respect of the above continuing
connected transactions, and confirmed that these transactions were entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2) in accordance with the Group's pricing policies for transactions involving the provision of goods or services to
the Group;

(3) on normal commercial terms; and

(4) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them and on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the Company’s shareholders as a whole.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the continuing connected transactions arising from the
above agreements for the year ended 31 December 2023 and confirmed that the transactions were:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) in accordance with the above agreements on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
Company’s shareholders as a whole.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHREE

PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, was engaged to report on the above continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and with reference to Practice
Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Listing Rules issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and reported their conclusions to the Board that the transactions:

(1) have been approved by the Board;

(2) have been in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group (for transactions involving the provision of
goods or services to the Group);

(3) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements governing the transactions; and
(4) have not exceeded the annual cap as set out by the Company.

Auditor

The financial statements of the Company for the year under review have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for
the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

ZHAO lJianguo
Chairman

Hong Kong SAR
20 March 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B IZHENR S

&
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To the Shareholders of Bossini International Holdings Limited HEMEREIREEERARKE
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (PEREFMAILNERAT)
OPINION BR

What we have audited BPIEZE AR

The consolidated financial statements of Bossini International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its EREARERERAD UTHERBIERAR)) RENBAE WUTHEB

subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on pages 83 to 193, comprise: SEM)) FFHNESIE1BENGEMFRE 615
e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023; e NIZZ=H+"A=1+—HHEEUBRRE;
e the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year then ended; o HEZHIFENKS Hth2mEmlmR ;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended:; o HEZHIFENGRSHDEDRRK

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and e BEZHIIFENGRERERER; K

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising material accounting policy information and o IxBHBHmERM SEEATHEEEERAEMBRES
other explanatory information.

fok B S

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
BERAKE G FHA 0 FHATERFRELH =

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
("the Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

e Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
e Inventory provision

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B HENR S
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit

Matter

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

Refer to notes 4(a), 14 and 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Our audit procedures relating to impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment and

right-of-use assets included:

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying value of the
Group's property, plant and equipment amounted -
to HK$17.6 million (after impairment provision of
HK$17.6 million), and right-of-use assets amounted

to HK$70.3 million (after impairment provision of
HK$37.8 million).

7 6 ANNUAL REPORT 2023 R

Understood and evaluated the internal controls
over the Group's process in the identification
of relevant retail stores having impairment
indicators and preparation of the cash flow
forecasts;

Assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors such as complexity,
subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud;

Tested the reasonableness of the data
used and challenged management’s key
assumptions adopted in the future cash flow
forecasts, mainly in relation to:

(i) the budgeted sales and gross margin, by
comparing them with historical financial
data of the stores and questioning
business plans with senior management;

mEEtEE (@)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets (continued)

The operation of the Group’s retail stores was adversely
affected by the slow recovery of the retail market and
certain of the Group’s retail stores were loss making
during the year. Management regards each individual
retail store as a separate Group’s cash generating units
("CGU") and carried out impairment assessment by
determining the recoverable amounts of the retail
store assets which have impairment indicators. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less cost of disposal and its value-in-use. Management
considers that the recoverable amount of the assets
of the relevant retail stores is determined by value-
in-use (“VIU") calculations using discounted cash
flow projections based on sales forecast prepared
by management with major assumptions including
budgeted sales and gross margin, revenue growth rates
and discount rates.

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets balances, and the significant
judgement and estimation involved in determining the
recoverable amounts of the relevant assets subject to
impairment assessment.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter

(i) the revenue growth rates, by comparing
them with the historical financial data
and considering the available industry and
market information; and

(iii) the discount rates, by comparing them
with costs of capital of comparable
companies;

— Tested the mathematical accuracy of the
calculations of the recoverable amounts of
those stores subject to impairment test; and

—  Evaluated the management’s sensitivity analysis
to ascertain the extent of the change in the
key assumptions that would result in the retail
store assets being impaired.

Based on the procedures described above, we
found that the impairment assessment of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets made
by management to be supported by available
evidence.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B IZHENR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

Inventory provision

Refer to notes 4(b) and 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had net
inventories of HK$144.9 million, carried at the lower
of cost and net realisable value in the consolidated
financial statements.

The apparel industry is highly correlated to seasonal
factors, economic environments, customers’
preferences and competitor actions which affect
the amount of inventory provision to be made by
management. The Group has an inventory provision
policy and such provision is made for inventory
items whose costs may not be fully recoverable. The
inventory provision is estimated by reference to data
such as inventory ageing, historical sales experience
and expected subsequent year-end sales.

We focus on this area due to the magnitude of
inventories balances, and the judgment involved in
estimating the net realisable value in management’s
assessment.

7 8 ANNUAL REPORT 2023 R

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter

Our audit procedures relating to inventory provision
included:

— Understood and evaluated the internal controls
over the Group's process in (a) the estimation
of net realisable value and (b) periodic reviews
of inventory obsolescence;

— Assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors such as complexity,
subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud;

— Tested the ageing of inventory items
categorised into different seasons by checking
to relevant supporting documents, on a sample
basis, and recalculated the mathematical
accuracy of the provision made for the selected
items; and

—  Assessed the reasonableness of the provisions
by challenging management’s projections on
current trends and demand for the remaining
inventories, with reference to historical sales
experience and comparing the carrying values
of inventories items, on a sample basis, to
actual prices of subsequent year-end sales.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit

Matter
Inventory provision (continued)

Based on the procedures described above, we
found that management'’s judgments in estimating
the inventory provision to be supported by available
evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all
of the information included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B HENR S
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B IZHENR S

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e QObtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B IZHENR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continued)

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Xu Yi Jing, Vivian.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 20 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GaRnkEMEERRR

Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZZ - =F+_"_A=+—HIFE

Notes 2023 2022 ) -

HK$'000 B 5 —E-= TEZTTF BT

REVENUE 6 604,223 585,155 W

Cost of sales 8 (299,309) (311,931) SHE R AR

GROSS PROFIT 304,914 273,224 E£7 »

Other income and gain 6 26,863 212,998 B AR W

Selling, distribution and other operating expenses (409,673) (438,659) FHE S DiE R S R

Administrative expenses (135,329) (169,614) TERHX

LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (213,225) (122,051) EEXBEIE

Finance costs 7 (9,650) (9,832) BB A

LOSS BEFORE TAX 8 (222,875) (131,883) PRIZAIES 1R

Income tax expense 11 (493) (371) Fri8ME=<

LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO EREEE ANBILERESE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (223,368) (132,254)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Hith2mEEBE = o

ltem that may be reclassified subsequently to HEEEENNEEEmCEE @
profit or loss: . )
Exchange differences on translation of foreign MEBINET 2 IR ER

operations (1,715) (15,265)

NET OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS (1,715) (15,265) Hith2EREE

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR ARBREEARGERZEGIREALE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (225,083) (147,519)

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY (restated) TATEBERERFA ARGEESRER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 13 (RE7)

Basic

Diluted

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

(HK7.31 cents ) (HK5.32 cents #1lL)

(HK7.31 cents #fll) (HK5.32 cents &)

Liitr SR m R E th 2 E I R e SRR M s — ORI
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

MR RE

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

Notes 2023 2022
HK$'000 HisE —Z-= TR BT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment 14 17,559 33,382 Y BB R R
Investment properties 15 3,514 4,101 KREM=
Right-of-use assets 16 70,281 89,221 EREEE
Deferred tax assets 23 371 300 IR TEE E
Deposits 19 16,716 28,567 &
Total non-current assets 108,441 155,571 ERBEELE
CURRENT ASSETS RENE E
Inventories 17 144,912 171,866 F&
Debtors 18 21,254 24,559 FEWAR TR
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 19 79,049 68,526 FE(TRRIE % K EAhFE U AR TE
Due from a related company 31 1,767 - FE U BE & A B 3R IE
Pledged bank deposits 20 64 127 BIEHIRITER
Cash and cash equivalents 20 184,666 93,142 REeRREEBIER
Total current assets 431,712 358,220 MENEEMEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES Pt I=Ri
Trade creditors, other payables and accruals 21 144,595 150,601 FETBRFN ~ BT R IE & FE 5TER1E
Contract liabilities 22 4,721 3,739 sH8E
Bills payable 13,353 14,812 &1 4%
Tax payable 382 1,196 fEFIRIE
Due to fellow subsidiaries 31 7,849 1,527 FENERNBABRIA
Due to related companies 31 3 1,474 FE R A B RUIE
Lease liabilities 16 86,999 74,643 HEAaE
Total current liabilities 257,902 247,992 REBEEEE
NET CURRENT ASSETS 173,810 110,228 RENEEFE
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 282,251 265,799 RREBaEREERE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
HREMBRRE

31 December 2023 ZZZ=F+"A=+—H

Notes 2023 2022
HK$'000 B 5E —E== TEITHF BT T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities 23 410 410 EIERRIBEEE
Lease liabilities 16 71,814 140,083 HEBRA
Other payables 21 3,385 5,003 HMENFRIE
Total non-current liabilities 75,609 145,496 EREFaBEE
NET ASSETS 206,642 120,303 BEFE
EQUITY WS
Issued capital 24 332,272 247,036 BETRA
Reserves 27 (125,630) (126,733) G
TOTAL EQUITY 206,642 120,303 EREE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 83 to 193 were approved by the Board of Directors on 20 HNESBERIBENGEUBRREN _ZE_MNF=A_THEES

March 2024 and were signed on its behalf. S jﬁEEMTE%ﬁ%EE%O
[
.2
CHEUNG Chi 5RE& ZHAO Jianguo 5 # E £
Director EF Director % S
c
The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying AR S B FEAR L AR FE B BB Y B 5 — FBHEE g
notes. g
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
n\7I'IZI EEQ@J%E%

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE“Z_=F+_"_HA=+—HIFE

Share Share Capital  Contributed Asset Exchange Reserve
Issued premium option reserve surplus  revaluation  fluctuation funds Accumulated Total
HK$'000 Notes capital account reserve (note a) (note b) reserve reserve (note ¢) losses equity
BxE BB RfaEE
BT Mz EETRE ROEER BRERE (Mizta) (Mzth) BEEMGHE SMNERDHE (Mizkc) REtEHE EmeE
January2023
A\ ZEZ=F—A—H 247,036 243,704 12,558 (3,292) 90,258 3,164 (14,999) 1,810 (459,936) 120,303
Loss for the year
FERER - - - - - - - - (223,368)  (223,368)
Other comprehensive loss for the year:
FREMEEERE .
Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations
HMEBMNEHZ RRER - - - - - - (1,715) - - (1,715)
Total comprehensive loss for the year
FREEBEEE - - - - - - (1,715) - (223368)  (225,083)
Reversal of equity-settled share option expenses
£ it B R R B R S ] 25 - - (1,250) - - - - - - (1,250)
Transfer of share option reserve upon
the forfeiture of expired share options
REEmBRERNSEEBRERS 25 - - (4,507) - - - - - 4,507 -
Shares issued under rights issue
REMRETZ RN 24 85,236 230,138 - - - - - - - 315,374
Transaction costs incurred in respect of rights issue
HREEZRXZ A 24 - (2,702) - - - - - - - (2.702)
At 31 December 2023
RZIZE_=F#+_F=+—H 332,272 471,140* 6,801* (3,292)* 90,258* 3,164* (16,714)* 1,810* (678,797)* 206,642
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
rEEnEERE

Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZZ " =F+_"_A=+—HIFE

Share Share Capital  Contributed Asset Exchange Reserve
Issued premium option reserve surplus revaluation fluctuation funds  Accumulated Total
HK$'000 Note capital account reserve (note a) (note b) reserve reserve (note ¢) losses equity
EENE N REES
BT Mz BETRE  ROEER ERERE (Mizta) (Mzth) BEZMEHE SMERBHE (M¥zkc) REHEE RmieE
1 January 2022

RZZ__F—H—H 246,575 241,462 7,300 (3,292) 90,258 9,395 266 1,810 (334,754) 259,020
Loss for the year
FREE - - - - - - - - (132,254) (132,254)
Other comprehensive loss for the year:
FREMEERE:

Exchange differences on translation of foreign

operations

BWEBIEBZ RBER - - - - - - (15,265) - - (15,265)
Total comprehensive loss for the year
FREEBRES - - - - - - (15,265) - (132,254) (147,519)
Exercise of share options
TeRERE 461 2,242 (602) - - - - - - 2,101
Equity-settled share option expenses
EnEEBRERY 25 - - 6,701 - - - - - - 6,701
Transfer of asset revaluation reserve upon

disposal of assets classified as held for sale
REENEAFIFHE  BERBREES LA - - - - - (6,231) - - 6,231 -
Transfer of share option reserve upon

the forfeiture of expired share options
REERBERER U SR BRERE 25 - - (841) - - - - - 841 -
At 31 December 2022
RZE__F#+_F=+—H 247,036 243,704* 12,558* (3,292)* 90,258* 3,164* (14,999)* 1,810% (459,936)* 120,303
*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of negative HK$125,630,000 (2022: negative * WERERBESINGEMBERARANZGREHEEEE125630,0007T

HK$126,733,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position. “EZ T4 &781126,733,0007T) ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
raEDEERE

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE“Z_=F+_"_HA=+—HIFE

Notes: BsE

(@) The capital reserve of the Group represents goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries in prior years. (@) TEBZEAHERBFTEEWENBASIMESLZEE-

(b) The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference between the nominal value of the share capital issued b) TEBZHARBAAIRACETRAZEERKABROR—NAN=F
by the Company and the aggregate of the share capital and the share premium account of the subsidiaries acquired LTHRIREBEERBAFMBEZNB AR 2R KRN HERERE 8

pursuant to the Group reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares in 1993.

(¢) In accordance with the financial regulations applicable in mainland China, a portion of the profit of a subsidiary in (0 RBBRARPEAMZEFERG PEA—REH B AR Z B0 EERE
mainland China has been transferred to the reserve funds which are not available for distribution. ERADE 2 FEERES

&
uoijew.IoUI [enueUlS

bl

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying iR e S B IR R I LARE MM s — REe
notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
anIZIEEE/)ILE%

Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZZ - =F+_"_A=+—HIFE

Notes 2023 2022
HK$'000 (g3 b ekt 3 S BETT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES EEEBIRERE
Loss before tax (222,875) (131,883) BRIAIRS 1B
Adjustments for: el
Finance costs 7 9,650 9,832 MEMAE
Interest income 6 (4,998) (1,419) FISWA
(Write-back of provision)/provision for inventories 8 (540) 1,002 HE (BERE) RE
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 8 71,436 79,467 FRREEZNE
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and ME - -BERREUNKENEZINE
investment properties 8 23,251 17,036
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 8 17,614 21,563 ME--BERZEZAE
Impairment of right-of-use assets 8 37,752 56,777 FREEEZHE
Impairment of debtors 8 393 - FEUBR R 2 B
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of deposits and BeREMEWIREZ BE/ (RERE)
other receivables 8 1,171 (10)
Write-off of deposits and other receivables 8 - 547 s R LA R BR I8 2 i 8
Loss on disposal/write-off of property, plant and equipment, net 8 7,523 982 HE /WENE BEREEFHE
Gain on disposal of assets held for sale 68 - (173,685) HEFSEHEZEEZ G
Gain on early termination of leases 8 (20,693) (2,801) REKREHEE 2 Ws
Gain on lease modification 8 (408) - MEETz R
Write-back of other payables 6,8 (6,336) (16,745) ﬁﬂﬂ@ﬁﬂlﬁ}?‘ [g]
(Reversal offequity-settled share option expenses 8 (1,250) 6,701 (&[] /it HERERY
(88,310) (132,636)
Decrease in inventories 33,014 42,980 FERD
Decrease in debtors 4,119 6,422 FRUER TR
Increase in amount due from a related company (1,767) - FEWRAZE A B FIEEM
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, deposits and other receivables (795) 24,494 BIYRIE B REMEWEEE 0210 /7
Decrease in trade creditors, other payables and accruals (12,455) (109,632) FEBRT At ZUE R RIE R
(Decrease)/increase in bills payable (1,459) 3,119 FERZE GRrb) /12
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 6,322 (3,850) ERRRNBARTZIEEM, GBL)
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to related companies (1,471) 1,474 FEIRRE AT A Gib) /18
Increase in contract liabilities 975 216 RRGEEM
Cash used in operations (61,827) (167,413) HIEE Zﬁﬁﬁfﬁé
Interest portion of lease payments (9,038) (9,832) BENHZF R
Interest paid (612) - BARE
Hong Kong profits tax paid (1,003) (2,092) BAEETNER
Overseas taxes paid (375) (551) BAEIMAIE
NET CASH FLOWS USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (72,855) (179,888) BEEBZMEREREIE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERENER

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE“Z_=F+_"_HA=+—HIFE

Notes 2023 2022

HK$'000 (g3 —8-= B BT

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEHZRERE

Interest received 4,998 1,419 BUFIE \

Purchases of property, plant and equipment (33,397) (49,166) RENE BER&AE

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 28(b) - 631 HEMR RS RS BFTSAE

Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale 28(c) - 183,122 HEFFHEZBEMENER o

Decrease in pledged bank deposits with original BERETHAEBB=EA 2B HEMRITERRD
maturity of more than three months when acquired 63 1,832

NET CASH FLOWS (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM REEHZ (iF) /FEREREFH
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (28,336) 137,838

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEBHZRERE

Addition of bank loans 3,929 - SRATERURM

Repayment of bank loans (3,929) - BERITER

Addition of loan from an intermediate holding company 155,000 - PREERA B SRR

Repayment of loan from an intermediate holding company (155,000) - BEPEEZRATEM

Principal portion of lease payments (119,589) (127,850) MERR AR

Proceeds from issue of shares upon rights issue 24(c) 315,374 - HIREFRTIRID Z TS TR

Transaction costs incurred in respect of rights issue (2.702) - RERELEZRGHA

Proceeds from issue of shares upon exercise of share options - 2,101 TR ERZITRM 25

NET CASH FLOWS GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) MEZB G/ (i) REREFH
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 193,083 (125,749)

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 91,892 (167,799) RERRESEERZFEM/ (HD)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 93,142 266,655 ENzHEeRETEEER

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (368) (5.714) IERMEEFH I FE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 184,666 93,142 FRZBERATEEER

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERAEEEEBERD

Cash and bank balances 20 123,573 93,142 BERBITERE \ -~

Non-pledged bank deposits with original maturity of less than BERETHHA DR =EA 2 BILFRITER
three months when acquired 20 61,093 -

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the consolidated ReERERERMAZ R RAEEEER
statement of cash flows 20 184,666 93,142

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Bossini International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The registered office of the Company is located at Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda. Its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) was principally engaged in investment
holding and the retailing, distribution and wholesaling of garments.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), unless otherwise
stated and have been approved for issue by board of Directors on 20 March 2024.

BASIC OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods
presented, unless otherwise stated. The consolidated financial statements are for the Group consisting of
the Company and its subsidiaries.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Compliance with HKFRS and HKCO
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance Cap. 622 ("HKCQO"). The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a historical cost convention.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 4.

e RR MG
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21 iREE
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R REBRTRD ($6228) (EBREFAD) BIIKER
ERM - -IROVBRRERBELHAERFR

RUENEEAMBREENNGE SV BEREAFTEEAETE
ARG sths - EEETF AN EAREE G5 BRI H i o
HRBREREEHE M RRR LT HGR M FREM
EEEARZBIEIHIEARE -

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED E i EEEE AR AR 9 1

c
2
=
©
<
—
o
L
=
©
(%
c
5
=
[N



fok B S

2
=
o
>
@,
o
-
=
o
=
3
o
=P
o
S

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RN

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b) New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The Group has applied the following new and amended standards for its annual reporting period

commencing 1 January 2023:
HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice

Statement 2 (Amendments)
HKAS 8 (Amendments)

HKAS 12 (Amendments)

HKAS 12 (Amendments)
HKFRS 17

HKFRS 17

HKFRS 17 (Amendments)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2
— Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendments to HKAS 8 — Definition of Accounting
Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12 — International Tax Reform
— Pillar Two Model Rules

Insurance Contracts

Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 9
— Comparative Information

Amendments to HKFRS 17 — /nsurance Contracts

The adoption of the above new and amendments to standards did not have significant financial
impact on the consolidated financial statements, except for the adoption of Amendments to HKAS 12

as stated in note 2.2(b).
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HKAS 1 (Amendments)
HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7

(Amendments)

HKAS 21 (Amendments)

HKAS 28 and HKFRS 10

(Amendments)

HKFRS 16 (Amendments)

Hong Kong Interpretation 5

(Revised)

Certain amendments to accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not
mandatory for the year ended 31 December 2023 and have not been early adopted by the Group.
These standards, amendments or interpretations are not expected to have a material impact on the
entity in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
() New standards, amendments and interpretations not yet adopted

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Non-current liabilities with
Covenants

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 - Supplier Finance
Arrangements

Amendments to HKAS 21 — Lack of Exchangeability

Amendments to HKAS 28 and HKFRS 10 - Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

Amendments to HKFRS 16 — Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

Revised Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M B IRAR M
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M BRI

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

2.2 BEHEHEEH
(a) HEIEHRIARG IR HLHZ G5 BERES)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Change in accounting policy on offsetting arrangement in long service payment scheme in
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Hong Kong SAR

In June 2022, the Government of the Hong Kong SAR enacted the Employment and Retirement
Schemes Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the “Amendment
Ordinance”) which will be effective from 1 May 2025 (the “Transition Date"”). Under the Amendment
Ordinance, any accrued benefits attributable to the employer’s mandatory contributions under
mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF Benefits”) of an entity would no longer be eligible to offset
against its obligations on long service payment (“LSP”) for the portion of the LSP accrued on or after
the Transition Date. There is also a change in the calculation basis of last monthly wages for the
portion of the LSP accrued before the Transition Date.

Prior to 1 January 2023, the Group applied practical expedient in HKAS 19 paragraph 93(b) (the
“practical expedient”) to account for the offsetable MPF Benefits as deemed employee contributions
to reduce the current service costs in the period in which the related services were rendered.

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP
offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong” (the “Guidance”) which provides clarified and detailed
guidance on the accounting considerations relating to the abolition of the offsetting mechanism. The
Guidance clarified that following the enactment of the Amendment Ordinance, LSP is no longer a
‘simple type of contributory plans’ to which the practical expedient had been intended to apply.

By following the Guidance, the Group has therefore changed its accounting policy and ceased to
apply the practical expedient and reattribute the deemed employee contributions on a straight-
line basis from the date when services by employees first lead to their benefits in terms of the LSP
legislation in accordance with HKAS 19 paragraph 93(a). This change in accounting policy upon the
cessation in applying the practical expedient has resulted in a catch-up adjustment for past service
costs and a corresponding increase in the Group’s LSP obligations in the year of enactment of the
Amendment Ordinance (i.e. year ended 31 December 2022). The adjustment is recognised as past
service costs in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2022 as the Amendment Ordinance is
not contemplated in the original LSP legislation.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) Adoption of Amendments to HKAS 12

The amendments narrow the scope of initial recognition exemption such that it does not apply to
transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences on initial recognition such
as leases and decommissioning liabilities. The Group should recognise deferred tax assets (to the
extent that it is probable that they can be utilised) and deferred tax liabilities at the beginning of the
earliest comparative period for all deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with these
transactions. The cumulative effect of recognising these adjustments is recognised in the opening
balance of retained profits, or another component of equity, as appropriate.

By adopting the above amendments, the Group should recognise the temporary difference arising
from right-of-use assets and lease liabilities at the beginning of the earliest comparative period.

The adoption of above amendments does not have any impact on the consolidated statement of
financial position and consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for
the current period or any prior period and is not likely to affect future periods, but it affects the
disclosure of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities as shown in note 23.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M BRI

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS
The Group's principal financial instruments comprise cash and bank balances, time deposits and bills
payable. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as debtors, deposits and trade creditors,
which arise directly from its operations.

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign currency
risk, fair value and cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign currency risk
The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise from the sales and
purchases in foreign operations in currencies other than the United States dollar and Hong Kong
dollar. Approximately 35% (2022: 40%) of the Group's sales were denominated in currencies
other than the United States dollar and Hong Kong dollar. The Group has not used any derivative
contracts to hedge against its exposure to currency risk. The Group will continue to monitor
foreign currency risk exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency risk should
need the rise.

Since Hong Kong dollar is pegged to United States dollar, management considers that there is no
significant foreign currency risk between these two currencies to the Group.

As at 31 December 2023, if Hong Kong dollar had weakened/strengthened by 5% against
Renminbi and Singapore dollar with all other variables held constant, post-tax loss for the
year would be HK$10,645,000 lower/higher (2022: HK$11,898,000 lower/higher) and
HK$8,832,000 lower/higher (2022: HK$6,069,000 lower/higher) respectively, mainly as a result
of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of Renminbi denominated and Singapore dollar
denominated cash and cash equivalents, debtors and other receivables, trade creditors and other
payables.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(i) Fair value and cash flow interest rate risk
The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Group's bank balances during the year.

As at 31 December 2023, if the interest rates on bank balances had increased/decreased by
100 basis points with all other variables held constant, pre-tax loss for the year would be
HK$1,207,000 lower/higher (2022: HK$911,000 lower/higher).

(b) Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group is primarily attributable to balances with banks, debtors, other receivables
and rental deposits. The carrying amounts of these balances represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets. The credit risk on deposits with banks is limited as
the Group mainly places the deposits in banks with high credit rating.

Retail sales are usually made in cash, through credit cards or through reputable and dispersed
department stores. The Group's credit sales are only made to wholesale and franchised customers,
with an appropriate credit history and on credit terms of 60 days. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Debtors

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS
9, which permits the use of lifetime expected loss provision for all debtors. To measure the expected
credit losses, trade customers have been grouped based on share credit risk characteristics (i.e. by
geographical region and customer type). The expected loss rates are based on the historical credit loss
rate that are based on the historical loss experience of these customers. The historical loss rates are
adjusted to reflect current and forward looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the receivables.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M BRI

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (continued) 3.1 BFHRAREE (&)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EERE (&)
Debtors (continued) FEW AR (#8)
As at 31 December 2023, the expected credit losses of these collectively assessed debtors were R R =+ A=+ —H ZFEERTLNRRERR A
HK$629,000 (2022: HK$240,000) based on expected loss rates of 1.38% (2022: 1.24%) applied on HR{E B 518478 15629,0007T (B - 4 : #1240,0007T) °
different geographical region of customers. BERRTRAMEME 2 & A 2 EHREBGIEZE1.38% (Z2 22

F11.24%) stBe

The closing loss allowance for debtors as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 reconcile to the opening N_E =B FF A=+ —HZBRERZE
loss allowance as follows: B EREYBEEE 2 HROT ¢
2023 2022

HK$'000 —BC= - BT
Opening loss allowance 240 253 FYEEEEE
Increase in loss allowance recognised in profit or loss FARIBRES 2 BEEEIE N ()

during the year (note 8) 393 -
Exchange realignment (@) (13) DIREE
Closing loss allowance 629 240 FHREBRRE
Impairment losses on debtors are presented as net impairment losses with “Selling, distribution and FEWERR 2 BERBEZ2 A HE - D REMEERS IR
other operating expenses”. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited EEIEFER - BRIl feAT e 2 SIBET AR —IEB ©

against the same line item.

Other financial assets at amortised costs LA 5 E 2 AT M EE

The directors of the Group consider the probability of default upon initial recognition of assets and AEBEENEEVGRRIDEET RENNAEY  MiEERN
whether there has been significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis during the year. To EERGEEREREEEN T HEEREESTESIEM
assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group compares risk of a default B AREBRFEORBEESLEENNR RGN
occurring on the assets as at year end date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. EORBETILE -FR2EE T UTHER !

Especially the following indicators are incorporated:
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

Other financial assets at amortised costs (continued)
e actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the debtors’ ability to meet its obligations;

e actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of debtors;
e significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same debtor;

e significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour of debtors, including changes
in the payment status of the debtor in the Group and changes in the operating results of the
debtor.

Regardless of the analysis above, a significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor is more
than 30 days past due in making a contractual payment/repayable demand.

A default on a financial asset when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments/repayable
demanded within 90 to 180 days of when they fail due.

The Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount of each individual receivable to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. Over the term of the financial
assets, the Group accounts for its credit risk by appropriately providing for expected credit losses on a
timely basis. In calculating the expected credit loss rates, the Group considers historical loss rates for
each category of debtors, and adjusts for forward looking macroeconomic data. As at 31 December
2023, the expected credit losses of these collectively assessed deposits and other receivables was
HK$2,483,000 (2022: HK$1,318,000) based on expected loss rates approximately from 1.38% to
1.88% (2022: from 1.24% to 2.35%) applied on counterparties’ sectors.
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3.1 MBRBREZR (&)
(b) EEREK (@)

RS EZRAMEHEE (B)
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REREFABITEENENELEEREE;
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M BRI

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)
Other financial assets at amortised costs (continued)
The closing loss allowance for other financial assets at amortised cost as at 31 December 2023 and
2022 reconcile to the opening loss allowance as follows:

3.1 MBREBEZR (&)
(b) EEREK (@)

HEE AT EZ At EE (B)
RN =—FR B _F+_A=+—HILHHERStE
ZHthEMEEY FRBEREAFEVBEEHE ZHRTT ¢

2023 2022
HK$'000 —Z”= e CE BT
Opening loss allowance 1,318 1,351 FHEEEEE
Increase/(decrease) in loss allowance of deposits and FAREGRER B R EMEWIRIE Z BIEEHEIEM
other receivables recognised in profit or loss during CRiZL) (M9EE8)
the year (note 8) 1,171 (10)
Exchange realignment (6) (23) DI
Closing loss allowance 2,483 1,318 FREERE

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the
impact of impairment loss was immaterial.

(c) Liquidity risk
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This
tool considers the maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., debtors) and
projected cash flows from operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
by keeping adequate credit facilities from banks. The Group had credit facilities from banks of
HK$196,008,000 (2022: HK$195,924,000) for overdrafts, loans, letter of credit, trade financing
and guarantees and approximately HK$16,231,000 (2022: HK$17,333,000) was utilised as at 31
December 2023.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had total loan facility of HK$200,000,000 (2022:
HK$200,000,000) granted by an intermediate holding company. No facility was utilised as at 31
December 2023 (2022: Nil).
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M B IRAR M

31 December 2023 ZZZ=F+"A=+—H

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (continued) 3.1 BFHAREE (&)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (0 RBERAME @)
The maturity profile of the Group’s non-derivatives financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting RREMAR AEBERBINERMRURZIFTEESME
period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows: BRHEABERWOT
At 31 December 2023 RZE-_=F+"RA=+—H
On
demand or
less than 1to 2to
12 months 2 years 5 years Total
BEREY
HK$'000 L+ A —EWE MERSE st BT
Non-derivatives JETTETA
Financial liabilities included in trade creditors, BT AFE(TERR s EMENTRIE R
other payables and accruals 120,357 - - 120,357 FEETARIBEZ RBE
Bills payable 13,353 - - 13,353 FE (I %
Due to fellow subsidiaries 7,849 - - 7,849 FE T [B) 2 Y 8 A B 7R I8
Due to related companies 3 - - 3 FE(TRAE A BIRIA
Lease liabilities 103,421 54,009 26,141 183,571 HE&E
Total non-derivatives 244,983 54,009 26,141 325,133 JETET 4%
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RN

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued)
At 31 December 2022

HK$°000

3.1 M EARER (8)

(o) mEHBEERA &)
W2 -_F+-H=+—H

BT T

Non-derivatives

Financial liabilities included in trade creditors,

other payables and accruals
Bills payable
Due to fellow subsidiaries
Due to related companies
Lease liabilities

Total non-derivatives

3.2 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise

shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the

years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

borrowings over total equity.
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The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio calculated on the basis of interest-bearing bank

The Group did not have any interest-bearing bank borrowings as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M B IRAR M

31 December 2023 ZZZ=F+"A=+—H

3.3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 33EMIT RS
2023 2022
HK$'000 = —EF A&+
Financial assets at amortised cost BRBHER AT IR EREE
Debtors 21,254 24,559 FEUS AR R
Deposits and other receivables 82,843 85,125 e REMBEIARIE
Due from a related company 1,767 - FEUWL BB A B IE
Pledged bank deposits 64 127 BIEFIRITER
Cash and cash equivalents 184,666 93,142 HEeKREEBIER
Total 290,594 202,953 4Bt
Financial liabilities at amortised cost HREHER AT Rz EREE
Trade creditors, other payables and accruals 120,357 127,918 FETRRFR ~ Ef TR IE 2 e 5TERTE
Bills payable 13,353 14,812 FE(T %
Due to fellow subsidiaries 7,849 1,527 e RIZA M B AT RIE
Due to related companies 3 1,474 FEIRIE A RIRIA
Lease liabilities 158,813 214,726 HEas
Total 300,375 360,457 4ast
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M BRI

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

(a) Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets at the end of each reporting period in accordance with the accounting policies
stated in note 33. This requires an estimation of the value-in-use and fair value less cost of disposal
of the asset. Estimating the value-in-use for the impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the asset using key assumptions such as the estimated future store performance,
economic environment and the sales growth rate and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The carrying amounts of the Group's property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2023 were HK$17,559,000 (2022:
HK$33,382,000) and HK$70,281,000 (2022: HK$89,221,000), respectively for which the impairment
provision made during the year for the Group’s property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
amounting to HK$17,614,000 (2022: HK$21,563,000) and HK$37,752,000 (2022: HK$56,777,000).

1 O4ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F#
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)
(b) Provision for inventories

(0

The Group reviews the ageing analysis of inventories of the Group at the end of each reporting
period, and makes provision for inventory items whose costs may not be fully recoverable. The
assessment of the provision amount involves management judgements and estimates by considering
inventory ageing, historical sales patterns and expected subsequent sales based on internal budgets
and certain market factors. Where the actual outcome or expectation in future is different from the
original estimate, such differences will have an impact on the carrying value of the inventories and
provision charge/write-back in the period in which such estimate has been changed. In addition,
physical counts on all inventories are carried out on a periodical basis in order to determine whether
provision needs to be made in respect of any obsolete inventories identified. The Group reassesses
the estimation at the end of each reporting period and is satisfied that sufficient provision for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories has been made in the consolidated financial statements. The
carrying amount of the Group's inventories as at 31 December 2023 was HK$144,912,000 (2022:
HK$171,866,000).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
The amount of unrecognised tax losses as at 31 December 2023 was HK$1,355,655,000 (2022:
HK$1,203,104,000). Further details on tax losses are set out in note 23.

4 EXG
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(d)

(e)

Share-based payment

The Group is required to expense its employees’ share-based compensation awards in accordance
with HKFRS 2 Share-based payment. The Group measures share-based compensation cost based on
the fair value on the grant date of each award. This cost is recognised over the period during which
an employee is required to provide service in exchange for the award or the requisite service period,
usually the vesting period, and is adjusted for actual forfeitures that occur before vesting. In order to
assess the fair value of share-based compensation, the Group is required to use certain assumptions,
including the probability of reaching the market performance, if any, and financial results targets, the
forfeitures and the service period of each employee. The use of different assumptions and estimates
could produce materially different estimated fair values for the share-based compensation awards and
related expenses.

Lease term

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an
economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension
options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is
reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated). For leases of retail stores, management
assumes no renew or extension of leases.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units that offer products to customers
located in different geographical areas and has three reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, China (“Hong Kong SAR”) and The Macau Special
Administrative Region, China (“Macau SAR")

(b) Mainland China

() Singapore

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted loss before tax. The
adjusted loss before tax is measured consistently with the Group's loss before tax except that interest
income and non-lease-related finance costs are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets as these assets are managed on a Group basis.
Segment liabilities exclude deferred tax liabilities and tax payable as these liabilities are managed on a
Group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
third parties at the then prevailing market prices.

Geographical segments
The following tables present revenue, profit/loss and certain asset, liability and expenditure information of
the Group's geographical segments for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M BRI

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

"W 5 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 RENEER (@
Geographical segments (continued) s 5358 (48)
Hong Kong SAR and Macau SAR Mainland China Singapore Consolidated
REE B R ERM FE R s e
HK$'000 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
BT —Z-= “EBICF ZEZ= TBCCF —E-= “BICF —EC= TEBCCF

Segment revenue:

) DR

Sales to external customers
\ HEFIMEER 392,120 350,302 153,975 165,745 58,128 69,108 604,223 585,155
Other income and gain
Hi A\ Rz 18,349 210,165 3,013 1,064 503 350 21,865 211,579
Total
Bt 410,469 560,467 156,988 166,809 58,631 69,458 626,088 796,734

Segment results
J DEEE 6,810 141,247 (199,499) (266,932) (34,572) (7,617) (227,261) (133,302)

Interest income

YN 4,998 1,419
Loss from operating activities
EEXBRE (222,263) (131,883)
Finance costs (other than interest on lease liabilities)
MENA REEEN SR (612) -
Loss before tax
BRI AR (222,875) (131,883)
- Income tax expense
= FisiEX (493) (371)
3
&g Loss for the year
T ENER (223,368) (132,254)
i 3
%3
gﬂ The revenue information above is based on the locations in which the sales are originated. R E R IRIRINE EEFREEID -
>
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M B IRAR M

31 December 2023 ZZZ=F+"A=+—H

5 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 KEREEN (@
Geographical segments (continued) s 5358 (48)
Hong Kong SAR and Macau SAR Mainland China Singapore Consolidated
HEEERTERMN HEl R o 24

HK$'000 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
BRI —EC= E-CfF ZEZ= ECCF —E-= ZEBICHE —E-= TEICE
Segment assets

NHEE 334,203 238,237 131,625 202,591 73,954 72,663 539,782 513,491

Unallocated assets
KOEEE 3N 300

Total assets
mEE 540,153 513,791

Segment liabilities

HiEaR 173,380 193,952 111,597 161,098 47,742 36,832 332,719 391,882
Unallocated liabilities

A=Y 792 1,606
Total liabilities

=l 333,511 393,488
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M BRI

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

"W 5 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 KEREEN (@
Geographical segments (continued) s 5358 (48)
Hong Kong SAR and Macau SAR Mainland China Singapore Consolidated
HEEERAERM HE R Honsg 24
HK$'000 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
AT —E-= ZBICF = ZBICF —E-= B —E-= -
Other segment information:
y HitrpEER
Impairment of property, plant and equipment
\ ME- -BERREZRE 228 1,147 16,000 20,416 1,386 - 17,614 21,563
Impairment of right-of-use assets
FREEEZAE 553 3,971 25,263 51,737 11,936 1,069 37,752 56,777
Loss on disposaliwrite-off of property, plant and equipment, net
HE/WENE BEREE TR 675 372 6,848 610 - - 7,523 982
Gain on disposal of assets held for sale
HERFEHEZBEZ WA - (173,685) - - - - - (173,685)
(Write-back of provision)/provision for inventories
75 (RERE) /HE 7,440 2,108 (9,126) 821 1,146 (1,927) (540) 1,002
y Impairment of debtors
FEWERT 2 B 203 - 190 - - - 393 -
\ Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of deposits and other receivables
e RAMBWERBZRE (REED) 198 (10) 973 - - - 1171 (10)
Capital expenditure*
BARY 9,155 14,141 21,550 31,880 2,692 3,145 33,397 49,166
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and investment properties
ME -BERREARLENEZINE 6,978 7,028 15,333 8,576 940 1,432 23,251 17,036
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
FREEEZINE 41,877 46,375 13,692 18,892 15,867 14,200 71,436 79,467
Non-current assets**
FERBEE 61,724 67,612 754 29,591 28,876 29,501 91,354 126,704
o
=) *  Capital expenditure consists of additions of property, plant and equipment. * BARLTHERERBEVE BEREHE
3
o O.
g % **  The non-current assets information above is based on the locations of assets and excludes deferred tax assets and > Pl BRIERHEEZERNIRBEEMEMHE FEERERIE
i gh the non-current portion of deposits. BERZRE ZIERENED
%3
o
=S
>
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

e RR MG

31 December 2023 ZZZ=F+"A=+—H

RENEEN (8

Information about major customers ﬁﬁliggﬁ ZEH
No sales to a single customer or a group of customers under common control accounted for 10% or more BHE =SERZECIHF+ZA=+—HIEFEE HE—FF
of the Group's revenue during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. _E#HF“%J"FE’]—ZH%)E' BYSH & T R L AR EE UG AV10% 30U o
REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAIN Wz ~ ELAth U A R Wz
An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gain is as follows: AEE [ 7 WS ~ B WG AT -
Revenue from contracts with customers EREHWE
2023 2022

HK$'000 —TZ= ZEICE BT
Retailing and distribution of garments transferred REERMEER 2 R EE RO H

at a point in time 604,223 585,155

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in the current reporting period that
were included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period and recognised from
performance obligations satisfied in previous periods:

"F%%W'J.:H\%Eiﬁﬂ%ﬂé?’]%fi&@ BIEAEER R SEFTHE
RS HE ERERIR 28

2023 2022
HK$'000 —EC= TECTF BT T
Distribution of garments 3,607 3,233 DEEaE =
Retailing of garments — customer loyalty programme 132 231 MRS E K P R EEN T2
3,739 3,464

Accounting policies of revenue recognition

Retailing and distribution of garments

Revenue from the retailing and distribution of garments is recognised at the point in time when control
of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the garment products. Other than cash
and credit card sales, the Group normally grants credit period of up to 60 days to its trade customers.

WsEiEEE 2 ST EUGR

R EER

RREERDHEZ W@ EEZIEHEESBER P 2 KE R
—BARMRRERZF FFRIRERERFRHEEN FERE— Hy
BRTRTHESERRS60KEER
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M BRI

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

6 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAIN (continued) 6 Ui~ HA Kk (8)
Other income and gain H AU A T U &
2023 2022
HK$'000 ZEI=H = BT
Interest income 4,998 1,419 IISYON
Royalty income 3,689 6,200 ES =N
Rental income from third parties 2,957 3,456 Mm% = A WA Z BE WA
Rental income and other income from fellow subsidiaries BEZ M B A B WAz & R Z A A (i5E31@))
(note 31(a)) 4,808 3,904
Government grants (note a) 712 6,015 BT #EEN (Bi5Ea)
Gain on disposal of assets held for sale (note b) - 173,685 HEFFHE 2 EEZ NG (IsEb)
Write-back of other payables 6,336 16,745 Hih g =B #
Others 3,363 1,574 Hith
26,863 212,998
Notes: 5T
(@) The amount for the year ended 31 December 2022 mainly represented the subsidy granted by The Government @ HEZTT - F+-A=1+—"HUEFEZ®RIFEATEHETEENR
of the Hong Kong SAR under the Anti-Epidemic Fund. This is a wage subsidy for eligible employers to retain their BHEMERESHEE @B bt ASERETIGBES Z ML
employees, subject to certain conditions. There was no unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attached to MEZE RS TR P AR PR o W BN 5% 55 # B L 8 SR 42 P 1 1 T B A5 4 4T
the receipts of those grants. HMsREIE-
(b) The amount represented the gain on disposal of assets held for sale of investment properties for the year ended 31 b)) HEZZ-_ZHF+A=1+—HIFESBEARERSFHEZRE
December 2022. MEBEZ W
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M B IRAR M

31 December 2023 ZZZ=F+"A=+—H

FINANCE COSTS 7 BWERE
2023 2022
HK$'000 —E=HE TECF BT
Interest on lease liabilities (note 16(b)) 9,038 9,832 HEaBzME (ME16())
Interest on loan from an intermediate holding company FREERABERZHE IEERMEE3 1)
(note and note 31(a)) 595 -
Interest on bank loans 17 - IRITEHRZFE
9,650 9,832
Note: 5T
During the year ended 31 December 2023, total of HK$155,000,000 loan facility from an intermediate holding HE_Z_=F+-A=+—HBLEFE KT HEERABDEFZEE

company were utilised and repaid with the interest expenses of HK$595,000 recognised.

155,000,0007c E AR E B 81 A KB 12 > fEs2F] B F S B 15595,0007T ©
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M BRI

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

8 LOSS BEFORE TAX
The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

8 FRMAIEIR

REEZ RMATEBEENR, GTA) T7ER !

2023 2022
HK$'000 ZEI=H TR BT
Cost of sales: THE A
Cost of inventories sold 299,849 310,929 EREFEEZMA
(Write-back of provision)/provision for inventories (540) 1,002 FE (BEHL) A
299,309 311,931
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration — note 9): BTMA (BIREEME—MIEE9) !
Salaries, wages, allowances and benefits 187,877 191,226 e TEVEMAET
(Reversal of)/equity-settled share option expenses (1,250) 6,701 (B[O RS EERERSY
Pension scheme contributions (note a) 22,437 23,251 BAREEEIMHER (W5ka)
209,064 221,178
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 71,436 79,467 FREEEZINE
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and ME- -BERBEURGENEZINE
investment properties 23,251 17,036
Lease payments not included in the measurement of FEEREESGEHEZHENR
lease liabilities:
Buildings 23,366 19,102 £
Contingent rents of retail stores 19,159 34,086 TEEFHNAEE
Plant and machinery 577 476 5% 18 Re 1 28
Less: Rent concessions related to COVID-19 pandemic - (6,102) B B AR RS IEERA B ER
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8 LOSS BEFORE TAX (continued)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RR MG

31 December 2023 ZZZ=F+"A=+—H

8 FRIAAIESIR (&)

2023 2022

HK$'000 —E= TET T BT T
Auditor's remuneration 2,614 2,080 TZ BN &
Impairment of property, plant and equipment (note b) 17,614 21,563 ME- B KREE 2 RE (Eb)
Impairment of right-of-use assets (note b) 37,752 56,777 ERAREE HE (fEh)
Impairment of debtors (note b) 393 - FEUWBRFR 2 B(E (MI5Ehb)
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of deposits and e R EMEWEREZ BIE ORE#[ED) (istb)

other receivables (note b) 1,171 (10)
Write-off of deposits and other receivables - 547 ¥ e B FE UK BRIE 2 55
Foreign exchange differences, net (108) (2,618) SMERIAERE JRE
Loss on disposal/write-off of property, HE WHEYE - BERREZIFEE

plant and equipment, net 7,523 982
Gain on disposal of assets held for sale - (173,685) HEREHEZEEZ Wm
Gain on early termination of leases (20,693) (2,801) PR IEEEZ WS
Gain on lease modification (408) - HEE:T 2 Wm
Write-back of other payables (6,336) (16,745) H eI FRIE#E O]
Storage service charges 15,780 16,698 BERBE
Notes: L

(@ MRIZ=F+"A=+—H FEETE CE_"F . 8) o AER

(@) As at 31 December 2023, there were no (2022: HK$Nil) forfeited contributions available to the Group to reduce its

contributions to the ORSO Scheme in future years.

(b) Impairment/reversal of impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, debtors and deposits
and other receivables was included in “Selling, distribution and other operating expenses” on the face of the

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

2R B RIS B (R R U iR

b) ME- -BMEKRRFE BRELEE BUIRRURESRAMBUIREZ
RE/RERCEaETERe R kEMEEKaR e THE Dk
HEERs)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M BRI

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

9 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9 EXME
Directors’ remuneration for the years disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies RIBEERARAEGIFEIBMNERAF RBEEMEER) HEIH2
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation HmwE s FEESMEWT !

are as follows:

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EZE
2023 2022
HK$'000 —E-= B CHF BT
Executive directors: HITESF !
Fees 685 500 W
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 2,136 2,235 e R REY NG
Equity-settled share option expenses 1,213 926 MG EERERS
Pension scheme contributions 33 24 BRIREETEMHRR
4,067 3,685
Non-executive directors: JEHITESE .
Fees 315 500 HBwE
Equity-settled share option expenses 65 300 BREEERERS
380 800
Independent non-executive directors: BILIERITES ©
Fees 900 900 W
Equity-settled share option expenses 24 60 EmiEERERERS
924 960
5,371 5,445

fok B S

2
=
o
>
@,
o
-
=
o
=
3
o
=P
o
S

1 1 6ANNUAL REPORT 2023 R



9 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M B IRAR M

31 December 2023 ZZZ=F+"A=+—H

9 EEM=E (&)

Directors’ remuneration for the years disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies RIBEEBRBEGIEIMNERAT RBEEEFEER) HEIH2
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation MIWEFEEEMENOT | @)

are as follows: (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)
(i)  Executive directors

() EFM=E (&
) HITEFE

Salaries,
allowances Equity-
and settled Pension
benefits  share option scheme Total
Fees in kind expenses contributions remuneration
R ey BihE
HK$'000 weE  REUKRE  BREBRX BEIGE [ k| BT T
2023 —EC=HE
Mr. CHEUNG Chi 250 1,200 242 18 1,710 SRELE
Mr. ZHAO Jianguo 250 560 768 1 1,589 HEESLE
Ms. YU Xin (note(i)) 185 376 203 4 768 St (BEEG)
685 2,136 1,213 33 4,067
2022 —EBCH
Mr. CHEUNG Chi 250 1,200 601 18 2,069 SRE L
Mr. ZHAO Jianguo 250 - 225 - 475 HER ST
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul Bh s o A (B &EGi))
(notelii)) - 1,035 100 6 1,141
500 2,235 926 24 3,685

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED E i EEEE AR AR 1 1 7
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RN

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

9 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued)

Directors’ remuneration for the years disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation

are as follows: (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)
(i) - Non-executive directors

Equity-settled

EEME (B
RBEEBRBERAIEIIMNERAD RBEEFTmEL) RAIEH2
BB FEEFNEWT @ (B

(@) EFM=E (&
(i) FFRITEE

share option Total
Fees expenses remuneration
g

HK$'000 wne BB ERI S i & 48 %A T T
2023 —E-=
Mr. Victor HERRERO (note(jii)) 65 19 84 Victor HERREROAG4E (B3 5%(iii))
Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco 250 46 296 BIENSE

315 65 380
2022 —E-=
Mr. Victor HERRERO (noteliii)) 250 188 438 Victor HERREROZE 4 (B 5E(iii))
Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco 250 112 362 BIENSE

500 300 800

1 1 8ANNUAL REPORT 2023 R



9 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M B IRAR M

31 December 2023 ZZZ=F+"A=+—H

9 EEXEME 8@

Directors’ remuneration for the years disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies RIBEEBRBEGIEIMNERAT RBEEEFEER) HEIH2
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation MIWEFEEEMENOT | @)

are as follows: (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)
(ii)) Independent non-executive directors

Equity-settled

() EFM=E (&
(i) I IFFITEE

share option Total
Fees expenses remuneration
HemEE

HK$'000 ik MRS Al & 4848 EHET T
2023 ==
Mr. LEE Kwok Ming 300 12 312 ZEELE
Prof. SIN Yat Ming 300 6 306 A= ESE S €5
Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong 300 6 306 BEREE

900 24 924
2022 —E-C
Mr. LEE Kwok Ming 300 30 330 FEARALE
Prof. SIN Yat Ming 300 15 315 A=l EE S €
Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong 300 15 315 BEam i E

900 60 960
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A
7 Ny |

B MY aE

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

9 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued)
Directors’ remuneration for the years disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation
are as follows: (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)
Notes:

(i)  Ms. YU Xin was appointed as the Company’s executive director on 4 April 2023.
(i) Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul resigned from the Company’s executive director on 1 May 2022.

(iii) Mr. Victor HERRERO resigned from the Company’s non-executive director on 4 April 2023.

Directors’ retirement benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any retirement benefits during the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022.

Directors’ termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any termination benefits during the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022.

1 2 OANNUAL REPORT 2023 R
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RBEEBRBERAIEIIMNERAD RBEEFTmEL) RAIEH2
BB FEEFNEWT @ (B

(a)

(b)

(9]

EEME (W
MiEE

() RALXEIERZZ_=ZFNANBEZEIRABDPTEEHF -
(i) MREHFFEEENR T _FLA—HREEARBNTESHE-

(i) Victor HERREROGCAE BV ZZ - = £ MB WA B EAATIENIT
BEER-

EEZERARER
BE_ S =—FrE__F+A=+—HILFE#HESE
EUWER S W EAE ] 1R ARG R
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTS

31 December 2023 _gi_iJr_ﬁ =+—H

9 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 9 EEME B
Directors’ remuneration for the years disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies RIBEERBMRAFIZEIIMNFE R AT (REESFI@ER) ROIE
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation MIWEFEEEMENOT | @)

are as follows: (continued)

(d) Consideration provided to third parties for making available directors’ services (d) MiRHEZFRBRAZE=FRHEZHKE
During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Company did not pay consideration to any HEZE-_FRIEITFFTZA=F+—HBIEFE ARE
third parties for making available directors’ services. THENERHESREMAEAE= G2 E

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of directors, controlled (e) BRAUES - HR L ZE R HEERASTAZER E
bodies corporate by and connected entities with such directors BRREMRZHER
During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, there were no loans, quasi-loans and other BE_Z__FR_EFEC_F+_A=+—HLEFE #EF
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities with such EZUEE -EREZENHAEERAS G AZER EEH
directors. A EAMEZ o

(f) Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts ) EENRG -THIAENZ2EA#E R
No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the Company’s business to PRI EI3VPAIE RSN ) R A BT L AR R ZEHE B A
which the Company was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, REREF—FARARBDESEEABEEEEARDAR
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the reporting period or at any time during the RERANEFNEARBEEZEALZ ZHEEH (T
year (2022: Nil) other than those disclosed in note 31. - S ) I
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M BRI

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

WU 10 FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10 AREEHES
The five highest paid employees during the year included 1 (2022: 1) director, details of whose FRNELERSHEEEE % (CE"F: —R)EFH ﬁ@ﬂ%’i\ﬁ
remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining 4 (2022: 4) BRI EXMIF - HEFU% (T2 2E [ U4) AR B REH
highest paid employees who are not directors of the Company are as follows: FERREZMEFFEUT !
2023 2022
HK$'000 ZEI=F BT BT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 6,915 8,502 e R REY NG
_ Bonus 3,193 1,528 TE4T
) (Reversal of)/equity-settled share option expenses (1,214) 3,855 (B A EERENS
Pension scheme contributions 94 127 BT B
8,988 14,012
The emoluments fell within the following bands: BN F 7 EE
’ Number of employees
ﬁ BEE#R
2023 2022
—EZ= St
Emolument bands: MR :
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 3 3 7 1#51,500,00175 £ #12,000,0007T
Over HK$3,000,000 1 1 713,000,000 £
4 4
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M B IRAR M

31 December 2023 ZZZ=F+"A=+—H

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1 FRigMEX
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) on the estimated EARAFESRERERZ G ERREFNURE165% (T
assessable profit for the year. The mainland China Corporate Income Tax provision in respect of the F 116.5%) 1R B - SR E R EFZEE 2 PR A TSR
operation in mainland China is calculated based on the statutory tax rate of 25% (2022: 25%) on the BETRBARRITER RENEARERNMGHEFIU25% (Z
estimated profits for the year based on existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof. LT TF 125%) ZEEMRESE o BINAFIRMIBIIRFERN 2 (G5
Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates EER N RIEAEEEBLCEMTERR ZIRITREE o

of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

2023 2022
HK$'000 —EZ= —EF A&+
Current income tax BREAFRE R
— Hong Kong profits tax 195 1,052 —EANIER
— Overseas taxation 375 551 —iBIMRIE
570 1,603
Over provision in prior years BEFEEBEEE
— Hong Kong profits tax (6) (399) —E5ANE
564 1,204
Deferred income tax (note 23) (71) (833) IRICFR1SAR (MF5E23)
493 371
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M BRI

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 11 FRiSHEX (@)
The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using REEFFAERNATBENRBEEREBRAN G ERBBENINE
the weighted average tax rate applicable to loss of the consolidated entities as follows: FHMEGFEZIEmEEAE ZR2WT .
2023 2022

HK$'000 —EZ= - BETT
Loss before income tax (222,875) (131,883) FriSiR Ak 18
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable BERRSBERZaN 2 EMMESHE ZRIE

to profits in the respective countries (52,369) (42,375)
Tax effects of: MBLE !

— Income not subject to tax (15,346) (38,720) —BEHRZ A

— Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 14,164 18,582 —ANEERIEIRZ X

— Tax losses and temporary differences for which no —RERIEIERIBEEE

deferred tax asset was recognised 59,613 65,764 MRIEEE R GRS ERR

— Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised (5,398) (2,316) — BRI RIER 2 IR IERT IR
Over provision in prior years (6) (399) B FEBEEE
Tax concession (note) (165) (165) M ER (55
Income tax expense 493 371 FriSfRMX
Note: BEE
Pursuant to the enactment of two-tiered profits tax rates by the Inland Revenue Department of Hong Kong (“IRD") REEBRBER (MBEB) B2 - — /Z_RRFELEHTE 2 mARHIF
from the year of assessment 2021/22 onwards, the Group’s first HK$2 million of assessable profits under Hong Kong BRZ AERFABE2E B TRRR AN 20T 58.25% c REEBE B
profits tax is subject to tax rate of 8.25%. The Group's remaining assessable profits above HK$2 million will continue to 2E BT MR ERR G B EIL16.5% 2 REHIR

be subject to a tax rate of 16.5%.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M B IRAR M

31 December 2023 ZZZ=F+"A=+—H

12 DIVIDEND 12 B2
No final dividend was proposed for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. BE_ZE_=FRIZ_FT_A=+—HUEFELERIKK
/Hﬂﬂﬂlg\ ©

13

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2023 is based on the loss
for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company of HK$223,368,000 (2022:
HK$132,254,000), and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 3,057,168,472 (2022

13 xAREE#GEREAEGERER
BHE S _—FE+ A=+ HLEEESERELAGEENLRE
AABEEREGDIA ABGFEANRIEHEK223,368,0005T (ZF
T D B18132,254,00070) R FERBETEERIE TS

(restated): 2,485,021,736) in issue during the year. 3,057,168,4728% (ZE - & (IKE7F) : 2,485,021,7360%) 5t&
Weighted average number of the ordinary shares BERmMETSER
2023 2022
—EZ= TEC4F
(restated)
(K55
Issued shares at 1 January 2,470,358,091 2,465,750,091 R—B—HBEZTR®%
Effect of share options exercised - 2,496,088 TEEREE
Effect of rights issue including bonus elements (note 24(c)) 586,810,381 16,775,557 HEBIEANE D 22 (5E24(0)
Weighted average number of shares at 31 December 3,057,168,472 2,485,021,736 R+ZB=+—HZRHMEFEH

HRERECZHSZESRBE ABE"T " —FR-F "~
FHRA=1T-HLFEZSRBETHFRESGREXREIEER -

The diluted loss per share for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 equal to the basic loss per
share as the impact of dilution of the share options is anti-dilutive.

The basic and diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2022 were restated by adjusting BE_Z - F+ZA=1+—HUEFEZSREAREEEHEED
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issues for the bonus element due to the rights issue ETE I*Eiﬁﬁxiv Z=FMA A+t HIEMm IR ATFIE D 5
completed on 27 April 2023. BETEERMETDBIFELAE-
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M BRI

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

_\ 14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 ME - -BEKRRZE
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
B EER
HK$'000 HEMELE WAERE AE LD HEFT
) At 1 January 2022 R-_F__#—RA—H
N Cost 241,058 216,165 1,042 458,265 D% =
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  (224,296) (205,775) (988) (431,059) REHTERRIE
Net book amount 16,762 10,390 54 27,206 EREEE
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-ZE-_—_H#+”"RA=+—HILEE
Opening net book amount 16,762 10,390 54 27,206 HRFDERERE
Additions 38,660 10,231 275 49,166 A
Disposals (1,183) (423) @) (1,613) HE
— Impairment (19,694) (1,869) - (21,563) BE
\ Depreciation (15,240) (1,201) 9) (16,450) e
Exchange realignment (2,799) (507) (58) (3,364) IR
Closing net book amount 16,506 16,621 255 33,382 HAARBRERE
At 31 December 2022 RZEBE__H#+”"A=+—H
Cost 247,711 221,370 1,183 470,264 A&
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  (231,205) (204,749) (928) (436,882) RETTERRE

Net book amount 16,506 16,621 255 33,382 BREFE
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M B IRAR M

31 December 2023 ZZZ=F+"A=+—H

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14 ME - -BEREE (@
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
FREER
HK$'000 TSRS WAERE RE e BT
Year ended 31 December 2023 BE_E_=F+-_A=+—HLtFE
Opening net book amount 16,506 16,621 255 33,382 BRFEREFE
Additions 28,856 4,541 - 33,397 AE
Disposals (4,043) (3,480) - (7,523) HE
Impairment (15,783) (1,639) (192) (17,614) HE
Depreciation (16,575) (6,040) (49) (22,664) e
Exchange realignment (192) (1,220) 7) (1,419) TR
Closing net book amount 8,769 8,783 7 17,559 HAAREREFE
At 31 December 2023 RIE_=F+"HA=+—H
Cost 223,655 220,692 559 444,906 %N
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  (214,886) (211,909) (552) (427,347) T ERRE
Net book amount 8,769 8,783 7 17,559 REVEE
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M BRI

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14 ME- -BERSRE (@
(a) Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment () W% -BERREZREFG
Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the BECESHNFENEBRETRAEE D AR EWEIRETH
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which BRAR REGENEERAEBHETWESETMZEEE
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of R o P ElEEUEEZ AFENREE AR EREER
an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, EZEREEAE -NTEHEMS  BEERRAREE LHKR
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which BEEMEENEEMR CREELEN) 2REMARE Wik
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating BEEIOHRERANREBERDME BEXZTHEZIEER
units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the BEARSRSIAREMAERS I B EETE o

impairment at the end of each reporting period.

The directors of the Group regard each retail store as an individual cash-generating unit for “bossini” AEEBEFREEZSEETHAbossini ) Kl bossini. X1 Z 1737
and “bossini.X” which mainly consist of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets. As at SEEB TEORYE - BEARBUREHEEEE -1
31 December 2023, the carrying amounts of the Group's property, plant and equipment and right-of- TET=F+-B=1+—H ' A~EEYE BERREURE
use assets are analysed as follows: HAREEZREEDNNT
“bossini” “bossini.X" Total
HK$'000 Ibossini | Ibossini.X | st BT
Property, plant and equipment 16,934 625 17,559 MR RERE
Right-of-use assets (note 16(a)) 69,614 667 70,281 fEREEE (fist16(a)
Total 86,548 1,292 87,840 4Bt
In 2021, in addition to the original “bossini” product line operated in Hong Kong SAR, Macau MZEBZ—F > FRIPEE A~ REDEPT ~ oh B A #5570 K
SAR, mainland China and Singapore, the Group has launched a new product line namely “bossini. LEZRAMbossini )RS REBBEE IR %73 bossini.
X" and opened retail stores mainly in mainland China. “bossini.X" stores are at the early stage of X1 M E B E AR ZEEE o [bossini.X J & &5 1 #]
%‘ development with historical operation data available for a relatively short period of time. A RISEL ARz E L EEEIE 2 FFEASERE -
3
sm Q.
g = In view of the continuous unfavourable operating environment experienced by the retail industry HEREEEFEREAFZE/RIE URFRAEHE  REE
5 7 NN (==,
g due to the uncertainty with respect to the timing of the recovery and possible deterioration of the P9~ REI I S T INE TBM E R R R B E R 2 B PR
S 3 N N P P
=3 economic condition and retail sentiment in Hong Kong SAR, Macau SAR, mainland China and THEE BRI pedEE > EER A Mbossini g &z Mbossini X1 IREESE
s Singapore markets, the directors consider that certain property, plant and equipment and right-of-use BAZETYE -BERKEURERESETAEHIREE-
>

assets of “bossini” and “bossini.X" cash-generating units were subject to impairment.

1 2 8ANNUAL REPORT 2023 R



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M B IRAR M

31 December 2023 ZZZ=F+"A=+—H

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14 ME- -BEKRSZE (@
(a) Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment (continued) () M#¥ -BERREZRETE (@
The directors estimate the recoverable amounts of the cash-generating unit as follows: EEMAREELSBMZIREEENT -
Impairment assessment - “bossini” cash-generating units JBEEFIE— [bossini J B & E £ £
As at 31 December 2023, management identified that certain stores had impairment indicators. The N ZEC=FF A=+ —H EEEANE TS HRRE
recoverable amounts of HK$16,934,000 and HK$69,614,000 for property, plant and equipment and AR © Thossini | IREEF B2 YEBREKRZEHEURERRE
right-of-use assets, respectively of the “bossini” cash-generating units have been determined based BEZ AW EI$ 589 558 116,934,0007 28 169,614,000
on a value-in-use calculation which was prepared by the management using cash flow projections T RHEEECERReERERARBN 2 =6+
based on financial budgets and forecasts covering the remaining useful lives of the property, plant =S+—HBERGRRGRBENEETE RaRE2BAER
and equipment and right-of-use assets based on the conditions as at 31 December 2023. Key HEME - BERREUARCEAREER T ERAFHAZTE
assumptions used for the value-in-use calculation as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 BERBAGE R =F+"A=+—HKZZEZZHF
were as follows: +_RA=+—HoEGRBEMRAZEERENT !
Key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculation for “bossini” cash-generating units: T8 Tbossini) BEEFEM 2 EREEMRAZ TE2RRW
B
2023 2022
—§-= —EICE
Sales growth rate (note(a)) (MiizE(a))  (note(b)) (FIEE(b)) HEE RS
Gross margin rate 24% - 56% 28% - 63% ESTIES
Pre-tax discount rate 13% - 14% 13% - 14% AT AL IR
Note: MIEE
(a) Forecast sales of “bossini” cash-generating units for the year ending 31 December 2024 was based on the (@ BEZZNF+ZB=+—HIFE> lbossini) IREEELBIL
historical sales record in 2023, 0% sales growth was assumed for the remaining period of the lease terms. NIERAEENER S =2 ELHELR  BREGHEEH
ZHEBREER0%
(b) Forecast sales of “bossini” cash-generating units was based on the budget approved by senior management (b) Tbossini)REEFEMNBRHENENESREEBHEHE
for the year ending 31 December 2023, 0% sales growth was assumed for the remaining period of the lease TS+ ZR=+—HUEFEZEE BRIKRHEEHRZH
terms. ERBREER 0%
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M BRI

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14 ME- -BERSRE (@
(a) Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment (continued) (a) W% -BERREZRETG (@
Impairment assessment - “bossini” cash-generating units (continued) JB 1B EF1E— [bossini j 32 E £ BT (4
The directors determined the above sales growth rate and gross margin rate based on historical EERBECEEMBEURE BRIV AR SEBET it
operation data and taking into consideration of the positive outlook for the near future. B R ERZo
Based on the results of the assessment, impairment provisions of HK$14,648,000 (2022: BEIGEER 8z _ S _=F+_BA=+—RHLEE B
HK$10,805,000) for property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets were recognised in loss Mbossini 3R E 4 B 2 BB ZE B K I R A
during the year ended 31 December 2023 for “bossini” cash-generating units. BE BB ESE14,648,0007t (ZZ2 Z”4:7%1510,805,000
7T) ©
As at 31 December 2023, if the forecast sales for the year ending 31 December 2024 applied to RIZEZ=F+_A=+—HB HEREEZZ_MFE+_A
the cash flow projection for “bossini” cash-generating units had been higher/lower by 10%, an =+—HIEFERM Tbossini) IR EEB 2 IRERESTERF
impairment charge of approximate HK$4,597,000 lower or HK$5,016,000 higher, respectively would Bz FEABEEEI B10%  BEEBEDBED LB
be resulted. 4,597,00075 538 494 #55,016,0007T ©
As at 31 December 2023, if the discount rate applied to the cash flow projection for “bossini” cash- N ZEC=F+"A=+—8" &% Tbossini 1 3REEEEM
generating units had been higher/lower by 1%, an impairment charge of approximate HK$127,000 ZRERETEAERZBIRFIEM R % REERRE D
higher or HK$128,000 lower, respectively would be resulted. AIGNNAYEHE127,0007T 3% 6 49 A& #5128,0007T ©
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
(a) Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment (continued)

Impairment assessment - “bossini. X" cash-generating units

As at 31 December 2023, management identified that certain stores had impairment indicators. The
recoverable amounts of HK$625,000 and HK$667,000 for property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets, respectively of the "bossini.X” cash-generating units have been determined based
on a value-in-use calculation which was prepared by the management using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets and forecasts covering the remaining useful lives of the property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets based on the conditions as at 31 December 2023. Key
assumptions used for the value-in-use calculation as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 were as follows:

Key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculation for “bossini.X" cash-generating units:

2023 2022
—EZ= —ECF

e RR MG

31 December 2023 ZZZ=F+"A=+—H

14 ME--KBEKRRE (B)
(@) Y% BB RRHEZRENG (@)

TR 1EEF(E— Thossini X I & EL &

RIE_=ZF+-_A=+—RH EBEBRHNETIEHHIRRE
B R © Mbossini X IREEEBEUZYE - BEREZEUKRSE
AHEEJWESEED R A E 6250005t K& E1E667,000
T HREEEEFRREREBAREN _ZE_=F+_4
= +—HNBERREzFHABEAEEE ReEREBHER
HEVE -BEARBUNRGHEEEER N FEBEEHZMFB
EEEBAGE R 2= "_F+"B=+—H
AEEREERFRAZEERRNOT

8 Toossini X IREEEEM 2 EREEMRAZE2RERU
Lk

Sales growth rate (note(a)) (Ffiz¥(a))  (note(b)) (BFzE(b))
Gross margin rate 13% - 64% 18% — 65%
Pre-tax discount rate 14% 14%

Notes:

(@) Forecast sales of “bossini. X" cash-generating units for the year ending 31 December 2024 was based on the
historical sales record in 2023, 0% sales growth was assumed for the remaining period of the lease terms.

(b) Forecast sales of “bossini.X" cash-generating units was based on the budget approved by senior
management for the year ending 31 December 2023, 33% sales growth for the year ending 31 December
2024 and the growth rate was assumed to be stable for the remaining period of the lease terms.

The directors determined the above sales growth rate and gross margin rate based on historical
operation data and after taking into consideration of the positive and negative factors that may affect
the Group's business.

Based on the results of the assessment, impairment provisions of HK$40,718,000 for property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets were recognised in loss during the year ended 31 December
2023 for “bossini.X" cash-generating units.

HERREX
EME
MATAG IR

PMI5E

(@) BE_T_NF+A=+—HLEFE" Tbossini.X 1IREEEEN
WIEAEEDER S _=F 2 EeHERH RRAGHEH
ZHERRER%

(b) Tbossini X IREEEEBMNBABENERESKEEEHLESR
EIEZC-F+ A=+ HIEFEZBE - BRRKBEEZZTHN
FE+_B=+—RHILEEZHEREEI3%  TRFAGHAEHERA
HMERRFEE

ESRBEELEEMBURE R A EREREBNIE
EREERZREE CHHERRRRERNRK

BEIEER - BE_S_=ZF+_RBA=+—HLEE B
Mbossini. X | IRBEE B Z FHIEMRYE HE KR EHE UK
FIREES B 2 R fE 5 B 1540,718,0007T

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED E i EEEE AR AR 1 3 1
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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B MY aE

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(a)

(b)

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment (continued)

Impairment assessment - “bossini. X" cash-generating units (continued)

As at 31 December 2023, if the forecast sales for the year ending 31 December 2024 applied to
the cash flow projection for “bossini.X"” cash-generating units had been higher/lower by 10%, an
impairment charge of approximate HK$2,466,000 lower or HK$242,000 higher, respectively would
be resulted.

As at 31 December 2023, if the discount rate applied to the cash flow projection for “bossini. X"
cash-generating units had been higher/lower by 1%, an impairment charge of approximate
HK$24,000 higher or HK$537,000 lower, respectively would be resulted.

Depreciation methods and useful lives
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost or revalued amounts,
net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold improvements
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment

15% to 33% or over the lease terms, whichever is shorter
15% to 33% or over the lease terms, whichever is shorter
Motor vehicles 15% t0 33%

See note 33.5 for the other accounting policies relevant to property, plant and equipment.

1 3 2 ANNUAL REPORT 2023 R

14 ME--BEKRRE (B)

(a)

(b)

ME - -BERREZ HETH (@)

R 1EFFIL— [bossini X | I EEET (&
RIEZ=F+_A=+—H HEREE_ZT_MOFE+A4
=+—BiItFER TbossiniX  REELSENRETETER
R TEASHEREN, B 10% BEERE DRI/ DA B
2,466,0007T 318 149 B 1&242,0007T ©

A BT =F+"B=1+—HHEH TbossiniX | IREELE
fMIzREeREEAERZTERHEEEM, B 1% BEEA
10 BB A9 78 1524,00070 24 36 49 7 15537,0007T ©

ERERAIfERAEH
TEDREMGF P ERFRERERENRER AN EGHEEE
(NFEFIFRER stEWT

HEMHERE 15%ZE33% Sz H SRR U BIE E R

FiEE K 15%ZE33% S SR LIBUSE A%
WMRERE

AE 15%%E33%

BRME BB RREHEHEMESEERREM 3350



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M B IRAR M

31 December 2023 ZZZ=F+"A=+—H

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15 BREWE
2023 2022

HK$'000 —EB-=HF ZEICHF BETT
Carrying amount at beginning of year 4,101 4,687 REVREE
Depreciation provided during the year (587) (586) FRITEEE
Carrying amount at end of year 3,514 4,101 REKREE
The directors of the Company have determined that the investment properties are industrial properties RIEMEZHE - FHKRAR AR EECEEREMER T X
and car parks, based on the nature, characteristics and risk of the properties. The Group’s investment MERBAU - AEBZREYEDRBEUEESERGEMEFER
properties were valued as at the end of the reporting period by Roma Appraisals Limited, an independent FEAR AT NG EARGEAREE101,500,0007T (ZE2ZZF ¢
professionally qualified valuer, at HK$101,500,000 (2022: HK$104,400,000). Each year, the Group's 7516104,400,0007T) - AEEZBEENRSFRAEEAIIEGE
management decide to appoint which external valuer to be responsible for the external valuation of the B B EHAEERYEETINELE REREQEDBAIH B
Group's properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether B FHIUMKRREEREEKE - AEEERESENFEME
professional standards are maintained. The Group’s management have discussions with the valuer on REETHERNGEERR MO EEREGEMETH R - KEY
the valuation assumptions and valuation result once a year when the valuation is performed for annual ENIRBRERERTE=S-

financial reporting. The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating leases.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M BRI

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 15 BEYE &)

1 34ANNUAL REPORT 2023 R

Fair value hierarchy YASSIEEET
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties: TRAPAREB KR EMEZ R T EFERS !
At 31 December 2023 RZE-_=F+"H=+—H
Fair value measurement using
REAZATEHNE
4') Quoted
‘ prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
ERTHER EATAHE
ERTIRERE BAYE BARE a5t
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
HK$'000 E—mE) (BZR) (B=R) BT
Recurring fair value measurement for: KEMATESE !
R Industrial properties - - 101,500 101,500 T
At 31 December 2022 RZE_-_#+-HB=+—H
Fair value measurement using
REZATESE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
- BAUER BARIERE
3 EEDHRE BABE BABE st
- 3 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
g 2 HK$'000 E—B) (BEZRE) (E=E) HEFT
=]
i) Recurring fair value measurement for: KEREAQFESE:
=3 Industrial properties - - 104,400 104,400 T
e
>



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2022: Nil).

As the investment properties are measured initially at cost less accumulated depreciation and provision for
any impairment in value, there is no movement of fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy.

The fair value is estimated using a direct comparison approach. Under the direct comparison approach, fair
value is estimated by using the direct comparison method on the assumption of the sale of the property
interest with the benefit of vacant possession and by making reference to comparable sales transactions as
available in the market.

The valuation takes into account the characteristics of the investment properties, which include the
location, size, shape, view, floor level, year of completion and other factors collectively, to arrive at the unit
market price. The fair value measurement is based on the above properties highest and best use, which
does not differ from the actual use.

The key input is the unit market price. A significant increase/decrease in the market price will result in a
significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the investment properties.

e RR MG

31 December 2023 ZZZ=F+"A=+—H

15 REWE (&)

ATFEZEE @)
ERE-BEFEF_BZEATEATEFEZEE  INES A DE
HE=B2ER(CE__F ) -

HRREMEZRABRRSHTERBEREZEFEFNIHE &
BATERBEZELBENZATEFELEEZS

ANTEDERERLBUA G - RBEZLLEE A TEDUERE
EEBOE  RRMERG IR T HEN LS EAAHIHZ AILLRIEE
R MG e

ETHERETEREVEZREL 87 UE KRS8
B ERENRAMEZ UBHEATHER A TEFER
RR M RERAREENES RRERRSEL

TERABBRBUTSER BENMSEEREBLATERE &
ERREMEATEKRRB LA T

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED E i EEEE AR AR 1 3 5
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M BRI

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

T 16 LEASES 16 AE

(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position (a) NiFEIHBIRRARER ZFHIE
The consolidated statement of financial position shows the following amounts relating to leases: REMBRRTETERAEEZESENT
2023 2022
HK$'000 —E=HE e CE BT T
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Buildings 70,281 89,221 1BF
— °
Lease liabilities HEAaE
Non-current 71,814 140,083 JERIERER
Current 86,999 74,643 BRHRER
158,813 214,726
J Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year were HK$95,014,000 (2022: HK$139,877,000). FERZFEREEEEREBN5,014,000T (ZE-__F Bl
ﬁ 139,877,0007T) ©
Impairment assessment of right-of-use assets EHEESE B EFL
As at 31 December 2023, management carried out a review of the recoverable amounts of its RIEBEZ=ZF+"_FA=+—H EEEBHEYE BEKXHE
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets. Details of the impairment assessment on the Uk ERREEZ AR E & BETER AEER T =
Group's property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2023 are disclosed +TZA=+—HZYE -BERZHEUREREEE 2 BET
in note 14(a). HEFIEE M 14(a) iR RE

=Tl
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M B IRAR M

31 December 2023 ZZZ=F+"A=+—H

16 LEASES (continued) 16 5 (&)
(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other (b) RNiFEEEKREMEEKR KRBT ZHIE
comprehensive income
The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income shows the following GeBEnkHEMEEKARPETNAREAEZSEUT !

amounts relating to leases:

2023 2022

HK$'000 —T—= B CF BETT
Interest on lease liabilities (note 7) 9,038 9,832 HEaGEZME (s 7)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 8) FRAEEEITE (H:Es)

— Buildings 71,436 79,467 —8F
Expenses relating to short-term leases (note 8) 23,943 19,578 FHATR EAERARE S (F5E8)
Expenses relating to variable lease payments not BERTEEREESGEZ

included in the measurement of lease liabilities AIEREMR A ([H58)

(note 8) 19,159 34,086
Impairment of right-of-use assets (note 8) 37,752 56,777 FREEEZRE (I5E8)
Gain on early termination of leases (note 8) (20,693) (2,801) PR IEREZ W (HE8)
Gain on lease modification (note 8) (408) - MEEST 2 e (HI5E8)
Rent concessions related to COVID-19 pandemic s ERmERIEEE e =R ([f:E8)

(note 8) - (6,102)
The total cash outflow for leases during the year ended 31 December 2023 was HK$119,589,000 BE_Z_=—F+_A=+—HUEFEZHERERLHELE
(2022: HK$127,850,000) (note 28). A 71£119,589,0007T (Z &= —4F : #&1127,850,0007T) (s

28) °

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group received COVID-19-related rent concessions BE T F+_HA=-+—HIEEE AEERETHEY
from landlords for certain lease properties which have been accounted for as negative variable lease ERREFHTHATKRFESEAEERR BIEA8ES)
payments and recognised in “Selling, distribution and other operating expenses” (note 8) under the AEMT UREEEMBREENFE 1R BTN THE D
amendments to HKFRS 16. IR H A ER ) (MI5E8) HriEsd o
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

16 LEASES (continued)

(9]

(d)

(e)

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are accounted for
The Group leases various buildings and office equipment. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed
periods of 1 to 15 years, but may have extension and termination options as described in (d) below.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the
leased asset is available for use by the Group.

See note 33.21 for the other accounting policies relevant to leases.

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of property leases across the Group.
These terms are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing contracts. The majority
of extension and termination options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the respective
lessor.

Variable lease payments

Some building leases contain variable payment terms that are linked to sales generated from retail
stores. For individual stores, variable lease payments are on the basis of variable payment terms with
percentages of sales. Variable payment terms are used for a variety of reasons, including minimising
the fixed costs base for newly established stores. Variable lease payments that depend on sales are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the condition that triggers those payments occurs.
The amounts of the short-term and low-value leases and variable lease payments recognised in profit
or loss for the current year for these leases are HK$23,943,000 and HK$19,159,000, respectively
(2022: HK$19,578,000 and HK$34,086,000, respectively) (note 8).

1 3 8ANNUAL REPORT 2023 R

16 A& (@)

(9]

(d)

(e)

TEFZEAEEIRHEEEE
AEREESZEEFRRAERE - HESN—RAFIEIS
FEEHRR EFSEMALERKRAIEBEREER (RTX(A) °

HERHEEENHAEECREORIDEAEEERE
EafEe

B RIEEHEth & 5 EERS RMIFE33.210

IERR AR EERE
FEBETYXEECEILERME LEER - ZFHRMOER
BENEREENEENREEEERK -PIFIASBOLERK
RIPEERERT R AERTE MA D HAERNHAATE.

AT E (TR
ETEFHEQSHTSEEHESNHERENNTTETR
&R - BB RIS ST = 0 A TR E R A 84 TG Rz &
EEDLAE FRASCRERESBRRA BEENRE
FHNETE A EBR/ME c BURR I E B 0] &M &4 0 18
B EARE G S AN ERARES R EERZ
EHERERRIAZEEREEERERJEAE[IREDY
Bl 2 #51523,943,0007T K 7 #19,159,0007T (ZE -4 : 97|
#5781£19,578,0007T K & #£34,086,0007T) (MI5ES) ©



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RR MG

31 December 2023 ZZZ=F+"A=+—H

17 INVENTORIES 17 F8
2023 2022
HK$'000 ZEZ=F T F A&+
Raw materials 402 694 JFk
Finished goods 176,175 203,377 S ¥ oh
176,577 204,071
Less: Provision for inventories (31,665) (32,205) W EEZBE
144,912 171,866
(a) Assigning costs to inventories (a) BRASEERFS

(b)

Inventories are garments held by the Group as at the reporting date. Inventories are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and includes
all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Amounts recognised in profit or loss
Cost of inventories sold recognised as an expense during the year ended 31 December 2023
amounted to HK$299,849,000 (2022: HK$310,929,000) (note 8).

Write-back of provision for inventories amounted to HK$540,000 for the year ended 31 December
2023 (2022: provision for inventories of HK$1,002,000). Write-back of provision/provision for
inventories were included in “Cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income during the year (note 8).

(b)

FERAEENREQBMER AR - FENERAERA
REEMEPREEIR NAEZEALLEAE LEE
FIEBERARSEFEETREFMARERTRFTEEZH
fthpl A - AT IR R ERRN ER EZHBRET 2G5t EEREE T
PR A R TS P T 2 (BT Bl o

R8s FR Z T8

HE_Z _ =+ _B=-+—HLEERIAMNIZEHE
5 R AR 2 7 15299,849,0007T (ZZ Z 4  #15310,929,0007T)
(Fff5E8) ©

BE_Z_ =+ -A=-t+—HILEE FERBERLABE
540,0007C (ZZE - " G55 78151,002,0007T) - FE#E
BOo/ BEETAFAREEaREMEERERZ THER
7] (MI5E8) ©
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M BRI

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

18 DEBTORS 18 MEURERFR
2023 2022
HK$'000 —ECI=HE T4 BT T
Debtors 21,883 24,799 FEW R X
Less: Loss allowance (note 3.1(b)) (629) (240) B EBEEE (HEE3.1()
21,254 24,559

Other than cash and credit card sales, the Group normally grants credit periods of up to 60 days to
its trade customers. Each trade customer has a maximum credit limit of 60 days, except for new trade
customers, where payment in advance is normally required. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In
view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group's trade customers relate to a large number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade debtor balances. Debtors are non-interest-bearing
and stated at net of loss allowance.

An ageing analysis of debtors as at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of
loss allowance, is as follows:

BIREREAFHEN AERT—REN TR THEZERES
60REEH -BFTBRER—RARVREIIN BEEFERHER
RE60KRMEEREE - AEE N H RUKE 2 B UER AT BB 1E
il o B HERAL R = AR B IR B E M E R BT o R P DA E PRt AR A &2
EZBRERIRREZRIEER BrERLESEETZEE
Rk o REEIRFHE B 5 BUIREERIT A SRR Mt B ME
FRRF Em e YRR S » WINFRER B EHTIR-

T RmERARNGRBERERREBIRRNRERARZRED
#r

2023 2022
HK$'000 —EZ= TE T4 BT
Within 1 month 16,543 15,861 R—EAA
1 to 2 months 2,085 6,110 —ZEZmEA
2 to 3 months 345 537 ME={EA
Over 3 months 2,281 2,051 BE=1EA
21,254 24,559
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18 DEBTORS (continued)

(a)

(b)

(9]

Classification as debtors

Debtors are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds
the debtors with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures
them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Details about the Group’s
impairment policies and the calculation of the loss allowance are provided in note 3.1(b).

Fair values of debtors
Due to the short-term nature of the current debtors, their carrying amount is considered to be the
same as their fair value.

Impairment and risk exposure

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for all debtors. Note 3.1(b) provides for details about the calculation
of the allowance.

Information about the impairment of debtors and the Group’s exposure to credit risk and foreign
currency risk can be found in note 3.1.

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables has been included in “Selling,
distribution and other operating expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Amounts charged to the loss allowance account are generally written off
when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.

(a)

(b)

(o)

e RR MG

31 December 2023 ZZZ=F+"A=+—H

18 FEURARTR (48)

SRR EUERTR

PRI IBRATERIREIEAMBHED > DRIBKIRRIA
BREFAAEBZERES - AEER A BUERR A WG AR
TRE > FAUIERUBRAZARBIERASHE - AREER
REBRR st BB EEAHNEL RT3 1)

FEWEARMRZ A&
M BTEAFE R A B B HEREERB AR E A T(EE

=&
=5 °

BAE R R
AERRBEBYHREENFSRAF ZEE7 % FABPR
BRKRRZ 2HEREEHIEHERREEBE -BME
BB BN A3 ()

BRBBRFREZENRAERZ EERRBRIMNE R R
BizE3.10

ERERBIEMZRIABEOBED S AGERERAME
EW Rz HE D REMEERS) - SRS AR
SNRER RER R H RN 2 RIE— AT LUMEN -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M BRI

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

19 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19 FENRE S REMEKIRIEA
2023 2022

HK$'000 —EB=HF —EIF BETT
Prepayments 12,922 11,968 SEINERE
Deposits 59,030 66,632 b
Other receivables 26,296 19,811 H g ARA
Less: Loss allowance (note 3.1(b)) (2,483) (1,318) B EBEEE (EE3.1()

95,765 97,093
Less: Non-current deposits (16,716) (28,567) B IEBNERE S
Current portion 79,049 68,526 BPEAER 15
Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental deposits and deposits with suppliers. ReREMEURIETZEHcReERBERmZZE-
Deposits and other receivables are measured at amortised costs. During the year ended 31 December e hEMERRBLREBHEAAS 2 - HE_T - _F+24
2022, apart from certain deposits and other receivables that were written off amounting to HK$547,000, =+—BLEFE BUZEEBAZUBRBEMESD HEEZRE
which were considered by the directors as irrecoverable due to the financial difficulties experienced ZETRE REMBUERIEM IS A 1E547,00070s > REENR ZZ
by these debtors, the Group assessed the loss allowance and the expected credit loss rate under the CEERIEICIFEA A=+ HEASBYBREENFSR
application of HKFRS 9 as at 31 December 2023 and 2022. The detail information about the credit risk B IERERTEREESE ARREREMBWIREZEER
and impairment analysis of deposits and other receivables are stated in note 3.1(b). % BB D M 2 s B RS M EE3.1(b) ©
The carrying amount of prepayments, deposits and other receivables approximate to their fair value. FEARIE HE R EMEWRBZ REERFTEZ A FEEEG
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M B IRAR M

31 December 2023 ZZZ=F+"A=+—H

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 20 RERFEFEHEBEBRBIBPIRITER
2023 2022
HK$'000 —BCE= B F BT T
Cash and bank balances 123,573 93,142 IRE R ERTTHEER
Non-pledged bank deposits with original maturity of RENREIHE VR =B/ 2 BIERRITEMR
less than three months when acquired 61,093 -
184,666 93,142
Pledged bank deposits with original maturity of more than BENREIHEBA=EA 2 BIRRIRITENR
three months when acquired 64 127
Total and maximum exposure to credit risk 184,730 93,269 BEthRAEERRE
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash equivalents of the Group denominated in Renminbi REBESHR FEBUARBEEZREAREEFEBEE HEE
amounted to HK$15,561,000 (2022: HK$25,698,000). Renminbi is not freely convertible into other 15,561,00070 (Z & — — 4 : A#25,698,0007T) - ARBEFRIEERR
currencies. However, under mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration HEME R IR B A M IMNE S G ARG K AR SERYE
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange BERTE AERBEROERBELEIIEXH 2 IRITHARER
Renminbi for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business. RNt
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short term bank deposits IRITFNE BRI ERAREE 2 8F =GR  FHARTEN
are made for 3 months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at HERMEA > HRFTAEE N RERZME » RZIER 2 525
the respective short term bank deposit rates. RITERAEST S -
The pledged bank deposits of HK$64,000 (2022: HK$127,000) were pledged to banks as security for bank RIZ2Z=F+"A=+—8 > AEFRITERE64,0007T (Z
guarantees for overseas subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 December 2023. T T E1127,000T) BB TIRITERAEEEINTB AT c
ESIRTTHR (R Z 4 o -%
IS
The cash and bank balances, non-pledged bank deposits and pledged bank deposits are deposited with RE& MIRTHAR BIEFRTERMRBERRTERETRREH Hg
creditworthy financial institutions with no recent history of default. THREAQGRMEEEZ SRIEE- 71,
é
=
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M BRI

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

21 TRADE CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 21 FE(TERFR - HAh AR RRIA R FE 5 AR TE
2023 2022
HK$'000 —E== —ETCF BETT
Trade creditors 43,947 43,861 FEATARRR
Other payables 40,694 42,058 HAFETRIE
Accruals 63,339 69,685 FESTERIE
147,980 155,604
Less: Non-current portion (3.385) (5,003) A IEBNARER (D
Current portion 144,595 150,601 BPEA SR 15
An ageing analysis of trade creditors as at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as UF 7328 ZH R A RIS RS AR 2RI 247
follows:
2023 2022
HK$'000 —E== e CF BETT
Within 1 month 17,653 23,169 R—EBR
1 to 2 months 18,048 16,057 —EmEA
2 to 3 months 5,155 3,992 ME={E8
Over 3 months 3,091 643 BiE=1EA
43,947 43,861
. These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of ZERIEIEM BRI AR A AEEEENRTEMREEEE.
= financial period which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and are usually ZERIBABIET R E K —MRIN30KE0RAZ AT o FEFTERT
o é settled on terms of 30 to 60 days. Trade creditors, other payables and accruals are presented as current HAMERIB R ESHRIBIIERB BE  BRIENBSHE12ER RN
# s liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised FEP - ZERBYV T RE R FERS BRRABERANEEZE
’i‘f g initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest A ASETE ©
- g method.
=
>
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21 TRADE CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (continued)

The carrying amounts of trade creditors, other payables and accruals approximate to their fair values.

The other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of 1 month, except for other
payables of HK$3,385,000 (2022: HK$5,003,000) as at 31 December 2023, which are not payable within

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M B IRAR M

31 December 2023 ZZZ=F+"A=+—H

21 FEfIRRRR  Hth B TRIE R s ARIE (4
FEATBR A HANME (S RUB R B3t R IA 2 AREE B2 5 2 A T 1848
EO

HMtEMNRBARE BR _E-_=F+_A=+—H—%84A
PERNER 2 EME RIS B 153,385,000t (ZE -4 | B

1 year. 5,003,0007T) 4 HEx 2 FIRAR A 1E A o
22 CONTRACT LIABILITIES 22 X8R
2023 2022
HK$'000 ZZ=H TR BT
Distribution of garments — advances received from customers 4,597 3,607 R IR 088 — FEUL S A AR IE
Retailing of garments — customer loyalty programme 124 132 MREE —F P B2
Total contract liabilities 4,721 3,739 mENas
Notes: 5T
(@) Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to deliver garment products and the customer loyalty (@ BHNEBRERERARXNMRKERIE ZEIRBEKIERE P B2 E st
programme. 2o
(b) The Group selected to choose a practical expedient and omit disclosure of remaining performance obligations as b)) HAEEREMBEMEANZERA—FIUT BCEERARNTRER

all related contracts have a duration of one year or less.

Ao MR AINER T2 BAEE-
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M BRI

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX
The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as follows:

23 JRIEFRSH
EERIAE ERBEERIBEG R ORUT ¢

=Tl
>
Q
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>

2023 2022
HK$'000 ZE=F = BT
Deferred tax assets: RIERIBEE ©
— To be recovered after more than 12 months 371 300 — R BB 128 B 1 U o]
Deferred tax liabilities: FIERIEEE
— To be settled after more than 12 months (410) (410) — B RiBiE12ERBEN
Deferred tax liabilities, net (39) (110) RIEARIEE (S JPEE
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M B IRAR M

31 December 2023 ZZZ=F+"A=+—H

23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 23 JREFRTSTR ()
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year, without taking into consideration the FRNEIERIEEEKRSE EFTAR—RBEAEEERR 2 IEH)
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows: 2B
Deferred tax assets RERIBEE
Decelerated tax Lease
depreciation liabilities Others Total
HK$'000 BIRTR BT EE HEaeE HAth “ast AT
At 1 January 2022 24 13,260 287 13,571 R-_E__%—HA—H
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss 77 (4,860) (88) (4,871) RiEmst A (06
Currency translation difference - (493) - (493) RHELE
At 31 December 2022 101 7,907 199 8,207 RZE__F#+-RA=+—H
Set-off of deferred tax liabilities (7,907) HIHELERIEEE
300
At 1 January 2023 101 7,907 199 8,207 RZZEZ=f—H—H
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss (20) (3,232) 91 (3,161) RiBz (08 st A
Currency translation difference - 7 - 7 BHERR
At 31 December 2023 81 4,682 290 5,053 R-ZE-_=%#+-HA=+—H
Set-off of deferred tax liabilities (4,682) EIHELERIEEE
371
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RN

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

23 JRIEFRTSIR (B)

Deferred tax liabilities REREEE
Revaluation
of property Right-of-use assets Total
HK$'000 MEEMR ERESE “Et BT
At 1 January 2022 1,254 13,260 14,514 RZZ2Z”“H—H—H
Credited to profit or loss (844) (4,860) (5,704) RiE@ETA
Currency translation difference - (493) (493) DIAELR
At 31 December 2022 410 7,907 8,317 RZE_“H#+”"A=+—H
Set-off of deferred tax assets (7,907) IRHIEEIRIBEE &
410
At 1 January 2023 410 7,907 8,317 WZE2Z=F—H—H
Credited to profit or loss - (3,232) (3,232) RIBmETA
Currency translation difference - 7 7 RIAELR
At 31 December 2023 410 4,682 5,092 RZE_=F+"A=+—H
Set-off of deferred tax assets (4,682) R IRIEIR B & B
410
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had estimated tax losses arising in Hong Kong SAR of
HK$687,806,000 (2022: HK$664,087,000) that were available indefinitely for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. The Group had estimated tax losses arising
in Macau SAR of HK$18,990,000 (2022: HK$33,447,000) and in mainland China of HK$547,151,000
(2022: HK$436,510,000) that can be used to offset against future taxable profits of the companies in
which the losses arose for a maximum of 3 years and 5 years, respectively. The Group had estimated tax
losses arising in Singapore of HK$101,708,000 (2022: HK$69,060,000) that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. The Group also had
deductible temporary difference of approximately HK$5,156,000 (2022: HK$5,074,000) in Singapore at
the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses
as in the opinion of the directors, it is uncertain whether sufficient future taxable profits will be generated
against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the mainland China Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends
declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between mainland China and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group is therefore liable for
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in mainland China in respect
of earnings generated from 1 January 2008. As at 31 December 2023, no deferred income tax has been
recognised for withholding tax that would be payable on the unremitted earnings that is subject to
withholding tax of a subsidiary of the Group established in mainland China. In the opinion of the directors,
it is not probable that the subsidiaries in mainland China will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
future. No temporary differences (2022: Nil) were associated with an investment in the subsidiary in
mainland China for which a deferred tax liability has not been recognised at 31 December 2023.

e RR MG

31 December 2023 ZZZ=F+"A=+—H

23 RIEFRTSIR ()

RBEHER AEERFPESEELE 2 RNEBEEASBE
687,806,0005T (ZZE = "4 : #1£664,087,0007t) > AJ HE[REAAE/E
WHEFFENAR BB ZEZRREN o REBP P EEF K
B A E L 2 G E IR IEEE D B A8 118,990,000t (ZE =
F  #BM833,447,0007T) KA ME547,151,0007 (Z B 4 © ABiE
436,510,0007T) > FEEREIE R BIEIRH A B H B 2 BRERHH
BREDN=ZFRAEF - AEERMIKEE Z G RIEBEAR B
#101,708,0007t (ZZ = =4 : /1£69,060,0007T) > A EREAF(E
KEELEFBABD BB ZERRGEN PRI EHR > AEBPHF
WIRNA B R E R M E 2B 4 B 155,156,00070 (C T - — & @ B
5,074,00070) cEERBA AN AERTHRELEESCHESR
MiaF LURHE A B BRIEMBIE EERIEEET R ZEMHI8ET

=7
B ©

RFPEIA B 2 PTSIUE > INPBIA R RSN IR E M5
HEREETIRKREAHMNI0%BINN - ABARENR —TTNF—A
—HEEXN TERN _Z2ZLF+_B=1+—HEBNER HE
FREI P RS I B E B BEA @ ET L IR 24T 0 R AT SR B
BIEHR - MAEEMS > BAMRER10% o FHIt » REEAFI D
BEAMAINZERBE AR ST NE—A —HERRNET
AR EMBEMBENR - RS2 =F+"_B=+—H A5E®
RICPEAM B AR R MAEHEF 2 EATENRMES
AR RRIEFT SR - EREN A MEAMME AR NP R
BRIKEBRAMNZPAIEMTE AR - R T _=ZF+ A =+—
ArAEETE (CZT7F [ H RPERMREASREMHRIR
RERDBELENIES R AR ERIEZER
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M BRI

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

T 24 ISSUED CAPITAL 24 BRITRAF
Shares B
2023 2022
HK$'000 ZEI=H =S BT
Authorised: EERA
10,000,000,000 (2022: 3,000,000,000) ordinary 10,000,000,0000% (—= — — 4 : 3,000,000,0000%) &R EE
y shares of HK$0.10 each (note a) 1,000,000 300,000 Ai&0.10c 2 BB (ista)
Issued and fully paid: BEITRBERZE
3,322,720,177 (2022: 2,470,358,091) ordinary shares 3,322,720,1778% (& " "4 : 2,470,358,091}%) S EE
of HK$0.10 each 332,272 247,036 FEHE0.107T 2 E AR
During the year, the movements in issued capital were as follows: FRZERFTRAEHEHTINT :
Number Share
_J of shares Issued premium
ﬁ in issue capital account Total
ERITRHOHE BRITRE B R E AR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT IT BT T
At 1 January 2022 2,465,750,091 246,575 241,462 488,037 RE__#—F—H
Exercise of share options (note b) 4,608,000 461 2,242 2,703 TR (FY5Eh)
At 31 December 2022 and R — =
1 January 2023 2,470,358,091 247,036 243,704 490,740 —E-=—F—HF—H
Shares issued under rights issue (note c) 852,362,086 85,236 230,138 315,374 R HEEET 2B, (k)
Transaction costs incurred in respect of MEREEZZZ A
rights issue - - (2,702) (2,702)
At 31 December 2023 3,322,720,177 332,272 471,140 803,412 RN _E - =F+"H=+—H
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 ISSUED CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 21 March 2023, the Company passed an ordinary resolution to approve the authorised share capital of
the Company be increased from HK$300,000,000 divided into 3,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each to
HK$1,000,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000 shares by the creation of an additional 7,000,000,000 shares.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the subscription rights attaching to 4,608,000 share options were
exercised at the subscription price of HK$0.456 per share (note 25), resulting in the issue of 4,608,000 shares of
HK$0.10 each for a total cash consideration, before expenses, of HK$2,101,000, and the related share option
reserve of HK$602,000 was transferred to the share premium account upon the exercise of these share options.

After the completion of the rights issue on 27 April 2023, the Company raised gross proceeds of HK$315,374,000
before expenses by issuing 852,362,086 rights shares at a price of HK$0.370 per rights share on the basis of one
(1) rights share for every two (2) then existing shares to the qualifying shareholders. The weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue for the purpose of calculation of basic and diluted loss per share has been adjusted for
the bonus element of the rights issue.

Share options
Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share options issued under the scheme are
included in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

24 BT

e RR MG

31 December 2023 ZEZ=F+"H=+—H

Rz (48)

M5E -

(a

RIE __E AZ+—H AABTEEBA—BIZERAZRZE Uil
BB I 52 8 9M7,000,000,0008% AR 19 T 2 A B 2 /A E AR ZAS BT
300,000,0007% 43 %3,000,000,000% & i& BB B 150. 1070 2 RADIE N E
78 1%1,000,000,0007T 43 %510,000,000,0008% f& 17 ©

BEZ - _F+"HA=+—HLFEE"4,608,0001) BB IEMK 22
ﬂ%ﬁé&i& BESKEN0.456TEITRE (F5E25) » B fFEE£174,608,000

ERmEmERBK.10T 2N BIREREABE2,101,0007T GRaHH
%) R EREREEITER HRABR R EB602,000 B EBE
BEADHERR 7 ©

AZEZ=FNB -+t HAERERE AABRGERRESRHS

MR EFRAERMDES —()IRERRMN Z B2  LHKRHNIZER
HEBR AR 1D 50,3700 2 (B M 85 17852,362,086 R AR AR (7 » LIS E B
315,374,0007C 2 FRISARIEALEE CRETRIS) -t EEREAREEES
B2 B8 TEERNMNET RS AR Z ALF SR EH AR

FERg 1
A BRESERIRIET SIS ITEREZFBHINGEE M
HRFRMIEE25 0
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M BRI

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

25 SHARE OPTION SCHEME 25 EERGtEETE)

fok B S
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The Company's share option scheme which was adopted on 12 November 2013 (the”2013 Share Option
Scheme”) has expired on 12 November 2023. Following the expiration of the 2013 Share Option Scheme,
no further share option was allowed to be granted thereunder but the provisions of it shall remain in full
force and effect in all other respects. The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “2023 Share
Option Scheme”, together with the 2013 Share Option Scheme, the “Schemes”) on 15 December 2023,
which remains in force for a period of 10 years commencing for its effective date on 20 December 2023.

The purpose of the Schemes is to recognise and acknowledge the contributions that participants
have made or may make to the Group, to provide incentives and/or reward to participants for their
contributions to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit high-calibre employees and/or attract
human resources that are valuable to the Group.

The eligible participants of the Schemes include any director or any employee of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries from time to time and are determined to be qualified for the share options by the Board.

The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the Schemes
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the total number of shares in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting with such participant and his/her associates abstaining from voting in case of 2013 Share Option
Scheme and with such eligible participants and his/her close associates (or associates if such eligible
participant is a connected person of the Company) abstaining from voting in case of 2023 Share Option
Scheme.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days from the date of offer, upon receipt
the acceptance and payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 from the grantee. The exercise period of
the share options granted is determinable by the directors, and commences after a certain vesting period
and ends on a date which is not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the share options. Share
options granted during the term of the Schemes and remain unexercised immediately prior to the end of
the 10-year period of the Schemes shall continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of grant
within the exercise period for which such options are granted, notwithstanding the expiry of the Schemes.
The Board was allowed to impose a vesting period on the share options granted under 2013 Share Option
Scheme which shall follow the amended Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules with effect from 1 January 2023.
The vesting period of any particular share option of 2023 Share Option Scheme shall not be less than 12
months except in the following circumstances: (a) grants of “make-whole” share options to new joiners to
replace the share awards or share options they forfeited when leaving their previous employers; (b) grants
that are made in batches during a year for administrative and compliance reasons; or (c) grants of share
options with a mixed or accelerated vesting schedule such as where the share options may vest evenly
over a period of 12 months.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the directors, but may not be less than the
highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Shares on the date of grant of the share options; (ii)
the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Shares for the 5 trading days immediately preceding the
date of grant; and (iii), if applicable the nominal value of the Shares on the date of grant.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all share options to be granted
under the 2013 Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue on 12 November 2013, the date of adoption of the
2013 Share Option Scheme. Following the expiration of the 2013 Share Option Scheme, no further share
option could be granted thereunder. The total number of shares which may be issued in respect of all
share options and awards to be granted under the 2023 Share Options Scheme and any other share
option schemes or share award schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10% of the shares in issue
as at 15 December 2023. The number of shares issuable under the 2023 Share Option Scheme was
332,272,017, which represented 10% of the shares in issue as at 15 December 2023.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M BRI

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

WU 25 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 25 FBRRHEStE ()
The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during the year: FRZT B N ERITEZ BRI
2023 2022
—EC-= St
Weighted Number Weighted Number
average of share average of share
exercise price options exercise price options
’ IIETEHITEE BREKE MEFSTEE R EH R
ﬁ HKS$ per share ‘000 HK$ per share ‘000
sRBET TF15 FRBE T TF1n
At beginning of year 0.608 96,194 0.583 108,893 REH]
Granted during the year 0.275 43,031 0.586 29,000 FREH
Forfeited during the year 0.481 (55,592) 0.536 (37,091) F PR U
Adjusted during the year 0.607 184 - - FAFE
Cancelled during the year 1.058 (15,031) - - FREEEH
) Exercised during the year - - 0.456 (4,608) FWITE
) At end of year 0.402 68,786 0.608 96,194 R
The share price at the date of exercise of share options exercised during the year ended 31 December BHECZETHF+A=+—HUFE SITERRERITELR
2022 ranged from HK$0.510 to HK$0.810 per share. ZRREBERN FEE05107cE B 10.8107T
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M B IRAR M

31 December 2023 ZZZ=F+"A=+—H

25 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 25 fEfiEstE) (@)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options outstanding as at the end of the reporting KR EHARERITEBRE 2 TEERITERNT

period are as follows:

At 31 December 2023 BWZE2-_=F+-"H=+—H

Adjusted

Number of share options Exercise price* exercise price Exercise period

REHE FTElE EEEITEE 171EHR
HK$ per share HK$ per share
SRBIET SRBIET
(note (a))
(GEO)

9,581,769 0.456 0.455 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2026 TEICF—RB—HEIZZTAF+ZA=1+—H
11,585,905 0.456 0.455 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2026 —2— —F—RB—HEIZZRFF+ZA=+—H
10,599,296 0.456 0.455 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2026 TETNE—-B—HE_Z_E+-BA=1+—H

332,686 1.060 1.058 16 November 2022 to 15 November 2027 TECTHE+—RB+ANEEE_tE+—HB+AH
334,691 1.060 1.058 16 November 2023 to 15 November 2027 —E =+ —B+ARHEZIZZLtF+—B+HH
334,691 1.060 1.058 16 November 2024 to 15 November 2027 :‘g_ﬂfﬁ‘f— B+ AAHEZE-_tH&+—H+AHH

1,669,444 0.660 0.659 23 March 2023 to 22 March 2028 TEC-F-ATH+=ZHEZZE-N\F=ZHBZ+H

1,669,444 0.660 0.659 23 March 2024 to 22 March 2028 —ETNFE=-A+-HEZZEN\F=RB=+=H

1,671,450 0.660 0.659 23 March 2025 to 22 March 2028 T ECRF-RBA+-HEZZE-N\FE=R=+=H

1,002,068 0.390 0.389 17 November 2023 to 16 November 2028 TEC=F+—B+tHEENE+—B+/NH

1,002,068 0.390 0.389 17 November 2024 to 16 November 2028 “EIOFt+—B+tHEZZINF+—B+/<H

1,002,068 0.390 0.389 17 November 2025 to 16 November 2028 —ECHRF+T—Bt+tHEZZEINF+—B+NH

9,332,000 0.275 N/A 7R3 20 June 2024 to 19 June 2029 TECOFEXAHHEZE-ASFSATAH

9,332,000 0.275 N/A 48 20 June 2025 to 19 June 2030 TECRFEARBIHHEZE=ZF,B+1H

9,336,000 0.275 N/A 38 B 20 June 2026 to 19 June 2031 TEIREARAIHHEIZ=—H/A+NH
68,785,580
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M BRI

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

25 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 25 fEfeiEstE) (@)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options outstanding as at the end of the reporting PR ERRERITEBREZ TEERITERNOT (@

period are as follows: (continued)

At 31 December 2022 RIE-_-_%+-HA=+—H
Adjusted
Number of share options Exercise price* exercise price Exercise period
KA FEE EBE(TIEE FEL
HK$ per share HK$ per share
HR/%rnTD HY/%rnTD
(note (b))
(M3E(D))
15,276,000 0.460 0.456 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2026 —2::5 B—HEZZ-_X&+"B=+—H
16,942,000 0.460 0.456 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2026 TEC-F—-RB—HRAE_ZE_ARE+"B=1+—H
16,976,137 0.460 0.456 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2026 TEINF—RB—HEIZZAF+ZA=1+—H
5,996,000 1.060 N/A 3R 16 November 2022 to 15 November 2027 :7::fﬁ+ A+AABE-Z_tF&#+—H+HH
6,002,000 1.060 N/A F3EF 16 November 2023 to 15 November 2027 B2 =F+—HB+tARHEZZE-_tH+—HB+EHH
6,002,000 1.060 N/A F35EF 16 November 2024 to 15 November 2027 —= _E£E+ A+RABE_E_t&#+—H+%1H
6,997,000 0.660 N/A 38 23 March 2023 to 22 March 2028 TEC R+ -HEZZEINE=RZ+=H
6,997,000 0.660 N/A 38 FH 23 March 2024 to 22 March 2028 :g_mfﬁ B”-+=H :Kt_%_/\fﬁfﬂ —+=H
7,006,000 0.660 N/A 38 B 23 March 2025 to 22 March 2028 T ECRFE=RB_A+=HE_ZE-_NEFE=RB"+=H
2,666,000 0.390 N/A 3R 17 November 2023 to 16 November 2028 TETF+—RBt+tHE_ZE-_NE+—B+/,H
2,666,000 0.390 N/A F3EF 17 November 2024 to 16 November 2028 —ETNE+—AB+tEtHE_E-_NE+—B+/,H
2,668,000 0.390 N/A 3R 17 November 2025 to 16 November 2028 —ECHFE+—B+tEtHEZZE-NE+—AB+/<H
96,194,137
*  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other * BREZITEERBRMERIETAR AR B Rz HAhsE0E
similar changes in the Company’s share capital. i T LA
;_5"'.
= Notes: B -
sm Q.
N o
S 5_ (@) The exercise price was adjusted after completion of rights issue of the Company on 27 April 2023. (@ TEER_Z=FNE+tHARAEMEKRTHREEHHEE-
o 3
i § (b) The exercise price was adjusted after completion of rights issue of the Company on 12 April 2021. b THEER-_SEZ—F0A+HAABHKRTMBIELAE.
g.
=}
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

On 20 June 2023, the Company granted share options of 43,031,000, to its employees. The fair value
of the share options granted during the year was HK$4,040,000 (HK$0.094 each), of which the Group
recognised share option expenses of HK$948,000 in the current year.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the year was estimated as at the date of
grant, using a binomial model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

e RR MG

31 December 2023 ZZZ=F+"A=+—H

25 WERRtEstE (&)

RIEZ=FERB+H AABBREHESRH43,031,00017 &K
o FRNERHBREZ AFEABE4,040,0007T (BLE0.094
70) » ERAER RN A EE B REREIRER S B 15948,0007T ©

FAMBHZEREEEREZ ATELNRE BRAN B
EEEBEE MG KEEAERHBREZFRFFRMEAE T
REHIPMRARLZEAER ¢

2023 2022

—®C-= - -2
Weighted average dividend yield (%) 3.80 4.63 R 8 B (%)
Weighted average expected volatility (%) 61.61 69.77 NI TR R B0(%)
Weighted average historical volatility (%) 61.61 69.77 NOHE 35 FE 2R (%)
Weighted average risk-free interest rate (%) 3.14 2.48 NO#EF 9 B BT (%)
Expected life of share options (year) 6.6 6.0 B ETEST R (F)
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) 0.275 0.586 MEFEHRE (BREE T

The expected life of the share options is based on the historical data over the past 10 years and is
not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the
assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the
actual outcome.

No other feature of the share options granted was incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 68,785,580 (2022: 96,194,137) share options
outstanding under the Scheme, which represented approximately 2.07% (2022: 3.89%) of the
Company's shares in issue as at that date. The exercise in full of the remaining share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 68,785,580 (2022: 96,194,137)
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital of approximately HK$6,878,600
(2022: HK$9,619,400).

BREZFASAFHANRERT +E2ELBBRET RO RIRE
FEHIRZ BREIT RN - BTN B D IRIBE LN B AR R KIS
o WRWEEBRBERMR T

R E R TAER I 8 5T K PR BB it 2 R E A 1 o

REEHAR AR BT %8 T5H68,785,58010 (ZE
96,194,13713) MEITEZERE  HERZEHA QBB ETRG
#2.07% (CE "5 :13.89%) - B@ARBIRERAGEEEHIT
ERER 2 B BERAAFE1768,785,5808% (ZE -
96,194,137k%) REIMNSBARAR 1D » MAK AN 1E 1049 78 #56,878,6007T (=
T T 1 B¥89,619,4007T) ©
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M BRI

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

26 SUBSIDIARIES
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at year end:

26 BT
UTARERTERBASZZE

Place of Particulars of Interest held at Interest held at
incorporation and Principal activities and issued/registered 31 December 31 December
Name kind of legal entity place of operation share capital 2023 2022
RZEZ= gt - e
B#17 #fM +=B=+—8 +=B=+—H
8 SEM AL It BE R iR A\ B RS 4R FEEBREEME BR A ¥ 15 REER FENED
IERERBERM AR AT Mainland China, limited Retailing and distribution of garments RMB1,000,000 100% 100%
liability company in mainland China AR
REIRH BIREEAE PR B At B R EE e 3 8 1,000,0007T
Bossini Apparel Limited* Hong Kong SAR, limited company Retailing and distribution of garments HK$2 100% 100%
REEE BRAE in Hong Kong SAR B2
RAREBERNRETE KD
Bossini Clothing Limited* Hong Kong SAR, limited company Retailing and distribution of garments HK$2 100% 100%
REEE BRAE] in Hong Kong SAR BEE27T
RAREBRNRETE KD H
Bossini Distribution Limited# Hong Kong SAR, limited company Retailing and distribution of garments HK$1 100% 100%
EMBEDHBRAD REEE BRAT in Hong Kong SAR BT
RHREEBRKREE kD
Bossini Enterprises Limited* Hong Kong SAR, limited company Retailing and distribution of garments HK$2 100% 100%
S ERBECERRAS! FEEE BRAT in Hong Kong SAR HE27T
3 RREE SR RS E R
2 5
% =
i gh Bossini Garment Limited? Hong Kong SAR, limited company Distribution of garments HK$2 100% 100%
i § REEE BRAE] in Hong Kong SAR BEE27T
2 FFREL B B RS B
>
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26 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation and

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26 FIBAE] (&)

Principal activities and

Particulars of
issued/registered

e RR MG

31 December 2023 ZZZ=F+"A=+—H

Interest held at
31 December

Interest held at
31 December

Name kind of legal entity place of operation share capital 2023 2022
RIE_=%F S
B%7 #fM +—A=+—H +=BA=+—H
%18 SE AR 3Lt BE e A A\ B RS EE R FEXBREEMMES Bg 7 ¥ 15 AR HENED
Bossini Investment Limited* British Virgin Islands, Investment holding US$11,928 100% 100%
limited company in British Virgin Islands 11,9283 7T
RBERRES ARAF REBHEERESREER
Bossini Onmay International Limited* ~ Hong Kong SAR, limited company Retailing and distribution of garments HK$2 100% 100%
EhigE L EBRBERAF! FEES BRAF in Hong Kong SAR BHE2TT
RABREBERNEE K7D
Bossini Retail Limited* Hong Kong SAR, limited company Retailing and distribution of garments HK$2 100% 100%
FEEE BRAE in Hong Kong SAR B2
RABREBERNETE KD
Bright Star Fashion Limited* Macau SAR, limited company Retailing and distribution of garments MOP$25,000 100% 100%
1B 2 REFRAE FRERFT BIRAE] in Macau SAR 25,000;2F9 7t
TR BRI R EE K ) 5
Burling Limited* British Virgin Islands, Licensing of trademarks US$100 100% 100%
AMERA S limited company in British Virgin Islands 1007t
REHEMRES BARAT REBER R EBRITET
BENmEMEEEXERAT! Mainland China, limited Retailing and distribution of garments RMB1,010,000 100% 100%

liability company
FEARH BREEAT

in mainland China

PR B PAY3t A  E Ke 70 8

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED E i EEEE AR AR 1 5 9
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RN

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

26 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

26 BT (&)

Place of Particulars of Interest held at Interest held at
incorporation and Principal activities and issued/registered 31 December 31 December
Name kind of legal entity place of operation share capital 2023 2022
RZ®Z= RZE__F
B#17 %M +-—B=+—8 +=HA=+—H
%18 SE AR 3L 3t BE e A A\ B RS EE R FTEEBREEME Bg s ¥ 15 FAER HENED
ENEREEZBRAT" Mainland China, limited Retailing and distribution of garments ~ RMB148,000,000 100% 100%
liability company in mainland China AR
R BIREELRE P AR Pt B R T & e ) £ 148,000,0007C
EEEmMmEmEARRAT (note) Mainland China, limited Retailing and distribution of garments RMB1,000,000 100% 100%
(5% liability company in mainland China A E1,000,0007T
REIRH BIREEAE PR B Ayt B N ZE e 3 8
J & R Bossini Fashion Pte. Ltd.* Singapore, limited company Retailing and distribution of garments $G$2,000,000 100% 100%
¥ BRAE in Singapore 2,000,000 N3 7T
TR AN T & K 70 8
J & R Bossini Holdings Limited* Hong Kong SAR, limited company Investment holding in Hong Kong SAR HK$2 100% 100%
ERREEEBRAT! HEES BREAF RHAEFEREER ABHE27T
J & R Bossini International Limited* Hong Kong SAR, limited company Retailing and distribution of garments HK$26,000,002 100% 100%
ERREEEERAT" FEES BRAE in Hong Kong SAR  7#&#26,000,0027T
RABREERNETE KD
Kacono Trading Limited* British Virgin Islands, Investment holding HK$2,000 100% 100%
limited company in British Virgin Islands 7B 1%2,0007T
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M B IRAR M

31 December 2023 ZZZ=F+"A=+—H

26 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 26 MIBAT (48)
Place of Particulars of Interest held at Interest held at
incorporation and Principal activities and issued/registered 31 December 31 December
Name kind of legal entity place of operation share capital 2023 2022

R-TBZ=%F WITZZ
B#7#ft +—A=+—H +-B=+—H

%18 SE AR 3Lt BE e A A\ B RS EE R FEEBREEMES Bg 7 ¥ 15 AR HENED
Key Value Trading Limited* British Virgin Islands, Investment holding Us$100 100% 100%
limited company in British Virgin Islands 1007t
EBERMRES ARAF NEBEERFSREER
Lead Commence Limited? Hong Kong SAR, limited company Retailing and distribution of garments HK$2 100% 100%
Y REEARAR FEES BRAF in Hong Kong SAR BHE2TT
RABREBERNETE KD
Rapid City Limited* Hong Kong SAR, limited company Property holding and letting HK$2 100% 100%
BAMAER AT FEES BRAF in Hong Kong SAR BHE2TT
RHBREEMEFTEREE
ER=ES CRY) BRAT Mainland China, limited Retailing and distribution of garments ~ RMB406,000,000 100% 100%
liability company in mainland China AR
REINH BREEAT P FREI P 3 A R K 70 8 406,000,0007%
FEHEMEE S BRAT" Mainland China, limited Retailing and distribution of garments RMB500,000 100% 100%
liability company in mainland China A ER#&500,0007¢
FRERH BREEATE TR AR A 1t B TR B e 73 8
c
*  Equity interest directly held by the Company. * KRRAEIEBEERE 2
#  Equity interest indirectly held by the Company. t o RREEEEERE g
o
Note: By - £
[
)
LEEMEERmEARAR is a limited liability enterprise established in mainland China, which obtained its business LERMEREERARNANREARNMRIIZEREEAR TN 2 §
registration certificate on 26 July 2022. FLB A/ HEGHESERR- i
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M BRI

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

27 RESERVES 27 &
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the current year and prior periods FEERBEHREIERR#RERETEH  HBE27 XM HR
are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial statements. The amounts RZGEOGEEBRRAN - R 22 —FRMFHEHBEAIFE30
of goodwill arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries prior to the adoption of Statement of Standard FAEWENBARMEEMN S = F K _E-_"F+_4
Accounting Practice 30 in 2001, remaining in the consolidated capital reserve and consolidated retained =+ HBNERGREEAEERGEREB RN ZEHESED
profits amounted to HK$3,292,000 and HK$20,982,000, respectively, at 31 December 2023 and 2022. #57813,292,0007T K2 A& 1520,982,0007T ©
The share option reserve of the Group comprises the fair value of share options granted which are yet to AEBZEREREQREEREEHERTERBREZ AFE F15
be exercised, as further explained in the accounting policy for share-based payment transactions in note BN SR BRRNIIBNTERMUBRN ZNRIEBEZ X Z 2 5K
33.17 to the consolidated financial statements. Ao
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28 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Cash flows from liabilities arising from financing activities

In the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash flows from liabilities arising from financing activities

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RR MG

31 December 2023 ZZZ=F+"A=+—H

28 IFEHEMERNEE
() MEFBRELERREZHEERE
REEGRERER MERDFELEBEZRENED U

are analysed as follows: I
Loan from
Interest- an intermediate
Lease bearing bank holding
liabilities loans company Total
TR
HK$'000 AEaE  HEARGFER ATIER wat BT T
At 1 January 2022 247,627 - - 247,627 WZE--_%—HF—H
Cash outflows (127,850) - - (127,850) BEME
Other non-cash movement 94,949 - - 94,949 HMIEIRSEF)
At 31 December 2022 and RZZZZ&+ZRA=+—HRZFZ=5—H—H
1 January 2023 214,726 - - 214,726
Cash inflows - 3,929 155,000 158,929 WBEMA
Cash outflows (119,589) (3,946) (155,595) (279,130) VMY
Other non-cash movement 63,676 17 595 64,288 HthIEIR e EH)
At 31 December 2023 158,813 - - 158,813 W-ZE-_=F+=-RA=+—H

c
2
=
©
<
—
o
L
=
©
(%
c
5
=
[N

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED E i EEEE AR AR 1 63



L

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M BRI

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

28 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
In the consolidated statements of cash flows, proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment are analysed as follows:

(b) HEWE- FE&.&{%FE SRR

RiFERERER HEWE - BRERREF

STMIEDHWT

2023 2022
HK$'000 —T-= - BT T
Net book amount (note 14) 7,523 1,613 SREDFE (f15E14)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net HEME - -MEKREHEZFHE (T5E8)
(note 8) (7,523) (982)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment - 631 HEME - -MEKREZHERIE

(c) Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale
In the consolidated statements of cash flows, proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale are
analysed as follows:
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2023 2022
HK$'000 —E== TR BT
Net book amount - 9,437 IRmEFEE
Gain on disposal of assets held for sale (note 8) - 173,685 HEREHE 2 EEZ W (T:E8)
Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale - 183,122 HEREHE 2 BEEMSMIE
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the reporting period:

29

e RR MG

31 December 2023 ZZZ=F+"A=+—H

BAKIE
AEBPREPRZ ERFENT

30

31

2023 2022
HK$'000 —ECZ= CEICE BT
Contracted, but not provided for: EETABEREE :
Leasehold improvements 5,853 8,523 MHEY=EE
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 120 62 R EE R AERE
5,973 8,585

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group had no material contingent liabilities.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control, jointly control or exert significant influence
over the other party in holding power over the investee; exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of
the investor's returns. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or
joint control. Related parties may be individuals or entities.

30

31

HAEE
N B ZFR_E-_F+_A=+—H AEBLESEALAR
afEe

REALRS

BEANTIEARENER B oER s S EMRENRITEE DD
ALTTHREAFEINAL AABRRZEEH2EBLEHRRNT
BORMERIENAL, RAMBAENKRENSRNENZER
EERLHREEMA L - ZHEER IS ERIBIALTRRE RS REE
AL REALTTREAASNER-
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M BRI

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

WU 31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 31 FEALRS (@)
(a) Material transactions with related parties (a) BIRAEATZEKRRS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the following transactions were R EMBRREMIOPTIREESIN T ZTHEREAL
carried out with related parties at terms mutually agreed by both parties: TN E S EERE 2 RFET
Notes 2023 2022
HK$'000 iiEs3 ZEI=E TR BT
Continuing connected transactions HEMERS
S Rental and other income from fellow BREZKB AR WEZ HE REMBA
\ subsidiaries (i) 4,808 3,904
Service fee to a fellow subsidiary (ii) 2,977 5,861 AERMNBABRSZNZRBE
Sponsor fee to a fellow subsidiary (iii) 9,235 4,734 BERNEARZ N2 EHE
Purchases of garments from a fellow subsidiary  (iv) 3,954 - EIEENEYNCIES: 157%43
Related party transactions MEALRS
Purchases of garments from a fellow subsidiary (v - 730 EIEEN H=YNSIEZSE 5%
Interest on loan from an intermediate PREERABERZF B (H5E7)
holding company (note 7) (vi) 595 -
S Service fee to fellow subsidiaries (vi) 1,202 1,405 BRZMNBABRZ N ZREE
\ Rental expenses to related companies (viii) 3,921 4,437 BN NPk
Notes: MEEE
(i) Rental and other income from subletting portion of the Group’s office premises to fellow subsidiaries was (i) AEESEBDPRENETRRNEBE AT Z2HEREMBATS
charged in accordance with the terms of sub-tenancy agreements entered into between the Group and RIEAEEARRNEB AR A L2 D EGER ZIEREGTE
fellow subsidiaries.
(i) The service fee in relation of managing online shops at various e-commerce platforms in the mainland China (i) BEREPEAMZEEFEHTEfELLEEZREENREBEAER
was charged in accordance with the terms of an agreement entered into between the Group and a fellow HRRMB AT 2 2 Gt E o

subsidiary.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(a) Material transactions with related parties (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

The sponsor fee in relation of sponsoring a sport team was charged in accordance with the terms of an
agreement entered into between the Group and a fellow subsidiary.

Purchases of garments from a fellow subsidiary were charged in accordance with the terms of an agreement
entered into between the Group and a fellow subsidiary.

Purchases of garments from a fellow subsidiary were charged in accordance with the terms of an agreement
entered into between the Group and a fellow subsidiary.

Interest was incurred from the loan from an intermediate holding company which was fully repaid as at 31
December 2023. The interest was charged in accordance with the terms of a loan agreement entered into
between the Group and the intermediate holding company.

The service fee in relation of supply chain management in the mainland China was charged in accordance
with the terms of the respective agreements entered into between the Group and the fellow subsidiaries.

Rental expenses to related companies were charged in accordance with the terms of the respective tenancy
agreements entered into between the Group and the related companies.

Al related party transactions set out in notes (v) to (vii) constituted “connected transaction” or “continuing
connected transaction” as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and they are fully exempt from
shareholders’ approval, annual review and all disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The related party transaction set out in note (viii) above did not fall within the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

e RR MG
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31 REALRS (@)

() BEAEALZEARS (@)

M5t : ()

@iy BARAZNREEEEDENREAERRFRNE AR
2B AR E

(iv) BRRMBRADREAKRSRESAERERRNBARPIEILZ

e FREt E o

V) BFRNEATRERREEAERRARRB AT
73882 HERBT B o

vy MERFREERABZERMELE TR -2 -=F+-8
=T —H2BER-FENVRENEBEFBERABMIIIZ
N AL S G

(vii) BRAPEIAMHEREE REEDREAEEEAFRNEAR
BB Z BTN E

(vii) MEAEARSZMZEENREAEREAREARNZBILZEE

e FREt E o

(ix) MEEEWVZEVIDFFERZFARBALRZZEM EHRAF4AZET
PREZEMN TER S FERERS) BRERXFETE2HRR
BT EHRABUATE TREHE - FEERRFIBRERTE

x) UMV ZEEATRZ LB EHRAE14AZIET
FrEZEMNRIERZ IR FHERRER ] ©
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RN

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(b) Year end balances

31 FAE

EANLR S (B)

(b) FHAEEER

Notes 2023 2022
HK$'000 M52 —EZ= == BT T
Due from a related company FE U BAE A R FR1E
Rental deposits and rental expenses advance to FENEEASCHERE AEEMZ
a related company (i) 1,767 -
Due to fellow subsidiaries F& 1 [5) 2 Ffi 8 ‘A Bl 7R 18
Service fees payable to fellow subsidiaries (ii) 829 1,527 FENRERMNB AR ZRFE
Sponsor fee payable to a fellow subsidiary (iii) 4,406 - FENERWEB AR BEIE
Rental income advance from a fellow FEWRE RN EA B ZEEUWA
subsidiary (iv) 839 -
Purchase of garments payable to a fellow FERR &M B A B 2 A IR ERE
subsidiary (v) 1,737 -
Other expenses payable to a fellow subsidiary — (vi) 38 - FENRERNBABR 2 M
7,849 1,527
Due to related companies FE(IRAE N TIFRIE
Rental expenses payable to related companies  (vi) 3 1,474 FERAEAS 2 HERMY

Notes:

(i)  Rental deposits and rental expenses advance to a related company were unsecured, interest-free and

repayable according to the trade terms.

(i) Service fees payable to fellow subsidiaries were unsecured, interest-free and repayable according to the trade

terms.

P5E

() FENHEARZEERESREERAXSERT RERRIEES

RN ERE -

(i) ENERNBABDZRBESERE RERREESHEREER
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(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

Sponsor fee payable to a fellow subsidiary was unsecured, interest-free and repayable according to the trade
terms.

Rental income advance from a fellow subsidiary was unsecured, interest-free and repayable in accordance
with the terms of the agreement entered into between the Group and the fellow subsidiary.

Purchase of garments payable to a fellow subsidiary was unsecured, interest-free and repayable according to
the trade terms.

Other expenses payable to a fellow subsidiary was unsecured, interest-free and repayable according to the
trade terms.
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(iv)

(vi)

BNRRNEARZEHEREIEN RERREBEEZFNEE
FARARNE AR 2T RARBIER  RERREAEBEAR
B AR 2 HEERER.
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31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(9]

(d)

Year end balances (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(vii) Rental expenses payable to related companies were unsecured, interest-free and repayable according to the (i) ENREATZHETHIARER RERBEEZ RN

trade terms.

Loan facility

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had total loan facility of HK$200,000,000 (2022:
HK$200,000,000) granted by an intermediate holding company. During the year, loans of
HK$155,000,000 (2022: Nil) were utilised and repaid. No facility was utilised as at 31 December 2023

(2022: Nil).

Key management compensation

Key management includes directors and senior management. The compensation paid or payable to

key management for employee services is shown below:

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M B IRAR M

31 December 2023 ZZZ=F+"A=+—H

31 EALRS (@
(b) Fr&4ERR (B
GEC)

EiEt

SR °

() EFFEE
RIZEZ=F+"A=+—H £cEE#HBEPEERABRT
+351#£200,000,00077 (ZZZ 24 © #1200,000,0007T) B
BhES o £ PN > B 155,000,0007T (T2 - —F | #) BERERD
AREE- R _E_=ZF+_A=+—0 ' HEFHREHIHE
(CT|- ) o

(d) ZEEEASHRM
ITEEEANEBREEREREEBAE MEERF MR
NETEEBEABSZRINGOT :

2023 2022
HK$'000 —BC=HE = BT T
Fees 1,900 1,900 W
Short term employee benefits 12,550 13,347 R e B R
Equity-settled share option expenses 89 3,826 MG RN
Pension scheme contributions 155 166 BRIREFT B
14,694 19,239
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RN

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

32 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at the end of the reporting period is

32 FATZMBRAR
R|EPRF > ARAARNMBRRRZEOT

as follows:

Note 2023 2022
HK$’'000 M —E== e BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries 143,162 143,162 B ATRE
CURRENT ASSETS MBIEE
Due from subsidiaries 62,975 529,907 FER B A TR IE
Prepayments 650 302 TR
Cash and cash equivalents 333 1,258 HWEeKREEBIER
Total current assets 63,958 531,467 MEBEELEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBE
Other payables and accruals 478 165 HA e R IE K FE ST AR IE
Total current liabilities 478 165 mEaEEE
NET CURRENT ASSETS 63,480 531,302 MEBIEEFE
NET ASSETS 206,642 674,464 BEEFE
EQUITY s
Issued capital 332,272 247,036 BETRA
Reserves @) (125,630) 427,428 &
TOTAL EQUITY 206,642 674,464 HSiEE

The statement of financial position of the Company was approved by the Board of Directors on 20 March

2024 and were signed on its behalf.

CHEUNG Chi iRE
Director 2%

1 7 OANNUAL REPORT 2023 R
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32 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Note:

(@ A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RR MG

31 December 2023 ZZZ=F+"A=+—H

32 AATMBERRE &)
[

() ARARFEZHBWT :

Retained
Share Share profits/
premium Contributed option (Accumulated
account surplus reserve losses) Total
RGEH
HK$'000 A7 & EER BB FERR R (REtE518) waE BT T
At 1 January 2022 241,462 157,616 7,300 25,243 431,621 R_E-_—_&#—HF—H
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - - (12,534) (12,534) FREEERARLE
Exercise of share options 2,242 - (602) - 1,640 1T1ERERG 1
Equity-settled share option expenses - - 6,701 - 6,701 RREHERERS
Transfer of share option reserve upon the R EE W2 U R R R I R
forfeiture of expired share options - - (841) 841 -
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January N B _FE+A=+—HERZEZ=5—HF—H
2023 243,704 157,616 12,558 13,550 427,428
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - - (779,244) (779,244) FEREEEEEEE
Reversal of equity-settled share EmGEEERERAZER
option expenses - - (1,250) - (1,250)
Transfer of share option reserve upon the R EEmERER LR AR RS
forfeiture of expired share options - - (4,507) 4,507 -
Shares issued under rights issue 230,138 - - - 230,138 IRIEER BT ZRG
Transaction costs incurred in respect of MEREE T ZHRA
rights issue (2,702) - - - (2,702)
At 31 December 2023 471,140 157,616 6,801 (761,187) (125,630) N_E_=F+_B=+—H

Under the Companies Act of Bermuda, the share premium of the Company can be used in paying up unissued
shares of the Company to be issued to members of the Company as fully paid bonus shares.

BRERREATZ ARBRMGEEFBREEUSMBRAR RS
ERABRRBRRET AR REITRG
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M BRI

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

32 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: (continued)
(@ A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: (continued)

Under the Companies Act of Bermuda, the contributed surplus of the Company is available for distribution.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus, if:

(i) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(i) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share
capital and share premium.

33 SUMMARY OF OTHER MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
This note provides a list of other material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated. The consolidated financial statements are for the group consisting of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

33.1 SUBSIDIARIES
Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity where the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations by the Group (refer to
note 33.2).

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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32 ERBHBRAE (@)

MisE - ()

(@) FABEBEZHBENT (@)

RIBFERERQEE ARBBARBRAIH DK ERUTER &2
BINEEIRS MRS > WD IR AZR R

() FARAARFIRNZAREERENEEHEE; K

(i) ARBDEEZAZREERSNIVRERENAESEREDET
BeAMBEAR i EAR Z 48 A

33 HtEAFHEME

AR REREZST GOV BRETAARMZEMERNG S ER
BE-BRBARBIN ZFHERRFTBEERFEEH —ER 4
BMBRERDUAER RERERENBATER) R

BB AT

MBABERKEEBEREFRZFAAER (BEEBILER -EX
EEAZNEZASHABEMSZAIERIR ARIETN BAES
BRETERTHZRNIZEZSTERE A AEHEFZER-
MEARBEFRETAEE AMEREGS AR LB T HEE
BRI BHER LIRS AlRe

FAEERBEFWREAABTEROH BEE2RME33.2)

EERFBERRS EHEAERRADBRXZHNARERREA TH
HoRERZAERBRTEENEERAE  SARERGETT
NHEE - B ARGt BERERBEFLHNE DIERERER
PARBYEER R T —2



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33.2 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations, regardless of
whether equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary comprises the:

e fair values of the assets transferred,

e liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business;

e  equity interests issued by the Group;

e fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement; and

e fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are,
with limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the:

e consideration transferred;

e amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity; and

e acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are

less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is recognised
directly in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M BRI

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

33.2 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future
are discounted to their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains
or losses arising from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

33.3 SEGMENT REPORTING
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the management that
makes strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33.4FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional
currency’). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar (HK$), which is
the Company's functional and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at period end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit or loss. They are deferred
in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges or are
attributable to part of the net investment in a foreign operation.

All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on a net basis within “Selling, distribution and other operating
expenses”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M BRI

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

33.4FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION (continued)
(c) Group companies
The results and financial position of foreign operations (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

e assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that consolidated statement of financial position;

e income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss and statement of comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions); and

e all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of any net investment in foreign
entities, and of borrowings and other financial instruments designated as hedges of such investments,
are recognised in other comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold or any borrowings
forming part of the net investment are repaid, the associated exchange differences are reclassified to
profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

33.5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
The Group’s accounting policy for land and buildings is explained in note 14. All property, plant and
equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33.5PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These
are included in profit or loss. When revalued assets are sold, it is group policy to transfer any amounts
included in other reserves in respect of those assets to retained profits.

33.6 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are held for long-term rental yields and are not occupied by the Group. The Group
has adopted the cost model under HKAS 40 to account for its investment properties and such properties
are stated at cost less depreciation and any impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of the investment properties to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The annual depreciation rate used for this purpose is 3%.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment properties are recognised in profit or
loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

33.7INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

(a)

(b)

(c)

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income
("OCI") or through profit or loss), and

e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI.
For investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the
Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at
FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33.7INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)
(c) Measurement (continued)
Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into
which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

e Amortised cost:

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in
“Selling, distribution and other operating expenses” together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

e FVOCI

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in
“Selling, distribution and other operating expenses”. Interest income from these financial assets
is included in other income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in “Selling, distribution and other operating expenses” and impairment
expenses are presented as separate line item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.
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31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

33.7INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

(9]

(d)

Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

e FVPL:
Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain
or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss
and presented net within “Selling, distribution and other operating expenses” in the period in
which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OC|,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in profit
or loss as “Other income and gain” when the Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognised in “Selling, distribution and other
operating expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured
at FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For debtors, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables, see note 18 for
further details.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M B IRAR M

31 December 2023 ZZZ=F+"A=+—H

33.8 OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BYIEFEERMITA
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement HAEBRREE S EZMTENIRHECSHEBEEE ) T E 2 E%F
of financial position where the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised HEELABNANEREENGEAR MEsmEEHREE B
amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability W WERESMBERARARSE FE - AEREI LIESS
simultaneously. The Group has also arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but still allow IEEH R EI I E T IE R (Bl E AR LS4 T FLUKIHEAE
for the related amounts to be set off in certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the termination of a RIS EE ZHke
contract.

33.9 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BIREREEFFEER
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents MEIGERERERME > REARELEEECRERES £/
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid HWEEREN  RIAEA=ZEANUT BRI SRR E SR
investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts MR REBEHREBRTEANEMERASRBERE -

of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

33.10SHARE CAPITAL EER(I]:4%:
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. LRRENEAER
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or share options are shown in equity as a BETMROIEREERBRANIEER AN ERI B BAENR
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. TEH BRIV IERI IR,

33.11CONTRACT LIABILITIES BUNEHNEE
A contract liability is recognised when an entity’s obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for SHAENRERATRFEREERIRB 2 EE MEBREAER
which the entity has received consideration (or the amount is due) from the customer. Contract liabilities BB (RENSRE BRB - aNadmRAc~EEEY BNE88
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the ERERBENEGFIEEEERR) KRR A N o

related goods or services to the customer).
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M BRI

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

33.12BORROWINGS

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction
costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement of financial position when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration
paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as
finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

33.13BORROWING COSTS
General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

fok B S

2
=)
Q
=
Q,
o
=
=
o
=
3
Q
=P
o
=

1 82 ANNUAL REPORT 2023 R

BNER

EMNT LA T ENFRIIEER ZMARESD c ERE B IR BN
AREE - PRISIE (IR 5 B 4) BR[| EERY Z 2 B A
NERMEFAERETER -RUEMMEXMNER  RA R
RETHRARERESDSSEMNRZ M4 - RILERT &
TIRIEERINRME S L - WAL EERERAERRE THPAAR
B AZERSRRER JIERSESRBOANNIE W HE
RO E AR AR Y o

EENPREENSEMER BUHSERE  EMBEREHH R
KPFFR-BHGHERTS —SNEREENRAEREENRE

(BREEEBZNFRTEENFMAENER 2BNER £i8n
SRR ERA

4

ERRBESRBERE HAEREAEFARANREEEENEH
IEE R & AIE R &A1 2(8 B ERIERSL

EEREN= £ dn %

Wi ERNEECEREEERBGEN—REEEMME 1
TRERAREEERRERARNHERNAABRERARANER
ER - AEREEATERRFEEZIRERAARNHENRRZE
Eo

METARGERBEEMXNBEEN FHERRERINNRE
WA BEERBRERNERMATR-

H G AT HEL BB



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33.14CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the company and its subsidiaries
and associates operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain
tax treatment. The Group measures its tax balances either based on the most likely amount or the
expected value, depending on which method provides a better prediction of the resolution of the
uncertainty.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to
utilise those temporary differences and losses.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M BRI

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

33.14CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)
(b) Deferred income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the company is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

33.15GOVERNMENT GRANTS
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions. Government grants
relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them
with the costs that they are intended to compensate.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33.16EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(a)

(b)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave
that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end
of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities
are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their employment contracts on a
calendar year basis. Under certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the end of
the reporting period is permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the respective employees in the
following year. An accrual is made at the end of the reporting period for the expected future cost of
such paid leave earned during the period by the employees and carried forward.

e RR MG

31 December 2023 ZZZ=F+"A=+—H

B16REEF

(a)

(b)

FEHARE

EEEERTNRZRBERD I ERFZER (QEBHRE
EERHEEARFIHBERR12EARNTHEENIFE R
FRRFHR LiZEEEME B RRTEE - BARE
GUBRREAZIRESENET-

B RAGEE
FEERBEESHREBEFEEGTHREAHFR EET
BRT RBRERARAZIBZERETES BHREREER
REZM-NHREHR CBEENPRNERL FEBZBH
FRZFAHRRUAIFHRES -

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED E i EEEE AR AR 1 8 5

c
2
=
©
<
—
o
L
=
©
(%
c
5
=
[N



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M BRI

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H
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33.16EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)
(c) Pension schemes
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The Group operates two pension schemes in Hong Kong SAR, namely the Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF Scheme") under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance and a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme as defined in the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”), for all of its employees in Hong Kong SAR.

Under the MPF Scheme, contributions of 5% of the employees’ relevant income with a maximum
monthly contribution of HK$1,500 per employee are made by each of the employer and the
employees. The employer contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Under the ORSO Scheme, contributions of 5% of the employees’ basic salaries are made by the
employer and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
ORSO Scheme. The rates of contributions made by the employees are either 0% or 5% of the salary
of each employee at the discretion of the employee. When an employee leaves the ORSO Scheme
prior to his/her interest in the Group’s employer contributions vesting fully, the ongoing contributions
payable by the Group may be reduced by the relevant amount of forfeited contributions.

The assets of the MPF and ORSO Schemes are held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries which operate in mainland China are required
to participate in a central pension scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the central pension scheme.

The Company’s subsidiaries in Singapore participate in a Central Provident Fund Scheme, which is a
contribution plan established by the Central Provident Fund Board in Singapore.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33.17SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based compensation plans, under which the entity
receives services from employees as consideration for equity instruments (options) of the Group. The fair
value of the employee services received in exchange for the grant of the share options is recognised as
an expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the share
options granted:

e including any market performance conditions (for example, an entity’s share price), if any;

e excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time
period); and

e including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example, the requirement for employees to
save or hold shares for a specific period of time).

Non-market performance and service conditions are included in assumptions about the number of
share options that are expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which
is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. In addition, in some
circumstances employees may provide services in advance of the grant date and therefore the grant
date fair value is estimated for the purposes of recognising the expense during the period between
service commencement period and grant date. At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-market performance and
service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the share options are exercised, the Company issues new shares. The proceeds received net of any
directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

33.18PROVISIONS B8 E

Provisions for legal claims and make good obligations are recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may
be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine
the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as
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interest expense.

33.19INTEREST INCOME
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument
or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33.20EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

e the profit attributable to owners of the Company, excluding any costs of servicing equity other
than ordinary shares; and

e by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial period,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the period and excluding treasury
shares.

(b) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account:

e the after-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares; and

e the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M BRI

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

3321LEASES BNFEE
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and TGRS E B B EEE B & — RN ERRR AR 4 o BRK
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in MAPREHREEE ZERER I 0 E 175 I M 501 3255
the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing HMEEENSRIEERIERY
purposes.
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be HEMTRKARERMBESNMNET LR - MEZK B EZA=
readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing (FEENHE—RBRILEER AERARBEANGEEET
rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to o BME R A A B OURR IR R AR VR LU B IRIE R E A
obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar EEHECHEEEEERUNBEEMEE SN B TRHIE.

terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group: RETEEEN R AEH

e where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting point, o TAREBERT ERENEAEASRIESNE="mERLE
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was received; EHEHAEE UM BESHE =AM E UM E RN EE ;

e uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held s FREMZ BAMAEEMPFAEHENEERRM (RO HE
by the Group, which does not have recent third-party financing; and BB AREREANE; K&

e makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country, currency and security. o ETRTENEENREE AR BEIXR  BiE &iEiHo
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33.21LEASES (continued)

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the individual lessee (through recent financing or
market data) which has a similar payment profile to the lease, then the group entities use that rate as a
starting point to determine the incremental borrowing rate.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease payments based on an index or rate,
which are not included in the lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease payments
based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use
asset.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term
on a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use
asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life. While the Group revalues its land and buildings
that are presented within property, plant and equipment, it has chosen not to do so for the right-of-use
buildings held by the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value assets
are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a
lease term of 12 months or less without a purchase option.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is recognised within “Other income
and gain” on a straight-line basis over the lease term (note 6). Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised as expense
over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The respective leased assets are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position based on their nature.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M BRI

31 December 2023 ZZEZ=F+"A=+—H

33.21LEASES (continued)
Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising that
option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E M B IRAR M

31 December 2023 ZZZ=F+"A=+—H

3321LEASES (continued) BAEE ()
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following: FRAREERNAE EEUTEIE!
e the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability; o HESBGBHNVTHEERE;
e any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received; o REBBEHAFZAMENEARENT REMENEREE
BE;
e any initial direct costs; and o FRIFEERRAE ; &
e restoration costs. o BIEMA-
Entity-specific details about the group’s leasing policy are provided in note 16. EREEHEEBRNARBERFFHNME160
33.2DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTIONS BRRRE 7K
Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer MR REARI A EERERREART R DK 2 E AR EEEE
at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end (B BERERBTHERINIERE) (FHEE-

of the reporting period.
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
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interest
Location Use Tenure of the Group
24 B& FH EEELIER
Unit 1 on 9th Floor Industrial Medium 100%
Car Park No. L12 on 1st Floor term
Cheung Fung Industrial Building lease
No. 23-39 Pak Tin Par Street
Tsuen Wan, New Territories
A EAREH23-395% I FEATEE
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COMPANY INFORMATION

REER

Executive directors HITES Principal share registrar and transfer office FTERGIBRERE
Mr. ZHAO Jianguo (Chairman) HERELE (EF) MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
Mr. CHEUNG Chi SRESBE 4th Floor North 4th Floor North
Ms. YU Xin R+ Cedar House Cedar House
) . S EE 41 Cedar Avenue 41 Cedar Avenue

Non-executive director iial Hamilton HM 12 Hamilton HM 12
Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco BENSTE Bermuda Bermuda
Independent non-executive directors BIJEMITES Hong Kong branch share registrar EHBMBEEENE
Mr. LEE Kwok Ming \ZTEEH;E% Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited ~&AERREHELERAT
Prof. SIN Yat Ming gﬁiﬁﬁzi Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor ERETEEAEE 1833
bl CHAEONIG Sl (el P& Hopewell Centre BMAF1718

s 1 d East, Wanchai 1712-1716%
Company secretary [EWE S Qs e E2si; B e

Hong Kong

Mr. WONG Siu Pan =8 e

) o Registered office SRR
Principal bankers FEFRET

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited

Auditor

BITIRIT (B8 BRAH

HELBESRITAERAF

% BEm

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Principal solicitor

NS R E S T

TEEE

Deacons

BYATREMTT

Victoria Place, 5th Floor
31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 10

Victoria Place, 5th Floor
31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 10

Bermuda Bermuda
Principal office HmER

2/F, PopOffice SRNERER
9 Tong Yin Street EEER

Tseung Kwan O
Kowloon
Hong Kong

Website

PopOffice 212

CERN

www.bossini.com

www.bossini.com
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Bossini International Holdings Limited
ERMEBEKREERR QA
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
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